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i1y THE CLERIC: Please rise. You may he
12 seated.

13 MR. LHULIER: Good morning, Your )
Honor. Christopher Lhulicr of Pachulski,
Stang, 151 Zichl, Young, Jones & Wein-

traub for the Debtors, 10 Your Honor T'm |

joined today, Your Honor, by (71 Rohert
Orgel and Steven Frye of Pachulski
Statig's 8] Tos Angeles oflice.

(91 As 2 housekeeping matrer, Your no
Honor, we did file a4 pro hac vice motion
for (11 Mr. Frye and Mr. Orgel yesterday.
iz THE COURT: All righic. They will 3
he granted.

(4 MR, LHULIER: Thank you, Your 513
Hunor.

1161 Noes Your Honor huve a copy of the
1171 amended notice of agenda that was
filed yesterday ns) afternoon?

(119 THE COURT: 1 clo.

20 MR. LHULIER: Olcay. Your IIonor, on
p21) the amended agenda, the [irst mater
is the 1221 Debtors’ mation 1o rejoct
certain unexpired leases 12 of non-
residential real property. It was filed on
(24 July 2nd.

Fage 4
(11 The Court’s entercd o general ocdet (2|
on this matter. And there are cenain
marters 13 that were put over to today
that are scheduled o 4] go forward.

15) Your Honor,on Page 2 ofthe amended
6] nofice of agenda under respotses
received A, under (71 Responses Re-
ceived A, Your Honor, is the abjection )

Coturn g aver.

by landlord Bernard Wolfe, The Debtors |
have (o reached a resolution with Mr
Wolfe. And so that o) won't be going
forovard today.

1111 We're going to subinit a stipulation
(121 undet certification of counsel hope-
fully soon 13 after the hearing today.

114] THE COURT: Al right,

15] MA. LHULIER: Your Honor, Number
2. 116 has also heen — 'msorry, letier B
under p7r Responses Received, the re-
sponse of creditor Bent i) Tree Shopp-
ing Centerhas ulso been resolved We (19]
o have a stipulation today that deals
with their (200 objection, which esub-
lishes the effective date 121) fur the
rejection of their lesse, and deals with a
pz21 few other issues involving certdin
underground 123 storage anks.

(241 All right. The Committec has

Fage 5
111 reviewed that sripulation, and they
COMKEIIE tO 18 |7 ¢y,

131 THE COURT: All right, You tay (1)
hand that up.

51 MB. LHULIER: Thank you, Yout [ol
Homnor.

171 May [apptoach?

181 THE COURT: Yes All right, then. o T'1L
enter the order as to the [10] restoation.
i MR, LHULIER: Thunk you, Your iz
Honor. Your Honor, letter C onder Re-
sponses 13 Received is the objection by
DEC and Shicld. If poYour Ionoragrees,
we think that makes sense 1o 1151 deal
with that as part of number twa on the
el apeneda.

7 THE COURT: Yes.

nel MR, LHULIER: And Sub 17 under ot
Responses Reoeived i the response of
DDB, we have 20 reached a resolutionof
that matter, And (2 M Orgel s going to
presentthat matteras well (221 asthe DEC
aned Shield nutrer.

123 THE COURT: All right.
(zi] MR, LHULIER: Thank you.

Hage &
11y MR. ORGEL; (;o0d morning, Your 12
Honor Your IHonor, while we are a hard
working 13 law irm, we do lee Mr. Stang
take an occasional ¢+ vacation. ITe's on
one now. That's wlhy I'm here js1instead.
(61 Your Honor, as 10 the DDH Limited 71
matter, we did reach a stipulation. IL 1
could ® read it on the record, we'll
subimit something v after.
o] But 1 helieve counsel for DD I8 (1)
here in the Court and can confirm this.
The (12 stipulation is that the cffective

date of the 113 rejection will be July 17,

2003, that the Debror 4 will agree to
pay under 365133, 3,000 for cenain s

L DEC (207 Investments, LLC, and Shic

architectural plans, Thar it was unable o

117] And the Debtor will pay one week’
nal prorated rent for August for occu
ancy.And as e well that 1 real propert
tax claim of DB Limited (20 will b
reserved, And they'll assert it howeve
(21] they want to assert it hercafier.

1221 THE GOURT: All right.

iz3t MA. FRANCELLA: Thomas Francetld
on 249 behalf of DDB limited partney
ship.That 15 a
R I rage
|1 correct recitation of the agreement,
121 THE COURT: All right. Thank you. 13
And yvouwll submit that under [+ Cox
rification.

(51 MR. ORGEL: We will,

%] MR. FRANCGELLA: Yes, Your Honor

71 MB. ORGEL: Your Honor, as you ma
(8 know, the — in fact, us you do kno

inuch hetrer 9 than [ there were over

thousand real property (o) leases th
were dealt with, T believe most of
them have been resolved.

na We've resolved three more this
motning. There is one remaining, anfl
that’s the (1) dispute with DEC Invef
trments and Shield s) Investments.
116 THE COURT: Can you give me ah
idea 17 of how many witnesses, if m':!/
wie Tave?

nas MR, SHALK: Ifit please the Court, jip)
Your Honor, Mark Benedict appears ffr

Investrent Company. (2] Also in thie
courtroom with me are Selinda Melnik
221 our local counsel and John Malinee

apernerid i) o mpany.

11 We have and anticipare tweo (2] wi-
nesses, and we have portions of a dep-
osition i) rrznsceript o oread inw the
record with respectto () the roolissues,
151 THE COURT: Okay. And how many fgr
16 the Debtors?

71 MR. ORGEL: W have one witncss,
Your Honor

(o] THE COURT: All right.

110y MR. ORGEL: Your Honor, Twould ({1
note, though, that I think much of tic
testimony 127 in this matter will go fo
matters that the Debtors ns heliefe
involve a prepetition unseoured clabp,
50 1141 I do think some argumont first gn
what's — based 15 an the stipulagd
facts, we do have, Ithink,a (1o stipulatign
1o present to Your Honor regarding (7
cerlain facts.
18] THE CQUAT: Well, maybe you betger
1191 give me the stipulation,

(201 MR. ORGEL.: 1 think that's a good |
idea. Your Honor, right now I don't hage
a copy 122 other than with holesin rhe

=

Min-U-Script®

(3) Page 1-Pagg8




August 26, 2003

(23l THE COURT: It's fine,
(2+f MR, QRGEL: I'll just show you

Page 9
(1] this.

i21l MR.BENEDICT:1 have que. Thank 3
you.

11 THE COURT: Just hand it to my 5
cletk.

15 MR. ORGEL: Surc, Your Honor, —

(71 THE COURT: All right, I've read iy the
stipulation.

1ot MA. ORGEL: Your Honer, thank you,
tinj As well, [helicve Tdon't think there's
any ) dispute that July's rent was paicd.

(121 MR. BENEDICT: Your Honor, if it [13)
please Lthe Cowrt, we did, i fact, receive
July (i) rent. However, July utilities were
not paid.

s MA, ORGEL: Olkay. 61 Your Honar, as
well 1 think macter 117) of record is the
proceedings, the mouon thar this s
Court — the motion was filed July 2nd Ly
the 91 Debtorsto reject this lease. There
wis a hearing 120 July 17th from which
this was comtinued.

i21) The Debuotrs having vacated and Ieft
122 the premises hy July 31, Dehtrors
helicve that the 123 issue of rejection
maybe can be addressed right 124 now.
And that with rejection out of the way,

Pagea 10
1) we'll find thar some of these orther
issucs fall 12 away,
Otherissues that we'll be () discussing
thar are being raised are requests for 15)
reimbursement for rhings [ wenm snr-
render [ oblipations, ahligations o
restore the premises |7) to ils original
condition it was in ar the tme of g
leasing, to recut the curb, move the
driveways, 1w o) tnstall fire walls, und or
deconstruct cettain () improvements
tnade prior 1o the filing,
1) 1 think some of those issues and the
nzpfactsihargo with them fallaway once
wir have s some discussion of the
relevant legal issues. And (14 i we could
dor that, 1 think that will be a muach 15
tnore cfficient way ro conduct this
hearing, if [161 those are part of 4 general
prepetition clain.
171 THE COURT: Well, 1 understand your
N&] argument that itr's a rejection, bur |
understand o their arguinent s that
you're notsurrendering the o) premises
in the same condition. And it's not a 121
brootn clean issue.
122 IU's —
13 MR, ORGEL: Accepting that, Your 24)
Honor sceepling that that's their atgum-
enl, what

Page 11

U1 I'tm saying is given their — assuming |

| they're 21 correct, —

131 THE COURT: Mmmr-hmnr,

4] MR. ORGEL: — 1 still belicve bus (5
what we'll get to, s that the law does not
makg 16 surrendering the manner the-
yv're describing a 1 condition w0 re-
jection,

18] THE COURT: All right. Why in —

@l MR. QRGEL: Well, there is (0] con-
trolling anthority in this for this Courr,
the nmy Chatlos case, Judge Robinson
decided —

121 THE COURT: What's the name of the
151 Chatlas, C-ILA-T-L -5, The Chatlos
caxe, Chatlos (14] Systems versus Caplan,
1151 THE COURT: Yes.

e MR. ORGEL:In that case, there was
17 a subtere. The rejection ocourred
supposcdly, 118 but surrender couldn't
ocenrbecause there was a 1191 subtenant,
And the landlord came in for (20 ad-
ministrative rent, which was granted.

1217 The Disttict Conrt reversed saying |27
surrendet is not a conditon to rejection.
And (71 the case was retanded, On
remand, the Cournr held (24 in another
published decision, in, again, Chuatlos

Pags 12
) versus Caplan, that the administrative
rent claimzwas denied And there was —
Coutt claims grow (31 from other claims.
They were all addressed in the 1) re
tiunded cases, all preperition unsecured

- claims,

ts1 As well, Your Honor, there's o hurw (s
authority oul of can social STy,
Kunsas 71 lease. S0 | goess that's an
appropriate it in, In 8 Re: Duckwall,
which is an 150 BR 965, That notes o)
thiat the surrender lunguage in the ban-
kruptey code [10) prreempts any notion of
state law surrender, which 111 iy — and
thar Court veally addressed very similar
112 issues and found that, and Tl guote,
It’s a i3] brief gnote.

i14) Contrary 1o Inlund’s contention 15

i Duckwall’s rejecton of the un¢xpired

lease was 16 nol conditioned upon
Inland’s acceprance of the 117) premises.
Rather the langoage of the code iz
cnvisions @ unilateral decision on the
part of the 1191 trustee, or Deblorin-
possession whether w reject 2 or
assumnethe unexpired lease, subjectonly
1o the |21 Court’s approval upon re
jection, Section 36504 22 requires the
rrustee or Debtor-in-possession (24 im-
mediately surrender the property to the
lessor,

i241 The: code does not require the lessor

Fage 13
Nl to aceepl the premises in return
hefore rejection 12 s deemed effective.
And discussion there over 3) state law
reguirements for acoeprance as part of

In Re: Fleming Companies, Inc.

11 surrenders, the Court said that's just
no part of (5 the hankruptcy code.

161 THE COURT: But the question is: |7
Can the Debror surtender the prefuises?

15l MR. ORGEL: Well, | think it () goes —
(1] THE COURT: What docs that mean?

N1 MR.ORGEL: That's right, Your [z
Honor, But T think the argument that
surrender (131 means that you have W
comply with cither state 114 law or with
the lease in terms of what surrender |15
means restore the premises to the orig-
inal 11a) condition proves too much.
365(dx, which (171 contains the surc
render language by its term says [ it
applies o all chapters of the Bankruptey
Cade, 1191 Chaprer 7, Chaprer L,

120 THE COURT: | know.

(21 MR. ORGEL: As a resnlt of that, 22
the Chupter 7 trustee could never reject
A lease 12y like this. Day one, Chapter 7
trustee had already 24 vacated. He
couldn’t reject because he'd have un

Page 14
i ohligation, I'isurrender, which would
he the 121 ssue on surrender o restore
the: prefises.

(31 50 a Chapler 7 trustec with litmited (4
resources would have to file it as a no
asset [(51case, or would have 1o pay, wouyld
have to expend 18 whatever money
there was o testore the premiscs (7]
leaving nothing for the rest of the g
administrution. 1 den't think that’s the o)
intention of the code.

110) THE COURT: Cleatly, this is not (i
the st case. Do you have any cases
tlealing r1z) with landlords argument that
you have to restore (13 the premises
in¢ur construction costs sutcly this 14
can't be the firsr case.

(151 MR. ORGEL: T think the - infact, 16
we didn't find any — I will say that there
wits i 17 late reply, a sir replay filed
which cites @ case 18 to the conttary, a
case whoere the Court said —i9) but the
Court was interested — it said it was an
20 equirable mater and said, out of
cquily, the 121 Court would not allow
rejection without surrender (22 w0 in-
clude vertain provisions of rhe leagse.
1231 owever, interestngly, those (p4)
provisions required — what the Court
said was it

Page 15
111 was garbage and deliris on the pre-
mises, and rhose 12 conditions of the
lease said it had to be lef in 13 broom
clean condirion,

4] Your Honor, this Courtimpioses that |5
kkind of reusonabie requitement all the
time. And 51 that quid pro quo is acrally
something this Court (71 generally insists
onin order to condact an mauction of
the premises, That's what happened o

Page 9 - Page 15 (4)
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here.
N0 We've agreed ro that, We agreed to )

otherthings,and we didit. They're going

much (z) further.
3] THE CQURT: Well, they're going [14]

much fonher Decause of the aces of -

Debtor ns prepetition in altering their
property, 50 that [1e] they cannal relet it
without these changes. They 171 cannot
usetheirown propeny without these (18
changes,

not MB. ORGEL: I understand, Your 2o
Honor, but T don’t see how it would be

differentizi) fora Chapier 7 trustee. Ijust

don't see any (22) difference.

(z31 If the same thing happencd and this
(24] casc were filed asa Chapter 7 on day
aong, they'd

Fage 16
111 be: in the same boat. They'd be stuck
with a 21 potential rejection,
{31 Yout ITonor, this is goity to happen 4
at the end of September when we're
going to have a |5 deemed rejection
repardless. 5o the only real — 6 the issne
here isn't whether they're going o (71
teject the lease. The issue is how much
18] administrative rent do we pay? How
much of |9 administrative claims do we
pay?
tey They've not arguing it's a bad 1)
business judgment (o ger oul of s
premises. 121 They are not disputing at
the Debtors' business (131 judgment, that
it'sinthe bestinteresiof the 1) esate o
get out. They're saying iU's not Fair 113 to
them.
16t THE COURT: Well, talk about the 17
toof repair, which is a different issuc
from the 1w aceess issue,
i) MR, ORGEL: Your Honor, [ agree. 120
The roof repairisaditferent issue I thitk
1211 repair and mainenance i a much
tougher guestion, (221 because 1 think
there's certain repair and (23] main-
tenance obligations that don't fall under
A 1z4] surrender obligation.

Paga 17
11) They fullunder 3635¢d>3, which isan |2
appropriate place to disouss continuing
131 pay-ssyou-go obligations of the Deb-
tar, #nd the 4 Debtormmustes, or Debror
in-possession. Repair 151 and  main
lenance 1% 4n obligation that the Debtor
16t has.
i71 The question hete if — the tough (8
question that's going ro come up with
repair and 19 maintenance, that's muach
tougher than a rent,
et THE COQURT: And isn't that a 111 fac-
tual issuce that 1 have to hear westitnony
an?
i121 MA. ORGEL: You muay have to hear
(13 some faces on, but [ think what 1
hoped to say was D4 this will narrow ila

lot, 1 do think — you may (15 not,

116] The difference here is that under 17
365(d»3, and under the other obliga-
tinns, 18] pay-as-yo-go ohligations, some
of them are set 191 like rent first of the
month, easy, and the Court 20 i8 going
hack and forth. I know this Court’s (21
position on what happens if the ban-
kruptey 1§ (2 filed on the 2nd, not the
1st. We all know that.

123) When do you replace a root? When
124] elowss rhat obligation arise, the st or

Page 18
11 Much harder equestion,
12 Bt if you —
13 THE COURT: You stipulated it 4] star-
ted leaking June 261h. There's a post-
petition |3 leak.

1] MR, ORGEL: Yeah. No quesdon, {7)

Your Honor,

181 But we also stipulated that prior to (9)
April 1st, we began replacing the roof.

~ The place 0] it leaked was where they

tied off the old and new (1t} rool.
1121 THE COURT: Right.

1131 MR. ORGEL: We're not saying we've
4 offercd — 1 don't think there's any
question (15 we've offered 1o repair the
tedolf soitnedoesn’t leak Idon'tihink
that's what's at [17] issue.

s I think there's going to be evidence
191 to the effect thar rhat may -— the
tandlond may 120) view that's worse or
teast view that there's (1) evidenee thar
will make a permanent replacement of
122) the reof, worse not better. And thus,
there’s (231 some tesuimony that the — I
think youw’ll fined 24 that the roofer said
he'd do it

Page 19
() Bt it wasn't clear thal anyone 17
wianted the roof — were going to do it.
S0 if (3 that's what we're being asked 1o
do, we think the 4] rool will do thad lor
free, replace, repair the |54 te off. But we
think the landlord wants more.
(1 T'he andlord wants replacement of 7
the roof, They want the 98,000 that's set
in 8] cscrow that would coverthe entire
replacement of (o) the rool on the 5150
portion of the building.
o] Aned what we'res saying, Your Honor,
111718 hecanse it's absolutely clear singce it
wias 121 startedf prepetition thar che
uhtigationof 3 prepetition. Andthe fact
ofa prepetition he (o) bankruptey shoul-
dn’t convert that into a [15) postpetition
claim,
6] There's -— it was alrecady an 1171
ubligation cxisting on the date of the
filing that pa) had come (o [ruition. We
acknowledged we staried |19 repairing
the roaf.
[20] 50 we do think as o marter of Liw (2

that the - that if they watit to put G
evidenoe, (220 and if hoth sides want
put on evidence as 10 (231 the cost of the
repair from — w bring &t to the |2
position it was on April Tst, the cost J’
the

ffage 2

[11 repair to tic off and make semf
permunent the tie 12 off hetween thie o
and new roof,we're fine o do vy thar B
I don't thitk that’s where this (4] e
timony was going o go,

151 And I think we'd spend a Jot of time: |4
on issues relating o — that just dong
relate 7] O —
l# THE COURT: Well, the question |
LYW the question is whether thi
ohligation to o) repuir means a paich jok
or to fix the problem.
1111 MR, ORGEL: I think you're right. 1]
Hut it also means when did it arise?
1131 56 if —

N4 THE COURT: wWell, postpetition, it 114
feaked.

o) MR, ORGEL: But posipetition, it |1u
leaked through a hole thar existed Apn

i 5t 1y because we were rebuilding the
oot

1ol THE GOURT: No. No. (o) As of f\prl
Lst you tied it in. S0 21 it didn't leak o
April 15t
12n MR. ORGEL: Ma. Mo, |23 April lﬂr,
they're working on it (21 No rain,
F"age.z
1] By April 11th, they go off the job, (4
and they te it off.
151 THE COURT: 5.

(1] MR.ORGEL: S0 April 1sr, 1 don’t 1
think — 1 mean, mayhe there will
restimony as 6 to what the conditio
wils April 1st.I'massuming 17| they tied
off hecanse it would have been worse i)
if they didn't tie it oft,

191 50 that April Lst, you may have had |y
openrost, oryoumay have had more ofg
Tic off,
(1 THE COURT: 1 assume I'm going o
121 hear testimony on this, and [ can}
make a 131 decision unul T hear the
LEstimony.

{14) MR, ORGEL: T'm not fighting you. 14
That will come out in estumony.,

116] What I'm trying to focus on that’s o
not — that the tenor of the testimony,
focused (18] on what was the conditio
April 1st versus April 191 1 1th is going ¢
be very different than if Your 30 Hon
tules that, regardless of what the corf
ditivon 21 was April 1st, regardless, the
repair and 22 nmitgenance obligatiof
incldes the obligation as 12y a posg
petition neatter 1o replace the toof,

(24 If that's the case, the restimony
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Page 22

M1 goes o what's the cost. of teplacetn-
ent?

21 THE COURT: Well, I'm going o hear
(3 all the testimony. I'm nol going o
ke tny 14 roling until T hear any
testimony.

151 50 maybe we save the argument until
161 after L hear the testimony, Lthink that's
the 171 best.

s MR, QRGEL: Okuy. Including the 19
testimony on rthe cost of the enrb aned -

iy THE COURT: Yes,

111 MR, ORGEL: Okay. All right. 1121 Your
Ilonar, well then Mr. Frye fromm (14 iy
firm will be conducting — will be
puttity on 14) the evidence.

1151 THE COURT: All right.

161 MR. ORGEL: Thiank vou, Your Honot.

fyl THE COURT: Why don't you save
yout s apening until closing. Is thar
okuy?
i) MB. BENEDICT: If it please the (an)
Court,and I just wanted o identily one
point (217 {from the July 171h hearing, so
we don’t ave Lo g0 o thiough that.
(23| [ asked counsel for the Debtor i 241
they had an opportunity w review the
transcript

Page 23
(11 from that proceeding, and they said
that they had (2 nor; that they had ralked
with Mr, Stang, bur had 13 not revicwed
the transcript.
1 T did print off 2 copy from the (35
Couort's docket of the transcript, and
there was (¢ one ruling the Court made
at thar hearing that [7; wanted to read
into the record tooar least advise (s
Debtors’ counsel since they were not
prosent. And 9 L think it assists the
proceeding in the evidence (o) thar will
b presented here roday,
111y This appears on Page 154 of the 1z
tratiseript, Line [1 from the Conrt. But 1
will 1131 rule on a legal basis that main-
tenance 114 obligations, continuing ohb-
ligations uidet the s lease, and I think
Montgotmery Ward would say that 14 ifit
arose postpetition, you know, it's sotoe-
thing 114 the Debtor has w pay at the
LitIe il 4Iose.
1181 And a factual stipulation has now (19
heen entered, Your IIonor, that the leak
at the tie 20 began June 26th. S0 the
evidence wday 15 not did 21 it leak . What
wias the condition of the roof 22 hefore
April 1st?
lz3] There's a factual stipulation as to o4
that. I think thar the evidence then to
TELETOW

Paga 24
1 the issues for wday is what's the
appropriate (21 fix? And there will be

In Re: Fleming Companies, Inc,

testimony with regards 1o 13 that issue.

[ THE COURT: OQkay. Well, whose |5
witnessam I going to hear ficst, since we
have a (6] combined movon to reject und
mation to compel, (7)) Do that parties
care?

% I think they're looking o you.

191 MR. BENEDICT: They have yielded wo
r1o] me, U'm more than happy 1o proceed.
ri1) My first witness will e Mr. Juhn ny
Malinee.

1131 MR. FRYE: Your Hunor, we’d lilce to
114] invoke the role, Mr.Benedict said that
there are (15 Lwo willlesses.

16 THE GOURT: All right. (17| Any reason
the secomd witness 1w shouldn't be
sequestered?

119 MR. BENEDICT: He's the designated
1201 tepresemative of the Deblor

121 THE COQURT: Then he muay renuin,
122 Al eight. Whe's your first (23 witness?
t2i1 MR. FRYE:Your Honaor, if | may, we
Paga 25
1 hatet subpoenaed the 30C06 designee
of the IDEC and 12) Shicld Investments,
And that was the designee 3 that is
about to take the stand,
11 Tanday they're trying to say that s
there’s another designee thuat is re-
presentitys the 15 Debtot, or T'msorry,
the landlotd. Atel it would 17 seemto me
that that person should have been g
produced for a deposition since we
asked for their 9 designee, their cor-
porate designee to be deposed.

ol They seem 1o be shifting gears, Your

111 Honar

iz MR. BENEDICT: Actually, 1 think i3]
rhere's a miscomnmnicarion, The des
ignated 4] representarive Didentified as
my other witness is s Fleming's des-
ignared representative, Mr David (4
Stegmann,

1171 MR. FRYE: Fair enough. (18] Mr. Mal- -
¢ Kansas Avenue?

inee 15 the designated 114 representative
ol DEC and Shield.

200 THE COURT: All right. You oy 10
swear in the withess.

1221 THE CLERK: Place your hand on the
123 Dible amd state your natne for the
Coutt.

- 1211 THE CLERK: Jothn William Malinee

Page 26
111 JOHN W MALINEE, 12 the deponent.
herein, having fitst (31 been duly sworn
o oxth, was 14 exurmined and restified as
follows:

15 DIRECT EXAMINATION
11 BY MR, BENEDICT:

171 Q: Good morning. Would you please
state (4 yout full name [or the Coun?

191 A John William Malinee,

Page 22 - Page 28 (6)
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(o1 Q: And what is your —

(11 THE COURT: Could you please speak
02 into the Mike so we can hear you.

i Thatk you.

(13 MR. BENEDICT: Do you watt tne to
4] begin again, Your Honor?

s THE COURT: No. We have his namue,
1e) MR, BENEDICT: Thank you.

1171 BY MR. BENEDICT:

f13] @ Wher is your present employer?
vor Ar Intermobile Marketing,.

(20] Q: And how long have you been
etuployed by 1211 Intermobile Markering?
1221 Az Hince aboul 1993,

123) & And what is your current position
with 24 Intermohile Marlceting?

Page 27
111 Az I'm president.

121 @: All right. And to your knowledge,
what 31 is the relavonship between
Intermobile Matketing 141 Inc. and DEC
Invesimenis?

I/ Az It provides certain management
services (6] [or DEC Invesuments.

7 G And what is the relatonship bet-
weenl @ Inteemobile Marketing and
Shield Investment (9 Company?

oy As It provides certain tunagemnent
services (117 for Shield.

1z Q: And would you genetally describe
for the 3 Coutt those tunagement
services that Intermohile 141 Marketing
provides ta both DEC and to Shield?

s ArIt provides  real  eswate  man-
agetnent atd (16) accounting services for
hath of those entities.

1171 Q: Andin yourdutiesasthe president
of pap Inteemobile Marketing, which
include the (g management of cerlain
properiies of DRC and (200 Shield, does
that include the management of (21
properdes commonly ktnown as 5100

1221 A; That is correct.
231 @ Anel who is the owner of 5100
Kansas 124) Avenue?

Fago 25
111 A: That would be DEC.
121 @: Okay And doyour duties include |3
responsibility with respect ro property
located at (1 190 Kansas Avenue?
(5] A: ‘They do,
6] @ And who, 1o your knowledgpe is the
owner 171 0of the 5150 Kansas Avenue

facilicy?
a1 A: DEC Tnvesttnents.
o) Q: 1 [eermobile Marketing re-

sponsible for popmanaging the property
commonly known as 5200 1)) Kansas
efe?
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1121 A; That is ¢orrect,

113 @: And who is the owner of 3200
Kansas [14] Avenuc?

115/ Az Shield Investments.

[16] Q: Now, I have seen reference in the
[17; materials and on certain maps 1o a
building called (13 5250 Kansas Avenne.
Are you [anuliar with that 1191 facility?
207 Az T am.

12y @: Conld you explain to the Count
what 5250 1221 15 in relatonship o 5200
Kansas Avenuc?

231 Ac It is ahowt 108,000 scuare foor
building 124) that was built on property
torth of 5200,

Fage 29
111 Q: Okay. And is the 5250 bhuilding
lcased (2] separately 1o Fleming?
13 A Well, the 5200 leasing encom
passes the ) ground underncath the
5250 huilding,

%1 Q: Okay. And in your duties with 6
Intermohile, you are familiar with cach
of those 171 properiies?

ia] A: That is correct.

19 Q: And you've actually been to cach
of those 10y properties?

o As T have.

20 Q: Andd yow're familiar with their
physicul 1141 characteristics?

e A Yes, T an

5] Q: Mr, Malinee, there are a number of

6] exhibit notebooks in front of you.
And wi've (17 previously handed up w

the Court an exhibit ng notebook, And

this will he the first one labeled v

exhibit notebook — the slightly larger |

(31T =

120 [ hetieve i still has an it the (21 cover
page from the 1ast hearing, which suys
thae 21 the hearing is July 17th ut three
o'clock that may 231 help you identify
which hook we're talking about.

1241 And | would ask you to turn to

Page 30
131 document numbwr one in the exhibic
haok.

121 Mr. Malinee, do you recognize that 13
document?

1Az Ido e's a sublease for propoerty at 15
5100 Kansas Avenue,

16| @: And who arc the parties o that
sublease?

(71 A: By and between DEC Investments,
Inc.and a1 Fleming Cotnpanies, Inc.

1 Q: Okay. Now, just so that the Court
10 understands, this is denominated asa
sublease. 11 Can you explain to the
Court why this is called a (12 sublease?
113} A: The original propetty wus acguit-
ed under 14 an industrial revenue bond.

50 there was 4 lease 15 hetween DEC in
this casc and the City of Kansas (6] City,
Kansas,

1171 And then this was wdentified as a ny)
sublease when NEC leased itto Fleming,
ton @ Angd would you explain to the
Court what (z01 an indusirial revenue
bond is?

211 Az Tt's a means by which financing is
(221 obtained whereby the governmenial
entity lemds its 123 credit status o the
lender for — to the — to (e the lessar,in
this case, the Jessee to oblun

Page 31
11 hnancing. And thereby, the gov-
ernmental agency 121 holds title until
such times as those bonds are (31 retired.

fal G And have these bonds becnretired
o s 51007

16l A: Yes, they have.

(71 Q: 8o at the present time at 3100, 12EC
is 81 now the fee owner?

121 A: That is correct,

flo] Q: And there's no ouwtstanding ob-
ligavion o 111 Wyandouwe County or the
City of Kansas City, 12 Kansas other than
periodically acceruing tax 113 obliga-
tions?

{11 Ar That is correct,

115 Q: Mr. Malinee, I'm going 1o ask you

1o turn | 6 1o Document Exhibit Number

2 and ask yvou if you 117 can identify that
docutnent.

el A That's a lease on property 2150
Kansas (19 Avenue by and Betweenn DEC
Investments and TFleming 20 Cone
panies.

121 Qi And I'm going to ask you 1o turn o
1221 Document ExhibitNumber 3. and ask
you w0 identify (23] that for the Court.
1211 Az Sublease agreement on properly
ar 5200

Page 32
M Kansas Avenue between Shicld Ln-
vestmients and 12) Fleming Companics,

131 @: And this is the lease that you've i
testified also encompasses the 5250
building?

151 A; Thut 1% cortect.

161 @ Okay. Anthisis denominated asa 7
sublease that also — becanse there was
an (] industrial revenue bond on this
facikity?

9] A: That is correct.

N Q: And hus the industrisl revenue
bund been 11 retired?

112 A: Tt has.

{131 G And is Shield now the fee owner
Of this (141 propery?

f151 A Shueld is.

116 MR. BENEDICT: Okay. I would move

{1 to admit Exhibits 1, 2 and 3.
1% MR. FRYE: No objection, Your [
Ionor. T
120) THE GOURT: Well, let's wait on th
(211 exhibits unul the end of your case.,
122 MR. BENEDICT; Thut's fine, Your |29
Honor.

241 BY MR. BENEDICT:

Papa 3
(1 Q: Mr. Malinee, why don't we sta
with 2 Exhihit Number |, then I as
some questions 3] about the speuifif
exhibits. And Exhibit 1 is a (4 sublcasc
15) And if 1 slip in and cail it a lease
rather than a sublease, will you undc:J;
stand what 7] 'mtalking about whenT
relerring to Exhibit s) Number 17
) A T will,
1o Q@ Okay Iwouldask youto turnto if
Paragraph 9.2 undler this docutnent.
(121 A: I'm there.
131 Q: And if you would take a momerg
1o read 14) that paragraph to yoursclf.,
s Az T am.
1161 Qi Okay. Pursuant wy this particuls
171 sublease as berween DEC Inve
tments and Fleming, s who has
obligation W maintain the premises
during the existence of this lease?
1201 Az Fleming Conpanies.
1211 Q: Okay. And ulse pursvant to this [3;1

paragraph, who has the obligation
clean the 123 premises?

i24] A Fleming Companics,

"r5ag;51
r Q: Okay. Iwill ask vou then o turn t

121 Purugraph 5.4.1.

131 THE COURT: Are you on Exhibit 17
141 MR. BENEDICT: Yes, Your Honor
I'm sarry, 5, — sorry, 6,41,
15) THE COURT: Oy,

71 MR. BENEDICT: I had them reversed,
# Your Honor. The numbering in th
lease and the (o sublease is one pa

graph off after paragraph no) four. I
SOLTY.

i1 BY MR. BENEDICT:

12 Q2 I'me sorry. Are: you ar 6.4.17

113) Ac T am,
iL5] @: Would you read that 1o yoursclf,
Sif.

1151 Az OWIthess reviewing.)y

ilol I have.

1171 Q: With fespedct to any construaclio:
Or () capital improvements ono tly
premises, does Fleming v have
obligation under this particular subleasg
1201 to obtain landlord consent?
211 ArIU's required o obtain the la
dlord’s 1221 prior written approval . I'hatk
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COrrect.
1241 Qi ALl right, sir
(241 The sublease. 'm now going 1o ask

Paga 35
{11 you Wy turn to Paragraph 19
121 A: I'm there.
141 And as long as this lease is in effecr,
141 8if, who s tesponsible for payment of
utilities (5 on the premises?
15 A: The tenant.

171 Q@ Tmnnow goiig to ask you to turh 1o
|8 Paraaraph 25 4 of the lease.

19 THE COURT: Would you go back 10—
[ Paragraph 19 i3 whal you wete
talking about?

(i MR. BENEDICT: Yes, Yout Tonor.

1121 THE COURT: My paragraph 19 wlks
[13] about utilities.

141 MR. BENEDICT: That's the question
1151 that 1asked, Your Honor,

116/ THE COURT: 1 thought it was [17)
repairs,

18] MR. BENEDICT: Mo, Your Honar ] 19|
asked who was responsible for utilitics,
(20 THE COURT: ATl right. I'm sotry. [21]
And what's your next paragraph?

(221 MR. BENEDICT: T'hc nest paragraph
1230 is 2% 4.

1241 Is everyone there?

Page 36
(11 THE EOURT: Yes.
121 THE WITNESS: I'in thete.
31 BY MR. BENEDICT:
11 @ With respect 10 hazardous tizite-
rials, (5] Mr - Malinee,as between DEC and
Fleming, who has ¢ the obligation as
long as this lease isin ¢Ffect (7) o remove
harardous marcrials from the leased w
pretases?
o1 A The tenant, Flening,
1101 £ Andd lustly, sin I'm going to ask yoo
to i nun 1o Paragraph 93 of the
sublease,
naz2r Az I'm rthere.

1131 Q: Upon the termination of the lease
term, (4] doesthe landlord have rightsto
request Tleming ns o take cerain
actons with respect 1o this 16 propery?
1171 A: That is correct.

11 Qi And with respect to this para
graph, does pe) the landlord have the
right 1o request Fleming to [20) restore
access to the premises?

1217 Ar That's correct,

1221 Q: Okay. Now, let's turn o Exhibit
Nurber 25 2, which isa lease agreement

hetween DEC and 24 Shicld. And again,
with regands to maintenance

In Re: Fleming Companics, Ingc.

niand cleaning, —

121 A: Pardon me. Between DEC and
Fleming,

131 @: Between DEC and Fleming, my
apologies. 14 Thank you for correcling
tne.

151 With respect to maintenance and (46)
cleaning, if you would Lurn to Pargttaph
8.2

i71 A: I'tn there.

51 Q: And under this lease, for 5150
Kansas 11 Avenue, as between DEC and
Fleming, whe has the o) obligation ro

+ maintain the premises and o clean (g

the premises?

121 A: The wenant, Flerming,

1131 Q: Okay. And since I've poimed
everyone Lo (14 the last — in the last
lease to the wiong 1y patagraph, T
believe it’s 5.4.1 in the ledse 16 ugreetn-
ent, Exhibit 2.

7 A5l

ns Q: Yes.

(9] A Okay.

20 Q: 541

211 And with respect b capital 2z

lnprovements atd construction on site,
- ther leases?

is there an 23 obligaton w obtain
approval of the Landlond?

1241 A: That's
approval.

correct.  Prior  written

Page 38
ni Q: Paragraph 18 with respect to uril.
fties,
j21 A Dinhere.

24l A It does.

Page 38

1 Q: Does that include removal of (2
interconnects with nonowned  pro-
perty?

13 A It does.

(1 Q: I'm now going to ask you to lurn 1o
151 Exhibit Number 3, which, aguin, is u
sublease. 16 And this is the sublease
between Shicld and (77 Fleming with
respect to 3200 and 5230 propertics,
18] Ar Okay.

191 @ Anud wpain, I'm going to diregr you
to o) Paragraph 9.2 and ask you whe-
ther that contzing (1) the same main-
tenance and cleaning obligations that 1)
are priorto leases ofthe priortwo leases?
(3 A Lt doges,

(14 @ 1 want to ;Iirtfct yau, then, W
Paragraph (5 6.4.1. And whelher il
containg the same landlord [16] approval
reaquirements of the other two leases for
nrany alterationand construction ofthe
—- (m the (18] premises.

1o A: e does.

1200 Q: T'in going to direct you 1o Para-
graph 19, 1211 whether it contzing the
same urility requirements 22 of the

123 A: It does.
[2i] Q: ['m going 1o direcl you to Para-
graph 25 4

Page 40

11 ang ask you whether it containg the
same  hazardous |21 material requir-

©ements as the other leases?

(31 Q: As with respect to DTG and Flenr |

ing, as 4 hetween the two, who has Lhe
abligation as long as 5 this lease 15 in
effect o pay lor utilities?

61 A: Terant shall puy all costs incurned
for 71 all vtilities used on the leased
prefuises.

sl @ Aud then if you'llwutn o Patapgraph
o 24 4.

o Ar Qkay,

M Q: As hetween DEC angd Fleming,
whi has the 1z obligation o remove:
harardous materials?

l131 A: The tenant, Flenxng.

41 @: And lasly, inthis lease, Ill ask you
(151 10 Lurt 1o Patagtaph 8.3,

16 A 'm there,

117) @ At the surrender — pardon me, At
the s termination of the lease term, can
the landlord 1191 ask Fleming to take
cerlain acltions with respect (20] o this
property?

1211 A; He can.

1221 Q: Dowes that action  inchule
viding aceess (231 to the taciliry?

Prer

131 Ar It docs.

[ Q: And last, T'ask you to wrn to (5
Paragraph 9.3,

le] A: Tt there.

171 @: Ane U'llusk yon whether this lease
alser ) contains the same reguirements
that if at the o landlond’s reguest,
Fletning must restore acoess (o) and
remnove the mrerconnects berween the
1111 buildings?

2 A It does.

131 Q: And Mr, Malinee, if Loould ask you
to (14] refer to Exhibit B as in boy w the
5200 lcasce, (15 which is Exhibit Number
3

(e MR. BENEDICT: I it helps the (7
Court, it's the map.

1181 THE COURT: Okay.

1o THE WITNESS: I'm there.

120 BY MR. BENEDICT:

(211 @ Would you generally describe o
the Court 1221 what Txhibit 13 is?

A Ir's a2 drawing of the combined
faciliries 24 ar 3300, 5200 and 3100

Page 35 - Page 40 (8)
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Paga 41

1 Q: Now, Mt Malinee, I'll draw your (2
attention, there appearsto be what loolks
to be a 37 rail kine. Is that — and does that
tepresent 4 (41 il line along the right-
hand side of that 15 document?

161 A Tt dloes.

171 Q: Is it correct that the rail line also
has |8 a spur that runs between both the
DEC and Shield o) facilities?

{10 A: Runs between the buildings at
5200,5100, 1111 and 5150, That's correct.
(12)Q: And 50 at the lime of the com-
mencement Of (13 the lease for 3200,
which is the Shield facility, 114) did Shield
have access to the mil spur through 15)
that rail line?

i1} Az Shield did.

1171 G: I'm asking now for you 10 ook to
the s upper part of this ¢xhibit. Again,
I'm Jooking at 1191 it as a book puge.

1201 Are those graphic representations of
(2 trucks right above where it says
S2007

2z Ac T can't identify what you're in-
dicating.

233 THE COURT: I don'y see 3200 vn it,
12iy either,

- Page 42

1z BY MR. BENEDICT:

131 Q: There's a phruse new docks. Do
you see 14) the phrase new docks?

15 A L dn.

161 Q: Okay. Aned then there's an arrow (7]
pinting?

15 Az Correct,

) Q: What does that — what i85 that
referring i to?

11 A The westward docles o the baild-
ing, which juaisidentificd onthis exhibit
as existing 13) building, which is the
building ar 3200,

41 @ Angd it's identificd as  existing
hsilding 115 why?

pal ArTE was in existence, built and
completed (17) peior o the ume of the
lease,

na Q: Okay, Was the addition w Stueld’s
na) facility in existence atthe titne of the
leasc?

1201 A: No, sir

1211 @ Now, I sec a reference on this
diagram ro 1221 Kansas Avenoe. Is this a
state highway, sir?

i23} A: That is K-32.

tz41 QG At the time of commencement of
the lease,

Pages 43
(1 did Shield have sccess to Kansas
Avenue?

(21 Ax It did it in this drawing, and this 13
drawing depicts it,

(41 @: S0 thiv entmnee 18 on Shield’s
propenty i5) in this diagram?

(] A: That is correct.

i1 Q: Now, T see a reference to raips,
anul then s a squiggly line that appeat to
connect the Shield @ facility and Shad-
rxll facility at commencement of no the
lease. Did those ramps exist?

1117 Ar They did not.

- undertook with [15) respect 1o thesg

121 Q@ Okay. Do you idenily them as

rarmps 1131 wday?

1141 A: 1 believe in Fleming's vernacular,
1151 they're identified as masking points,

notth amd ns) south matter points.

the lease, nsy those ramps have been
construected?
(9] A: They have.
200 Q: And now theyre called master
links?
(211 A: T'hat's how Fleming has referred
to i, 122) Correct,
1231 Q: Now, with respect to the access
thar 124 you've identified that Shicld hadl,
did Shicld have

Page 44
111 aceess to borh casthound and wes-
thound traffic on (2 Kansas Avenoc,
which is also known as Kansas 13 Ligh-
wiy 327
i41 A: They did.
151 Qi Again, looking at this docuiment,
there 6 appears t be another building

identified as 17 Shadrull facility 5300, Do
you see that on the s map, sir?

191 A T see the Shadrll facility.

o) @ To your knowledge, what docs
that (1) represent in this drawing?
1121 A Aboura 417,000 square foot ware-

" house.

1131 @ And is that owned by Shield?

1141 Az It is not.

115 Q: [s that on Shield's properiy?

6] Ar Mo, sir,

171 Q: And Shield didn’e own ic at the
time of 112j the leases, did ie?

1191 Ai No.

1201 B Are you property manager of the
Shadrall 21 facitity?

122 A: [ am not,

(231 Q: To your knowledge, did either

yout 124 cornpany, or Intermohile, or
Shields, or DEC huve

Page 45
(11 atry relationship to the owner of the
Shadrall 12 facility?

131 A: Mo, sic
[ Q: No, you don't know, or 1o, you

1171 Q: So since the commencement of | about 22000 squate foot of office spac

have no |5] relationship?
161 A: No. T have no relationship.

(71 Q: Thank vou. | just wanted to mak)
sure we 8 had a clear record,

9] After the execution of this lease in
Sepretnber 1993, did Fleming underiak
any iy alterations of the prefises?

113) Ar Extensive alterations.

113 Q@ Would you generally describe ftP

™

the (i Court the alterations thar Flemin

buildings?

nér Ar They removed the rail spur from
the main (171 line that entered the fad-
ilities west of 5150 and 161 east of 52000

119] In the 5150 building, they added |2

(211 elitnifzting about six dock doors.
5150, they 1221 converted dry ward
housing to about 530,000 square [23) [e
of refrigerated space that would b
utilired |24 4t 8 temperature of 26 w 3b
degrees,

I*age 4

111 They connected two cortidors be[
ween 12 31530, 5100, and 5200, And 4

5200, they converted 12 it [rom a dr|
warchouse 10 a 2Zhelow freezet, |
which required the removal of a flodg
instaflation 15 of a glycol system.

151 In the facility at 5150, they 7] coff-
structed what is commonly known as
compressor s room that maintained th
ammuonia system, And they (91 installe
piping across the roofs of those nd
buildings o effect the refrigeration i
buildings (11 %200 and 5100,

112) They nurde other interior alteatio

13 ter the interior walls to set th
refrigeration 14 walls and provide [©
refrigerated docls.

1151 Q: Did they also build the $23%
Duileling?

e Az They did build the 5250 buildin
as well 17yus what is identified on Exhilby
B as rumps more 18 kiown as mast

links that connected to the (e Shadex
property.

o] Q Have the fire suppression systeim
been 2 interconnecred?

e —

.

i22] Az ‘They have,

(23] Q: The control panel for the fire |3
suppression systenl, 5o il a fire gocs off
and you

Page 4fF
01 need o look at a confrol panel 'r.I
identify where (21 a fire occurs, where
that fire control panel 3] located?
141 A: The alatm systemmn that totators Lhg
fire: |51 suppression systerm, if that’s wh
you're 16) referring to, the hase station K
that resides on 7) the Shadrall prope
in what is commonly reforred st to as
guard shack at the entrance at $300.
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191 Q2 Anel 5o the conrrol panels for the
alarm o) system which also controls the
fire suppression (1) system is lacated on
Shadrall’s property, not 112) Shicld's pro-
poeny?

a1 Az That's correet,

D4] Q: I'm o going 0 — excuse me. I'm
going 0 (151 ditect your auention Lo
Exhibit Number 10in your 16 hook . And
I have a blowup that T will —

1171 MR. BENEDICT: IfT mayapproach 1k
the easel, Your Honor?

[+ THE COURT: Maybe you should br-
ing (=0 it 5o that others can sce it as well,
Hring the 21) cascl ower,

12z MR. BENEDICT: Unfortunatcly, it (23]
doesn’t have legs, It has to stand on a
table,

124] THE COURT: All right. You can

l Paé}m 45
1) leave it there then,
121 BY MR. BENEDICT:

131 Q: And for the Court and counsel, Lthe
blowup (41 is an exacl copy of Exhibit
Number 10.

51 Mr. Malinee, with reference 1o |6
Exhibit Number 10, can you identify thatr
[or ithe 171 Court?

151 Az That's an ashuilt survey, which is
dated g July 9, 2003 as proparcd by Road
Surveyors, Ing,

(in] Q: Andaretheylicensed surveyorsin
the (1] State of Kansas?

1121 A They are.

(13 Q: Andias there authenucation of this
(4] exhibitattached with their seal along
the lower (15 fght corner of the doc-
utnent?

116 A; There is.

117) G: Okay. With respect to this survey,
would ts) you identily — and if it helps
the Court, cither (9] have Mr. Malinee
step o the blowup or merely walk (20 us
through the map o identity the master
links 21] and the access issues.

1221 MR. BENEDICT: [ don't know how it
123 womld be best for Your Honor to be
witlked throngh (2i ir.

Page 49
1 THE COURT: He can just tell me (2
where it is on the survey.
15t MR. BENEDICT: That's fine.
i BY MR. BENEDICT;
151 Q@ Mr, Malinge, would vou divect the
Court s and explain to the Courl where
the master links (71 between the Shadrall
facility arc and the Shicld () [acility?
= A There's two masier links. There's
ang at (0] the wp end of Lhe property
ling close o Lhe 111 Sante Fe Railroad
lines. That was consLrucLion.
n11 And then there's one on the middle

13 af the page thar connects the %200
building ter the (e Shield.

ns @ Qkay. Can you geoncrally describe
ta the pe Court the nawure of the
construction of the mascer (7] link sy Are

, Lthase LEMPOrAary OF DErianel | 18) struc-

tres?

w1 A They're huilt out of cast conerete
with () permancnt roof fittings that
attach the two (21 facilities,

1221 Q: Okeay. And with respect 10 those
miaster 231 Hnks, there is a vertical line
running through 241 those towards the
left-hand side of the master

Page 50
(11 links_Is that the property line?
(2] Az T'hat represents the property line.
IU's 131357 leet eastof the east wall uf the
Shadrall (4] property.
151 Q: Angd if you continue down that
propetly (o) line unil it intersects with
the highway, Kansas 7] Avenuc, is there
currently an ACccess poinL onLo (&) Kansas
Highway 32 from the Shicld facility?
19 A: The asbuilt survey identifies an
acecss|10] pointrthat was existing priorto
the alterarions 1) by Fleming. There is
not an ACCEss point 1o that (121 street at
this point in Lime.
113 € Ardd there are two cireles along
Kansas 114) Avenue, K-32 Highway Do
those represent the ps endpoints of
where the prior access existed?
1761 A: Thereahouts, ves.

117 Q: Okay. And it you also continue
south —psjorpardon me,yeah, south on
the map, onto Kansas 19 Avenue, Kansas
Highway 32, is there a median on (20
Kansas Highway 327

(211 A: There 1s a median.

1221 @: And is therve a median onr ro altowy
access 1230 to the Shield facility?

124] A Not on this drawing, neo, sir

Fage 51

i Q@ And as it exists today, 15 there a
median 21 cut 10 permit access from
easthound Kansas Iighway 3 32 onto
the Shield facility?

A0 A UTnelesr the Shield factlity, there is
not (51 40 ACCLES,

6] Q: Now, Lthink you identified that the
[7] property ling is 357 feet from the
cdge of the g building?

11 A Eastof the eust wall of Shadeall’s o
property. That's cortect.
1 Qi Okay.

12 THE COURT: That's
Shadrall property?

114 THE WITNESS: That is correct.
115 THE COURT: Okay.

s BY MR. BENEDICT:

from the (15

Page 48 - Page 533 (10)
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17 Q: And how clase — pardon me. Ler
me 18] rephrase thad

1191 Could you open up this prior access
120t podint without being within 20 fect of
the Shadrall (21 property linc?

1221 A: Thelieve current DO regs do not
allow |13 an access from a highway
within 22 feel of the 124 property line.

Pago 62

] @: Okay. S0 could you physically at
this |z point in lght of the DOT regs, and
I'm asking (3] physically as it — as with
respect W this [ property line, you
couldn’t relocare the prior (s access
paoint becavse it would be within 20 feed
of 161 the Shield property line?

v7i Let me rephrase rhe question, (@) Was
the prioraccess point within 20 o) feetof
the Shadrall property line?

1] A: I believe it was.

(11 @ Now, Mr, Malinee, again, referting
ter 12] Exhibit Numbcer 10 on the casy side
of the Shicld 13 facility, the building
commanly known as 5250 (14] Kansas
Avenue, there appears to be a parking
lot. s 1s that parking 1ot on Shield’s
property?

net Az Ihink you tieed w restate your |17
(uestion.

1181 @ Okay. Referring o Exhibit Num-
her 10, -

119) A: Mimchmim,

12 @ — first lee's identify 5250, 1ave
vou 1) located S2507

122 A: I've located 5250,

1231 Q: Okay, bnmediately east of the
5250 [24] building, is thete a parking lot?

Page 53

i A: The diagramn indicates there's a
patking 1z lot and 4 detention basin,

131 Q: Now, is that parking 1ot and dele-
nrion 4 basin located on Shicld's pro-

purty?

151 Az It is not.

s Q: Okay. Nocs Shield have access to
that (7 parking lot from the 5250 build-
ing?

® A ‘T'hey do nat

(2] Q: Why now?

et A: It's not their propetty.

1111 Q: Okay. Are there any doors on that
side 112) of the $250 building?

i3] Az There are no dock doors in the
5250 1141 building.

s @: All right. And what is a dock door
for 116 the Court?

17 A Tt's a door rolled up normally ten
Try ten g that ullows trucks tohack upin
the facility in e which you can load
merchandise inand out ofthe w2 facilicy,

21 G And nol 1o overstate the obvious,
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but is 1221 that important fora warehouse
facility?
1231 A: I would think that it would be.

(24 Q1 Are there any other charac-
teristics of

Page 54

(1) the 5250 building which Mmit its
ucility as a (2 warchouse?

(31 A: Well, ity urility i litnired by the 14
dlesign of the warchouse. And without
specific 5 dock doors in that facility, the
closest dock 6] doors from the back of
that facility are in excess (7] of GOO feer,
And thosc dock doors would only (3
reside on either Shadrall’'s property and
or NDEC's 19) property.

1o Q: Now, dock doors, just talking
about dock 1111 doors for the momenr. I
think in one of the r2;depositions,one of
the transcripts reflected thae 3 as
doctor And Ijuse dlon’twant to talk about
141 medical doctors.

1151 Are dock doors normlly locared at
1161 ground level?

n7 Az No, They're the dock door which
reside n1a1 51 to 46 inches above ground
outside the (19) building.

[20] Q: And would that correspond 1o un
inside (21] floor level?

(221 A: That's correct.

111t MR, BENEDICT:Is that going to (2
hlock anyone's view?

13 MR. FRYE: We can't see it

14 THE COURT: Well, you can move. [5]
That's fine.

161 MR. BENEDICT: Can you see the (71
cxhibit?

(%] MR. ORGEL: From here, il it's akay 2|
that I can stand.

1vi BY MA. BENEDICT:

1] Q: Mr. Malinec, there are photog-
raphs n artached o the side of that
exhibit. Can you 1131 idenufy those pho-
tographs for the Court?

114) A: T can. The top rwo photographs
are dn 1y east and westhound picture of
the north master e link berween 5250
and the Shadrall propery.

1171 The center two photographs are an
118 east and westhound pictore of the
south master 191 link between the 5200
and the Shadrall propety,

1z0; And the bowom three pictures, the
|21 first one to the left isa picture of the
existing [221 median just south of the
original entrance to the (23] Shield pro-

- perty.

(73] Q: Is the inside floor levelofthe 3250

[24] building elevated?
e _Pagg -
i Az In the areas that you've identified
in 12 that north addition, it is at ground
level,
131 Q: So even if you put in dock doors,
you'd 4) have some difficulty using that
fzcility?
(51 A You'd have to either raise the floor
of 1o) the faciity 51 inches or dig a hole.
171 Q: I'm going to ask you, Mr, Malinec,
now ter g turn ko Exhibit Number11,and
dsk you to identify 19 that for the Court.
10 THE COURT: I'm sorry. What [11] ex-
hibhit number?
112 MR. BENEDICT: Txhibit Mutnbwer 11,
113) Your [onor.
141 THE COURT: Thank you.
1151 THE WITNESS: That is Page 2 of 2 [14)
of the road survey dared July 9th, 2002,
Al it 71 provides a detailed blowap of
the propertics at (18] 5200, $250, 5100
and 3150 Kansas Avenue,
ne MR. BENEDICT: If it please the jzo
Court, I think I might be able o urilize
some [21]space here onthe cornerif that
won't block the 221 view of any of the
parties from where they're 123 locared,
124) THE COURT: ‘F'hat’s fine,
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(211 The second picture is a picture of a
Hage 57
111 curh that has been allered at the

original 121 entrance 1o the Shield pro-
Coplerty off of Kiansas 32,

131 And the last picrare, Picture Mumber
1 7 is a picture eoking south from the
%250 parking 15 1ot towards K-32 which

idenuifies that that (o) existing original

enmrance had been closed and was 1
uscd for uailer parking.

i# @: Are these true and accurare phoros
of the 9 stare of the propenty on
September 9, 2003 when no the road
surveying —

(i Az They are.

naQ: — and rthis sorvey was con-
ducred?

1131 1s this still the status and an (i
accurate depicrion as the property sits
turclay?

115 At s,

He @ Now, with respect to the diagrar,
there 171 is space identified as freezer
space,50 — pardon 1y me Isthut 69,360
square feel?

e Az That's the internal square footage
ofthe o freererspace in 5200, And then
the refrigerated 121) dock, an additional
18,210,

(221 Q: And are these the pats of the
bailding 123 that were altered by Fiermning
o become a (24 refrigerated freezer
warehouse space?

Page &8

111 A: They are.

12] @ As of the commencement of th
bankrupiey 31 case on April 1st of 200"{.
what was the 1) approximate terg-
perature in the freezer, if you 151 know
161 Ar About 22 below.

(7] @: And thatisthe 3100 — pardon m.
(g1 That's the 5200 huilding; correct?
19 A: The 5200 building,.

p1o] @: Ang that's the Shicld facility; co
rect?

1111 A That's correct,

1121 @: Okay. Now, moving 1o the cast o
the 3 map, there s an arca listed
refrigemtor [14) stotage, 34,960 squarp
feet,

{151 I30 you see that on the map, sir?
1161 Ac T do.

1171 Q: And immediaiely north af tha
there is 1y another area identified rd-
frigerated storage, n9) 7,240 in sgoac):
feet. [0 you see that on the map?

rzor A: I do.

1211 Q: Are those two spaces togeth
with 122 refrigerated dock reference
there the areas 23 converted by Flemin
to he refrigetuted warehouse 1241 spac

=4

£

Page §
it A: They are,
121 3 Anel as of April 1st, 2003, appro
imately i3 what was the temperature
those areas, it yon 1) know?
(st A In the 7,200 square foo space, ¥
wits (6] ahout 26 o 28 deprees.
171 I the 34 and 18 or 10,000 remerabef
15 refrigerator mted dock, it was aboug
35.
P G And would those  empermturag
hiave heen nol about the sane as of Aprjl
3rd, 20037
11 Az That's correct,
112 Q: At what point digd you becoin
aware of the 3y filing of the hankrupte
111i A: Morning of April 1.
ns @: And did you have occasion of
Aptil 15t Lo 16l visit the [acilities?
v A T did.
nal Q: S50 the observarions you madf
wirth respect oo the facilities are base
On YOUr 0] contempoerancous lkno
ledge of visiting the (2 facilitics on thag
date?
(221 A: That's correct.
1231 @: Okay. On April 1st, were there sﬂl

120 employees of Fleming on the prdg-
mises?

=t

i:'ﬁlge éD
111 Az Absolutely,

2 @: How many employees did, roun
nutubers, i 3 you knhow, were st

Min-U-Script®
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present on April 1st?

M A:In the three shifts, probably in
excess i5] of 400.

161 Q: Was there inventory - et me
rephrase (71 that. What was Fleming using

these warehouses 18 for, o your know- |
"y @ Okeay, Mre. Malinee, 'l ask you 0

ledge?
a1 Az To store food grade inventory.
ro] Q: 've: heard this described as the

Kansas (1] City Distribution  Center,

Wold that be a fair 2 description?

(13 A It s,

{141 Q: Okay. Did Fleming still have in-
ventory (s andoperations as of April 1st
of 20032

(16 A: They did.

17 Q: And were those operations con-
tinning on s April 3rd of 20037

el A: They wen:.

(20 Q: To your knowledge, how long did
they 121] continue 1o move inventory out
of that Tacility?

(za1 A: Right up until the end of May.

1251 @ During your visits in April, were
there 24 any capital impoovements
ongoing at the time?

Pago 61

11 A: They were in the process of roof
ing 3150 21t convert that space 1o
furure perishable (31 refrigerated space.

la] @: Whenyousaythar theyintended to
{5 convert it to future perishable space,
do you mean (o] Fleming?

70 A T do.

# @ And haow did you aceuire yout
knowledge 19 that they were intending
Lo convert it to future o perishalbile
Npce?

it Az Several — upon my observation of
the 1121 bnilding on April 1 and the first
weeck of April, oy several told. 1 noticed
that there was roofing (14 work heing
done, made a telephone call to D5
Fleming's employee, David Stegmann,
116 He identified that they were inthe 17
provess of moofing that, and that the ny
configutation of the moof is sighificantly
41 different than the existing roof for
the purpose 1200 of future refrigetition
space, that they were 121) going to close
their North Atlantic property and 22
move that facility’s inventory inco this
facility 1231 was the: original intent.

121) Q: And when you say North Auantic
property,

Pape 62

111 did Fleming maintain a warehouse on
Neorth Atlantic (2) Street in Kansas City?

131 A: That's correct.

14 Q: Now, il someone were to Lell you,
151 M. Malinee, that as of April Istand as

of 6 April 3rd these properties were | narth s of the common wall easement. (11 A: Ldid.

Pape 61 - Page 66 (12)

dark and with no |1 operations and
utilitics had been discontinued, a1 would
those have been accurate statements as
ol @1 April 3rd?

o) Az That would have been highly
Iaccurate.

turir fL2) it your exhibit book wo Exhibit
Numher 29.

13 A: T'in there.

(i) Q: Can you identify for the Court
what 15 Exhibit 29 157

161 Ar Thatisa picture ofthe roofar 5150

You're looking at —19) 'm sorry. ['was on
the wiiing.

110y Q: This 15 Exhilyit Nutnber 11, sit

pip A veah, It would be the eastern
pordon of n1z) the 45,610 square feet as
wellus the 22 580 11y seuare feet in that
picture on Exhibit 11,

141 THE COURT: Could vou say that (s

Agrain?

17 depicting the temporary termination

ling that had (18] been installed by D.C.
‘Tayloron orabout s April Gth throwgh
10th, You can sce in the (20 backaround
that D.C, Taylor's employees were sull
[21] on the roof, and that — the differcin
221 constroction of the two roofing
nurerials,

(23l Q: Okay. In looking at this phor
graph o 124) Exhibit 9 which part is the
new ool and which

Page 63
(1 parct is the old roof?
(21 A: The hright white to the right of Lhe
131 picture is the installation of the new
roal. The (4 rool 1o the left, which is gy
innature,isthe (s1oviginal metal steamed
ool 1 build.
i1 G And who wok this photograph?
171 Ac T elied,
1% @ And s this a true and accurate
depiction 19 of the temporary ler-
rination seam s it stood on poor abouot
April 10th?
ran A It ds.
(1@ I vouw'll wrn in your book to
Exhibit 1131 Number 3. And il you'd
identify for the Court (14 what that is.
1150 A: Thar is the south wall o the

o facilityat 1615150 o the left. It's a picture
" bheing taken from n7) the notth -— north

to the south. The left is the s in
stallation of the new roof. To the right is
the 19 existing roof,

120 Andinthe centeris Lhe lemporary 21
terminadon line that was installed by
D.Czn Taylor

231 @Q: Now, refetring back o Exhihir
Number 11, 121 which is the map and
survey of the facility, -

Page 64
[ Ar Mm-hmm.
(21 Q: — what portions of the 3150

nél MR. BENEDICT: would it helpthe (17)
Court to have the withess draw 4 line on
the map?

s THE COURT: Mo, just say it again,
n9) MR. BENEDICT: T'hat's fine.

1201 THE WITNESS: I'm looking at 21 Ex
hihit 11,

1221 THE CQURT: Yeah.

(3 THE WITNESS: The porion of the
lzd) tuof thut had been completed on
April 10th, 1

Page 65
111 believe was the gquestion, wionld be
the castern 21 portion of the warchouse
spuce identified as 3 4%,610suare feer,
as well ay the castern half of 14 the main
office thar is wdenrificd as 22 058,
51 The western, the terination line (6
wias installed iny north south linear ling,
and (71 te western 17 000 squate feet of
2150 was not (3 cotnplete.

i1 BY MR. BENEDICT:
ring @ d you say 17,0004
(1) Az 17,000 square feel.

112 THE COURT: Where's the 17,000 13
suare feet? Iy it delineated on Exhibit
11?

114 MR. BENEDICT: It ix not, Your 15
ITonor He's testifying that that's what is
16 rensimng olf tie ool w he com-
pleted. IIe’s ) trying o identify gra-
phically whete the 1 teriuitation line
was for the Court's benefid.

119 THE COURT: 50 it didn’t do all of (20
the 13,000 and the 22,000, or maybe —
dick it clo 12uy all the 22 0007

122 THE WITNESS: The: wosrern half of
1231 3130 which allirvixl 17,000 square
feet o he 121 completed, thar would
reside very close to the

Page 66
1 western ball of the mauin office, 22,000
syfuare 2] feet.

13 THE COURT: Okay (+] MR BENEDICT:

" And it runs north 15 south, 1 believe.

building had 3ibeen complotedthe ool

complered as ol April (41 10th ol 20037
15 A QE 51507

161 Q: OF 5150.

(71 A: 5150 is designated as the propertly

Min-U-Scripta

|5] THE COURT: Okay. All right.

171 BY MR. BENEDICT:

1B Q@ At some point after filing the 19
hankniptey, did you learn that there

were leaks o ocomTing af that — onthe
roof at 51302
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iz Q: Approxirmately, when was that?
131 Az That would have been about June
26th.

141 @: And clid yon visit the premises at
that 115 titne?

ne Al did.

n7 Q: How frequently were you on the
premises |18 berween April 15t and June
26th?

ri9i Ar Almost a daily basis.

o Q: Okay. And who is the Fleming
employee 21 you dealt with when you
went to the facility?

1221 A:Joe Struemph always escorted
me,

1231 Q: And what was your undersianding,
of 121 Mr. Struemphb's position with
Fletning?

(1) A: [ belicve he was the facility mana-
get

121 Q: Aned died Mr. Strucmph accompany
you un or 3 about June 2Gth when yon
nated the leaks?

1+ A: He did,

(51 G Okay. And where were those roof

leaks w1 located on or ahout June 26th?

171 A: Those ledaks were consistent with
the ) nooh-south rermination line and

August 26, 200p

21 Az That's unother picture of the in-
ternal 1o roof of 5150 along the tem
poTdary termination (1) line. It was in-
stalled hy D.C. Taylor, and it nz re-
presents a bulge containing warer,

131 Q: Okay. Turt 10 Exhibic Number 35.
And if i you wonld identify what that
depicts for the 1131 Coutt.

[1&] Az That is anather location along the
7 north-south temporary termination
line in Bullding pa 53150 taken from
inside the building looking up to 19 the
ceiling. Il represents a bulge which
CONLAINS [30] waletr

(2] G And last, Ul ask you to identify |z
Exhibil Number 36 1o the Court.

231 Az Thatis un additional picture of the
124 ¢eiling looking frivm the inside of the
property at

i*age 69
1115150along the temporary termination
Iine thiat ad 12 burst from the weight of
the water.

13 Q: And who took these photographs?
1) AT did.

151 Q: Andare these — whendid yourake
these?

161 A: Those pholographs would have

 heen taken 71 on — that would have

wern: identificd 9 right below that

termination ling,

(i Q: And if you'll turn in your book to
i1 Exhibit Nomber 32

1z A I'im there.

1141 @ Mr. Malinee, what is represented
Iy 1) Exhihit Nuniber 32?7

i151 A: That is a picture of the internal
ceiling 161 of the building ar 3150
directly below the 7] remporary ter-
mination line that was instalicd by (s
1,C, Taylor,

09 Q: Okay. And I'd ask you w turn to
Exhibit 1200 Number 33.

izn1 A: T'm there.

122 Q: Andd what does that pictare dep
ict?

t231 A That is a spot along the temporary
1241 termination line that was taken from
the inside of

Page 63
111 the huilding looking np towards the
ceiling 21 underneath thar temporary
termination.

131 Q: And is that bulge insulation bulg-
ing?

14] A Yes, iU's Glled with water.

151 Q: Okay. I'll ask you to turn to Exhibit
16 34

7] A 'm there,

1% Q: What does that exhibil reflect?

heenJune 26thin the 8 presence of Joe
stroetuph, Fletning’s employee.

o1 Q: Andarcthose truc and accurate o)
depictions of the interior cciling as it
existed (1) on june 26th?

2] A: They are,

o versations with any Flenming (11 enaplon

113 Q: And just so I'm clear, Exhibit 32, -

33,1001 34,35 and 36, are those the same
locations, of N9 are we just taking

photographs from different pepangles o -

the same bulge, or are they different?

1171 A: Those are separate amed distinct

locations nig) along that rermination line.
1) G 5o Uyve nowed, then, five sepaste
leaks?

[z0] A: That is correct.

1211 @ Okay. Il nowask yoo to tutnte 22
Exhibit Nutnber 37.

1230 A; I'mi there.
124] Q: Ifyou'd identify to the Court what

" that

Page 70
1] TERRCSCnEs.
121 A That represents sater that had
penctrated 13 through the temporary

" termingtion ling of Building (4] $150 and

spilled to the floor.

151 @: Please identify Exhibit Numbet 38,
if you 1) would, please,

17) A That is water on the floor dripping
from (8 one of the bulges in the internal
insulation. |27 That picture is dircctly
located at the west wall (10] ol the 22,000

- Stegmann on what would be o th

square foot office space directly
under the temporary termination line.
1z &: Okay. Would you idenrify Exhil

Nutnber 113 39 and Exhibit 40 for th
Court?

(11] Ar Those are additional pictutes :[

side (151 5150. Underneath bulges in thi
internal ng insulation directly, the te
porary termination [17) line.

e @: And did you take these phg
tographs, (19) Mr. Malinee?
120 Az T elicd.

121 Q: Andd did vou take those on of
ahour 1221 Jine 26th?
(231 A: I did.

(24] Q: Are they a troc and acouratg
depiction of
o o PELQQ 7
1] the property as it cxisted on Jung
26th?

12| A: They are.

131 Q: Since identifying the leaks on (1,
ubout 4 June 26th, have you had an
cotrversations with (51 Fleming cmploy-
ces with respect w the leaks?

11 A: ['msorry, Would you restate your |
question, please?

l# Q: Yes. Alter you identificd thar th
o0l 91 was leaking at these locations o
June 26th, did 1t you have any co

ey

e or Fleming representatives?
1nn A Qbvicusly, [ discussed these leak
with (1) Jo¢  Struemph, Fleming
employee, who was on site (14 4t th
Facility.

1151 Q: I¥d you have any discussion Wit?r
David 1161 Stegmann about these [eaks?
1171 A: He was aware of these leaks.
na) Q: Iid yor have any discussions wit
cither oy Mr, Struemph or with ME

Appropriate repair of these leaks?

1211 A: There was discussions with Jof
Suruemph (221 that he revigwed thes
pictures. Ife also reviewed (231 a lerr
fromn Blackburn Rooling that tdentificll
124 the specific issues as it pertained o
the

Page
(1) temporary termination line and th|
condition of (2] the roof,
{31 His initial response was that thar
letter was very consistent with the ::r:x
he s escorted onto the roofat 5150 fro
D { Taylor.
16 @ Okay. And I just want to break thife
171 down.
18] At some point, did you learn from |
Fleming's employees that Fleming had
roofing v contractor look at the roo
(1) Az Tearned from Joe Striempphat tl
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e [12) that he reviewed the lerter from
Bluckburm that ) these — Fleming had
asked and requested D .C. 14 Taylor, aned
he: had escorted 100G, Taylor an the 1151
roof.

1161 Atid his tesponse was that the letoer
117 was the same conclusion that the
I Taylor na employees -

19] @ And when vou say the sume con-
clusion, 20 whar conclusion are we
talking ahout?

A: Thut the | to adeognarely ,
121 wut the only way to adconately the lights in your facility?

repair |22 the roof was w complete the
installation of the 23 existing roof of the
17,000 square feet that had (24 notheen
compleLed.

|*ago 73

(11 @ Huve you had any conversations
with ID.C0. 12 Taylor with respect to this
toot?

141 A: T have.

141 Qi At any point in time, have you
instructed (50 1,C Taylor not to goon the
roof and work on the g roof?

171 Az T have not,

% Q: Mr. Malinee, 't going to ask youto
look 1 and refer in your exhihit note-
ook o Exhibit jwy Nutnber 12, 13 and
14.IF you would identify those (1) three
exhihits oy the Courr,

121 A: Those three documentswere doc-
uments on (135 Fleming's lerterhead that
were sent to — in the 114 case of Exhibic
12 — 10 DEC Investments. Inthe 15 case
of Exhibit 13 to DEC Investments,

1161 Andl in the case of Exhibit 14, to 117
Shicld Investments on or aboul June
27th.That g was unsigned by Fleming
Companies.

e Q: And now referring 10 Docuiment
Exhibit (20} Number 12, —

1211 Ar Okay.

(23 Q; — there 1% a reference in the re
line, 25 location, Kansas City, south
facility 2100 Kansas (249 Avenue, Kunsas
City, Kansas.

Fage 74
1] A: That's correct.
121 Q: Are you familiar with 2100 Kansas
Avenue?
13 Az [am nor,

11 Q: s 2100 Kansas Avenue a [Acility
Icased (5 (tom DEC Invesunents?

o] A: Best of my knowledge, DEC does
not own (7] the facility at 2100 Kansas
Avenue.

13 @ Oleay, When yvou received Lhis (9]
correspondence, did you have any con-
cerns?

l1o] Az limmediately called my atlorneys.

(1@ And what were your conocerns
with respect (12to this cortespondenoe?

In Re: Fleming Companies, Inc.

13 A: This correspondence  indicated
that 141 Fleming was using an unilateral
right to redraft 15 the lease. And that
wasn't consistent with what 16 — with
my understanding of previous Court (17)
procecdings.

(] And that 1 had a concern [or the 119
facitities, and the physical well being of
those 200 fagilities,

121; Q: Now, was this the first dme you
hud (22 received information from Flem-
ing that they were 1231 going to turn of(

[2i] Let tne rephrase that.

Page 75
111 In April of Z000, on or about (21 April
2l of 2000, did you learn that Fleming
wis (3] intending to rurn offyouratilitics?

1] A Yes. They filed a motion with the
Court |5 indicating that the [acilities
were dark and (6] vacated, and that they
recuested to reject the (7] lease at that
time.

81 Q: And what concerns did you have
with the (9] reguest to terminale utilities
and make your (o) facility go dutk in
April of 20007

1A Condition of the facility in that
certain pz) areas of the facility were at a
temperamre 22 03 below zero, And o
delere urilirics would atfect (14) those
hnildings, and possibly causc irreparable
115 harm.

1161 € A ar some poine, did you reach
an nyjagreecment with Fleming to restore
the peoaple (R tempecstore?

1191 A: That is correct.

1201 @ And would you describe whar
that (21 lemperature restorution plan
was?

221 A That the temperatore of the re-
frigerated 123 Facilities would be in-
creased no more than rwo (24 degrees
per day, maxinmmum ten a weck until such

Paga 76
1 temmperature reached ambient tem
petrature of 65 |2 degrees.

131 @: Ilad that procedure that you had
agreed w |41 with Fleting been con
pleted on June 27th, 20037

151 Az Na, sir,

s @ Was that procedure and that re-
storation [7) plan that you had agreed to
with Fleming ) completed, or would il

have been completed as of o) July 4th,

20037
{10 Az N, sir.

1111 Q: Ko if Fleming terminared rhe ol
ities on 12 this facility on July drh, 2003,

Coeould Fleming 13 comply with its ob-

ligations to restore the (19) temperature?
1151 Ar No, sit.
1o @ Okay. All right.

Page 73 - Page 78 (14)
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117] Mow, when you received this letter,
1181 did you go out o the facility, these
letters, 12, 19) 13 and 14, did vou goout Lo
the (acilities?

r2of A T was at the facility that day.

(2] @: Would you generully describe to
the Court 122) what the condition of the
facility was?

123) A: Tt was in a stace of disrepair, It was
1241 containing  residual  assels  sub-
scquent to the
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(1 DoveBid auction that contained hate-
ardous wastes.
[3] Assels that were purchased by buyers
131 had notbeen totally removed. And the
facility 141 was generully in oa dis
unclean disartay onder.
151 Q: Now, you've just mentioned Dove-
Bid, whao (s is DoveBid?
171 Az Thelieve they are the company for
which g Fleming contracted to hold an

| auction onor about 9 June Sthand 10th

o sell certwin assets that were (o
cuontained in these facilitices as well as
tithers.

ti Q When you first received notce of

. the pzp Dovelid auction, were there uny

issues with regard n3 to the DoveBid
Auctionthat cansed you any 4] concern?

(51 A Grave concern. The DovebBid por
sannel on 16 site hegan tagaeiig certain
sysiems that had been iy mstalled inthe
building for sale that was |13 iconsistent
wilth my understunding of our )
agreement with Fletning.

(201 For example, they began tagging the
211 cotmpressors. There were five com
pressors in the (221 compressor room.
1231 They lagged the amumonia storage 124
vessel in the compressor room. They
began tagging
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11i the air handlers for the refrigeration
system in (2] the facilitics at 5200 and
5130,

131 Q: Did DoveBid make any proposals
with 4] regards to action they intend o
tuke with regard (51 to vour roofand your
wialls?

151 Ar I don't understand the question.
171 Q: Let e rephruse it Did DoveDid in
their &1 malerials indicaie thar they
would e remaving, (9 either the toof or
the walls to remove items of o property
frenm your facility?

(1) A: Thelieve they had that option, you
know, [12] in those documents.

13 Q: And is that consistent with the
Drebtars (191 obligatons under the leage?

sl A No, it was hot.

el @: Did that cause you any concern
with 117] respect to tlie temperature
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resioration plan?

118 A: Significance concern. If you had
sold 1191 those compressors and removed
them, you would not (20 have been able
to abide by the two degrees, ten 21
degroes per week.

1221 G And why was this two degree, Len
degrees 12 — rwo degrees a day, ten
degrees a woek plan so 24 important to
yuu?
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11 A Immediately  following the ban-
kruptey, I 12 had telephone discussions
with Fleming's employee, 21 Dave Seg-
mann. And heidentified the mannering4
which they would shut the refrigeration
systems |5} dawn,

161 He identified that two degrees and (71
ten degrees per week maximum was
consistent with [p1the responsible means
hy which to allow the ) buildings to
contract without causing permanent [1o|
damage to the facilities when you're
bringing them (11 from 22 degrees
below zera o ambient 112 temperature.
ia1 Subsequently I had discussions with
114 0.0 Taylor or with RSC, who was the
contractar 18] hived by Fleming 1o moni-
tor the systers_ And they (0] concurred
with Mr. Stegmantt’s proposal o 17|

reduce — raise those lemperatures at

those rates.
ns Q: 50 you had concern about the
impact on 19 your biilding sttuctures if
it wasn't addressed inoxo the manner
described by Mr, Stegmann?
1214 Az That's correct.
122 Q: And did Mr Stegmann share those
(23] CONCETILS?
124] A: I helieve he did.

Page 20
M Q: Now, returning to the June 30th
Lme 12| fra me, the wemperarire: e
storation, 1 belicve 3] vou've identified
had net yet been complere?
til A: That is correct,
151 Q: I'nrgoing 1 ask you now to turn o
16/ Exhibit Nuraber 15 in your boak.
171 A Okay.
(% Q: What is Exhihit 15, if you'd des-
cribe 19 those two items for the Couar?
nop A Thoseare pichurestaken ofthe )
facilitics at Kansas Avenue on or ahout
July 1,113 2003,
113 @: And what does the first photo-
graph n4) wentify or reflect?
1151 A: Trailer patk at the docks.
114 Q= And is that the docks located ar
5200 117) Kansas Avenue?
(131 A: That's the docks located at 5300
Kansgas (191 Avenue.

(200 Q: Oh, I'm sarry, Okay.

1211 How about the fork? What is 22
depicted in the second picture in Exhibit
157

1231 A Disabled fofklilis thal were onthe
(2] proporty at 3150 Kansas Avenue.
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(11 & And there are dates on these pho-

tographs?
(2 Az On this purticular two, there arc,

(31 Q: Olay, S0 these photographs were
taken on (1) 7717

i5t A: That's correct.
161 Q: Okay. And did you take these 17

| photographs?

1&] Al didd,

(91 Q: Oleay.’I'mrning to page, oreo Exhibit
(o) Number 16, what 1s depicied in
Exhibit 167

11 A: Those are — in the first photo-

gruph, 12 those are propane tanks that

were on the 131 properties on 7/1,

1141 The second was a disabled scrubber
[15] that was on the properties.

nel Q: Also on 7/1%
117 A: That's correct.
1g1 Q: And you took these photographs?
no) A That's correct.

1200 Q: I you'll turn to Exhibit Number
17.

121y A: Yes.

122 Q: What is identified or depicred in
Exhilnit (23177

(24) A: These are forklifts that werne re-
naliiig
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(14 at the properties that contained
hatweries that 12 ook on 7/1 of 03,
131 Q Okay. Ifyou'll look, then, to Exhibit
14 Number 18, and identify to the Court
whuat is 15} reflecied in Exhibit 157
it A Those are addidonal forklifis an-
d/ove |7t tugs that was used in the oper-

Doation of Fleming i that were on the

premises as of 7/1/03.

(a1 Q: [ see you took 4 lot uf photographs
of nop forklifts. Why were you $0 con-
cerned with 1117 forklifes?

iz ArTlue to the nature that those
patticular |33} picees of equipment re-

guired large batterics that 1) were
havardous materials in nature, as well as
tial Large quantities ol hydraulic fluid and
other e fluids that could have harmto
the property if not (171 properly disposed
of,

18] @: To your knowledpe post-ban-
kruptey, did 1191 you have an agreement
with Fleming with regards to 2o the
disposal of forklift harteries and has
ardous (211 matcrials?

[22) A: That they would all be removed.

| identity 112} that to the Court?

P top 2 picture is the facility ar 5100, Al
i the bottom (3] picture is akso at 3100

July 1 3lse, I helieve we've now st

(231 Q: Birt us of 7/1 they hadn't been?
{24] A: They had not.

o Pagea BP
(1) Q: Okay Tl ask you now to turn to i)
Exhihit Number 19,
131 A I'm there,

14 @ Would yon identify for the Cougt
what |5 Exhilvit 19 is?
161 A Those are picnures inside the I'H/

ility at 171 3100 that represent assets f
Flgming thar were 181 stillonthe prope
on 71403,

o Q: And did you take those photog
raphs?

top A I did.
nu @ Okay. Exhibit 20, if you would

113 Az Thaose ure additional properties -
14| pictures that were taken at 53150 ar

S100 of 15 assets in the general cog-
dition of those e propertics thar ook

171 Q; Aned I see these are dared Ju
Auh?

18] Az That's correct.

(e G OF 'Q3 of the —

120] A: That's correct.

12y Q: And you took those photogtaph
220 A T dicl.

123 @ Continuing in the exhibit bool:
Exhibit (23 Number 21

Tt

-

Fage
i1t A: Those are additiona! pictures. TT

1] @: Okay. Are both of these phe-
tographs June 13 3 photographs?
16 Az Yeah. They were taken abour 6:
p.m.y7) that night.
iy @: Exhibit Number 227
i1 A: These are additional picrures thi
were (1 tken of facilivies, These -
present lotkhfis o) and forklitt hatterigs
that were on the property 12 as of 7/1.
(13 G Now, maving forward in lin‘l(‘..il&lf
ik

ulared that these 19 iems have he
removed?

1

n&; A They have.
n7 @: And that the temporary has nog
been (151 restored?
oy Ac It has.

(20) &: Aned the hazardous materizls hage
been 121] removed?

(221 A: They have,

1251 @: Were there employees of Flern
on the 24 premises on or abont July

—r

S F"ﬂgﬁ 5
111 Ar There were.
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(21 @: Okay. Whao, 1o your knowledge,
wis an 3] employee of Fleming and
present on the premises on (4 July 17
15t A: Fleming'semployee, Joe Struemph
and o) Fleming's employee, Douwg 1Tad-
BUOTL.

171 Q: And did they temain on the pro-
petty s through at least July 111h?

@ Az They did.

o1 Q: On or about July 27th, did you
have 111 oocasion to meet any uther
Fleming employees at 112 the property?
1131 A: The date you said was July 277
iL4) Q: Yes.

ns) Az Yes, I did.

e G And who did you mect wichy

uzt AT mer with Fleming's employee,
Jue e Struemph. Danny  Apudocka
(phonctic), Fleming's n9) etnployee who
resided in Texas. Along with Mike (20
Ferrish (phonetic), a Fletning employee
that [(21) resided in Texas.

1221 @ A1l right. And was Joe Struemph
there?

1231 A: Ile wus.

174 @ And not to belabor the point, but
who let
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[ you Lo the huilding?

21 Az Joe Struemph, Fleming's employ-
ce.

131 Q: Okay. As of July 27th, there was an

14 alarm system on this building, wus

there not?

151 A: That's correct.

1% Q2 1%d you have the alarm codes?

171 Az NO, 5IT

1% @ Okay. But you had been provided a
ser of 1 keys?

i) Az [had a key w the DEC and Shicly
(] facilitics as provided by Fleming's
cmployee, Joe 112 Strueniph.

113 Q: And when did Mr. Struemph pro-
vide that to 14 vou?

1151 A: TL would have been on or about
July 130 (1e) or 2nd.

171 Q: Okay. But you didn't have the
alarm [1e) codes?

a1 Az Tve never had the alarin codes to
this 1201 huilding.

1 Q: What was the purpose of the
meeting at (22 the building on July 27th?

(23 A:On July 24th, that Friday, Mr.

Stegmann (24 called me and requested
that his two employees Dan
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11 Apadocka and Mike Ferrish be given
an opportunity 121 o walk through the
fagility,

facility 141 with them?

151 A L did,

to) Qi Orkcay. Now, did they call you o get
171 acCess 1o the building at this point in
time on 4 July 27th?

) A: Mr. Sregmann called me and usked
it 1 o) would walk through the facility

with thetm, and I 1) conceded to that.
They gained access o the (12 Lacility via

~ Joe Stroemph.

1131 Q: Okay. Now, the premiscs as they
cxisted (141 ofr that walk through, they
had — Fleming had ns largely addressed
during the month of July, then, (15 the
issues that we now have identified on
the (71 photos from the 1st of July:
they've now cleaned s the premises?

o] Ar Thal's correct.

lzor @: Oleay, Now, did you have any part
in the |21) cleaning of the premises?

1221 Az At times, through the period bet-
ween July (23 1 and July 15th, Fleming
waus unahle to acquire 124 vendors o
perform the services needed. S0

Page 88
111 Fleming's employee, Joe Struemph,
tequested my 2 oassistance 1o oliain
vendors o assist in his 3] management
clean-up of this facility as directed 14 by
Fleming,

151 Qi Did yen, as the fandlord, incur any
161 expenses with regards to the clean-up
af the 7 Lacility in the maonth of July?

AT did due ro the impaired credit
capacity (o of Fleming.

1o Q: All right. I'm going o ask you to
look minthe second exhibit book . And
I'llask youto pnaturn to Exhibit Number
38M as in Mary,

131 A 'm there.

n41 Q Wouldyouidentify Exhibit S8Mas
in Mary i+ for the Court?

(16l A That is an invoice from Envie
owash for 1/ services incarred to power
wash the interiors of s the refrigerated
spaces in 5200 and 3150 Kansas 19)
Avenue.

r201 Q: And forgive me for heing a little
dense, 211 bt the company's called
Erwvitowash. Is thar a 22) special kind of
cleaning company?

51 A; They specialize in the cleaning of
food 20 grade facilities.
I'age 89
11 Okay. Were there any problems
that 121 developed at the end of June or
early July with 31 respect wo the floor of
the facilityinthe i refrigerated portions
of the warehouse?

151 A: There were. We had a signilicant
modd 161 problem that had arisen due o
the increasing 71 temperatures in the

fromuhe ambient temperatyre outside o)
combined with the general uncleanty
condition of o food that remained in
these freerers, And that 1y mold wasan
ongoing probletn which concerned us
1121 grearly,

(131 Q: And wasthe power washigg that's
i reflected in the Envirowash invoice,
which i558M 15 a5 in Mary,incurred asa
NUCCEEArY EXPENnse my 16 POwWer clean
those floors to address the mold 17
issne?

nat A: Well, the services — Envirowash
were 191 confracted by Joe Siruemph,
Fleming's cmplayee, 201 and he nego-
tiated these services be provided and ()
billed to Intermobile Markeing,

1221 Qi Norw, is it fairto say that the facilivy
(23] was nol brooto clean on July 1st#
1241 Az Very, very fair 1o say that,
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(17 G Bul i 15 now?
12 Ar It 15 now,

151 @: Okay. uring the month of July, did
til Intertnobile Marloeting  incur  ex-
penses an hehalf of (51 DRC and Shield
with respect w these properties?

i) A They did.

171 Q: Ifyou'll turn to the beginning ofthe
(8] Exhibit 38, there is a ane-page doc-
nmaent, which is o Exhibit 38, under of
the rabs,

el Would yon identify this exhibit to
the Conrt?

2 A: This is a listing of vendors and
amounts i3 Lhat were incurred by
Intermobile Matketing for n4) the beng-
fit of 12EC and Shield for services during
(151 the monhis of June, July, and Auguost.
6] Q: Okay. We'll comie back to legal
1¢es a (14 lictle bit Latesr

Nl see abill dated June 3rd, 2003 or ng)
an irem refercnces 7/3/2003, Board of
Public j20p Ltilities, water, and then an
amonnt of $86.84. 12110 What does that
tepresent?

1221 Ar That would have been water char

| gesatonc (331 of the facilities for storing

wirerunderneath (44 those conrracts for
3200 or 5150

Page 91
1] @z And if you'll turn ro 584, is that an
2 dnvoice o hilling statement from
Kansas City 13 Board of Public Utilities in
the amount of, ) $836.84, that then
corresponds to thar ftem on your |5
char?
161 Az That is ¢omrect,
71 G: The next itern 732,000, Board of
Iublic (3] Thilities, another $86.84,
1@ Is that a scparale invoice?
no) ATl is.

B And did yon walk through the
Pagc 86 - Page 91 (16)

refrigerated space, And the 15 warm air
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(111 Q1 Okay. And doe that correspond w
Exhibit 112) 58B as in hoy?

1131 A 1t does.

(14) Q: Again, that was a utility service [15)
incirres yon, paid by Intermobite Mar
keting for nel those properiies on July
Ard?

1171 A: Yeah. Customer's name is Shield
(181 Investments,

1191 @: Okay. Itern — next item on your
list of 1200 98, there's something that's
identified as Backus 20 Jawn Service,
%383.00.

122 What does that represent?

{231 A; That's kawn services rendered in
2003,

124 Q: Is that a4 care and maintenance
issue with
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(11 respect to the properties?
21 A It is.
13 Q2 What was the amount of ihat
charger?
11 Az 8385,
151 Q: And doces that correspond to what
is 16 represented as Document Number
S8C as in charms?
171 Az It does.
w1 & Maoving down the lis, ©see two
locksmith o bills.
rof A Mm-limm.

My Q: Oneintheamount of 203,23 and
one in 12t the amount of $661. 507

1131 A: Thal's correct.

1141 Q: Canyont explain to the Court how
those 15 bills arose?

ner A On or about June 30th, at about
midnight, |17) Fleming vacated the pro-
peny by releasing the pa) personnel
security services that were maingained
11 at the facility,

1201 Om or about 7:00 a.m. the next (1)
morning, 1 arrived at the facility. Joc
Seruemph, 1221 Fleming's employee, was
there.

123 He indicatedl thar the goard service
1241 had heen terminated by Fleming, and
tlust the
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111 facility was not secured. There was as
manyus 12 five different deoors that digdn't
even possess 131 locks,
11 Q: Now, did you communicate with
the 151 Shadrall landiord with respect w
cost of the 1§ locksmith?

71 A: I did notily them that there was
cost of 131 a locksmith Joe Struemph, at
that point, had j9) discussions with Flem:
ing personnel.

0] They indicated thut they needed to
[1i1 secute the propetty at that point.Joe

called a |t2) vendor in which he main-
tained a relarionship iz throngh Flem-
ing,

(141 The: vendor wouldn’t responed.

nsl @: Did Mr Struemph ask Intermobile
nel Muarketing to lend ity credic for
putposesof (1) gettitg a locksimth oo Lo
the propetrty?

18] A: That's correct. [ identified Soall-
wood g asa vendor that would respond
if he called them,

201 @ And who did Smallwood Loc-
ksmith deliver (21) the keys 1o after
rckeying the facility?

1221 A: Fleming employee, Joe Struemph,
231 Q: Which of these two bills relates to

the 124y Shadrall facility? And these are
muving forwurd

FPage E_M
(1 in the exhibiis, I'm sorry.

(21 No exhibit. Do you recall whetlier 13
one of those bills was related w the
shadrall ja facility?

151 A: Tdo. The $661 was related 1o 5300,
and g the 203 was related 1o the 52 —
5100 building,

(71 Q: S onlythe 203,23 wasincurred on
berhalf s of Shicld and DEC?

o A Well, 1 believe both hills, to some
[ extent, were incurted on behall of
DIC and Shield, 111 because there's no
internal security between the (12) master
links. 50 1f you don’tsecure thie 5300 [13)
property, you have no security at the 52,
ot the 1141 100 property.

(151 Q: Okay. Moving torward in ¢xhibit —
back g to the summary, Exhibit 58, the
nextitem is (171 another Board of Public
Litilities in the amounr of 18] $6645.

(12 A Yes, sit

201 Q: And does that correspond to Ex-
hibyit 58F 1211 45 in Frank?

12 A It does.
1231 Q: Oleay, Andd the next item, Board of
Public |24 Utilitics for 36035.258,
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1 roes that correspond to Exhilbrit 580
|20 as in George?

3 Az I does,

pi Q: Okay, Next item is 3 cost for DOP,
W hat (5 is that cost?

(1 A: That's the cost of a riding sweeper
that 71 was made available for the week

July through July @) 11t

121 @ Okuy. And was that for the puthose
of noi cleaning the facility?

tp AThat's correct. Both  Fleming
cmplayee, 112 Joe Struemph, and Doug
Hudson operated that unit.

(131 Q: Lel me just muke sure I onder-
staml this. (1 You represented the

Min-U-Script®

8] Q: Okeay, | belicve we've alreadly -

operated it during the month of July?

161 Az Joe Struemph contacted 120 of
dered for 17 the sweeperio be delivere
{or that week, and (g operated thi
sweepern, and had the DOP invoice g
Intermobile due to the fact that the
credit had 120 been impaired and we
untable 1o find a vendor to (21] supply.
(221 Q: Okay. Next item on the st is roa
1251 surveys dated 7/972003.

1241 A: Min-himen,

=

Fage i
(11 Q: Isthat the cost ofute surveys wevg
(2] been looking at, kxhibit [0 and 117
i3] Az That s,
41 Q: And does thae correspond with
Exhihit 581 (51 as in Ivan?
i6] Az [t does.,
71 Q: And for the record, who, in fact,
ardered @ that sutvey?
19 Az It says Attention: Mark Benedict.
ito] Q: Olaay. Moving again, back wy 5§,
your 1) sumnury exhibit, thete a
additional items on e 7/ One f
Board of Public utitities for 13 electrd
|14 Does that represent an electric bijl
115 on the facilicy?
nel A I does.
i @z What was Lthe aimount of that bik
na A $1.086.81,
9] @: And does that correspond wich qf
4% in -- 20 pardon me, J as in jam?
1211 A: That would be correct.
1221 Q: Okay. And the nextitemis — oo
oy 2y ber another water hill dae

FA122003. What wus 124 the amoum
that hill?

~F

Paga %
1 Ar 76,35,
171 Q: The next one T have 1o rise oy
eychrow [31at,ics dated 7/15/2003%, RS,
Who's REC?
li) A Refrigerared Sysiems Corp. That
the |5 vendor that had a relationshi
with Flemitiy that 16 moniored thi
reffigeration syslems on site via 17) thefr
eployee, Kevin Ileishet.
18] Q: And what is the amount of that T
siry
(o Ar $044 24,
fro] @: So this was a bill that RSC sent tp
the 10 landlord even though it wis
Fleming's conumcroe?
2] A: That is correct.
(131 Q: S0 these are costs that Fleming
had not 141 paid at that time?
(s A Well, in our agrecment with thy
shu down ¢ of the [@cility, Flemi
agreed to pay for these 117] services.

(17) Page 92 -Page 9
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ked in ne part — and pardon me. Does
thut corresponed, (20 then, with 38Lasin
Larry?
1211 Az That is correct,
1221 @: Andbefore Liss it, is 58K ds in 25
Kirkpatrick the utility bill thatwe just 24
discusscd for $76.357

Page 98
(1) Az SBK? Thal is correct.
21Q:1 belicve we've already 1alked
about (3] 38M_ Is the Mabile Enviro, and
this was an 4 invoice received
TG/ 20047
13 A: That's correct.
l6t Qi Okay. Next itern on the: list is West
171 Material, Wonld you explain to me
what West ) muteriad is, and what they
woere doing?
9] A: Those are securily doors that had
been oy delivered 1o the facility that
were ordered, in (0] essence, to gain
sccuritybetweon Shadrall's j12) property,
and 5250, and 5200,
1131 G What was the cost of that, sir?
4 A 510,015,
1151 € Anul does that correspond to the
invoice ngthat’'s inclnded in the exhibit
hook as $8N as in (7] Nancy?
118l A: Thal's correct.
o) Q: Okay. Continuing 1o move for-

ward on your [20] summary of Exhibit 58, :

yvou have a relerence W o121 Sou-

thwestern Dell, Tuly 2 1se, 2003.

1221 Az U'hat's correct,

1231 Q: What is that hill for, sir?

1241 A: Thut's — those are phone lines
thal were
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i established subsequent to Floming
rerminating its (2] phone service to the
facilitics on or abouot 3] July 15th,
() Q2 Argany building systems tied to the
(5| phone system?

161 A: T'tnn sorry, T didn't heat that.

171 Q: Ate any building systetns tied to the
18] telephone system?

19 Az The main switch enters — allow 50
o) swirches located on %300, and then
subpanels from g there,

121 Oleay. And is that necessary forthe
1131 operation of the fire alarm and the
buarglar alarm?

a1 A: Phone systers are required for
Lhose.

(051 Qs 77212003, I see another hill, R&C
7f21.

né Az 'That's correct,

N7 Q: 814393, 1s that another hill (hat
you (18] got from RSC, Fleming's con-
tractor who was to 1191 reswore the
temperature?

1200 Az Thart is correct,

21 Q: Okay. And again, hefore T get
ahead of 1221 myself, Exhibit 580 as in
opera, is that the 235 telephone bill we
just talked aboue?

rz4) A IL 1s.
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111 @ And chen 581 us in 1'aul, is that the
121 teftigeration system invoice we just
talked abiout 13 for the $145.937

t41 A: That's correct. The invoice and the
work |3 order.

16 Q: Okay. Next item on your sunumary
list, 177 Mr, Malin¢e, on Exhibil 58 is a
Ferrellgas bill, g What is that?

(9] Az ‘I'har was propanc that was used 1o
aperate [10) the sweepers and scrubbers.
1111 THE CQURT: Excuse me, what?

nz2 THE WITNESS: Operute the swieep-
ers 113 and scrubbers.

1141 BY MR. BENEDICT:

1151 @: Which wias necessary for the
cleaning of [16] the facitity?

i171 A: That's correct.

r181 Q: And the amount of that propane
was $217

gy A 21,

120] Q: And would that correspond o
Exhikit $80Q (1] as in Q-ber?

(27 Ax Tt does.

125 Q: Going down your sumary ex-
hibit, Exhibit (24 Nuinber 58, Mr. Mal-
inee, there's a Smartway hifl
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M) [rom July 28th, 20035,
[2] What is that?

131 A: Thal's cleanitg of [loors inside the
[4) facilities a1t 3100 and 5150.

(51 Q: Would this he 1o address the mold
1880, 6] Mr. Malinee?

171 As Yes, in the office areas,

il @: Okay. And what was the amouont of

that v hill?

o] Ar 81,239,

(111 Q: And does that correspond (o Ox-
hibit S8R 12 as in Robert?

11510 Ac Tt does.

141 @ I see another bill on 7/28/2003
from West (15 Materials. Is that a duop-
lication of the one we ng) just looked at
on 7/18, or is this a different (17 hill?
18] A No. 1t's a duplication.

o) Q: Gkay, And lastly we've gol an
872072003 12001 charge or invoice [rom
Mational Fire. Can you 1211 explain whal

" that is ahout?

jzz] A; Thisis inreference toa service call
1231 that was reguested by Joe Sfrnemph
to service the 24 fire snppression system
A% it pertaing to an air

Page 102
111 compressor at the facility at $100.

12 MR. BENEDICT: And before T 13 con-
tinue with any quesdons on that, may |
confer (4] with debtors’ counsel for a
manute, Your Iouor.

151 THE COURT: Yes.

16 MR. BENEDICT: It it please the |4
Courr, I'm not going to ask M. Malinee
questions v with regards to this in-
citlent. The Dehrors have o) indicated
that they will pay this invoice and the (o
repdir 1 the sprinkler system that was
fdentified (1) in the July 27th walk
through,

1121 And can I have counsel, for the 13)
recotd, seknowledge that agreement?

114) MR. FRYE: Steven Trye, [or the s
Debtors. Yes, we have agreed wo that.
(16 THE COURT: All right.

171 BY MR. BENEDICT:

g @ Mr. Malinee, are the documents
that we've 12 idemificd as exhibirs, in
Lxhibit 58A down 2o through the num-
Liers we've looked at documents thar 21
came frotn your files?

122) Az 'They are,

23 @ Are they true and accurate copr
es?

1241 A: They are true and aoocorate.

Page 103

111 MR. FRYE:Just for the record, 12 Your
Honor, I do note that there are no — 1
think 13 Mr. Benedicr indicated that

. there are no ) supporting invoices for
. the entries under 13 Smallwood Locks.

i MR. BENEDICT: T'hat is right, Your |7]
Honor We do nor have any exhibit on
Smallwaood s Looks in this exhibit boole
And forthe recornd, 1w we are not going to
usk the Court for the nop reimhursemcng
of the esture for the locksmith )
service.

1121 BY MR. BENEDICT:

p3) G M Malinee, we were  talking
when we [14) first discussed the physical
natures of these 15 facilities, about the
configuration of the 1o huildings and
them being inwerlinked. In your vy
cxperience with these huildings, if the
Debtor na) surrenders these — and I'tn
going to put 19 surrenders in quotes,
returns these buildings 0 20 you, wi-
thout restoring the access on the Kansas
1217 llighway 32, will Shield have any
legal aceess 10 1221 the facility?

1231 Az Tt will not.

129) Q: If the estare does not address the

Page 104
111 interconnect by placing 4 fire wall
hetween the 12 Shadrall facility and rhe
Shield facility, will 131 Shicld be able to

- lease the huilding to your — 14 again, I'm

Page 98 - Page 104 (18)
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asking you 1o give me your opinion,

15; A: Restate the (uestion, I'm sorty,

16 Q: It was a poor guestion, That hap-
pens. 17) Jet lag, [apaelogize,

18 You've identified issucs of security (9
hetween the two huildings, the Shadrall
facility (10] and the Shield facility?

g A Uhat is correct,

nz2; Q: Okay If someone were to lease the
1131 Shadrall facility, —

1141 A: Okay.

1151 Q: — and store flammable materials

acrosol e spray cans, for example, what
impact wounld that 171 have un your use
ol the Shield facility based on (s the
existing configutation of these il
dings?

1o A Well, due to the nature of the
construction, the master links were -
stalled and 211 Ged o the eastern wall of
the Shadrall (221 facility, Uhere was not a
fire wall established (231 in the con-
struction of that wall as identified in |2
those pictures. It does not mect the fire
rdting

Fage 105
1y codde.

12180 thereby.any insurance vating (3 that
Shield was attempring to receive ontheir
tit facility would be predicated on the
products 151 storved in Shadrall’s Tacility.
For example, if we 16 were storing [ood
grade nuaterial in 5200, and 17 Shudeall
wus storing fertilizer, our buildings 18
wintld be rated frotn an insurance stan-
dpuoint with 19 the highest degree of risk
to the insurunce pop company, which
wiuld be the fertilizer.

it1] That's simply because there is nota
tt2) fire wall that exists between those
w3y Facilities. S0 they're integruted
and would have 114 to be sraded as one
[acility.

1151 Q: Al does the landlord at this time
aske 18] the Debror (o install a fie wall
between the (17) Shield and the Shadrall
facility?

18] Az I believe that would be approp-
riate,
1) Q: To build such a fire wall, will you
need 200 access to bath sides of the
property line?
Lzl A: Thelieve so.

1221 Q: 1o you have accesstothe Shadrali
1231 tacility, legal access to the Shadral)
facility?

124] Az 1 do not.

*age 106

(1] @: Do you have an easernent over the
Shadrmall 1 facility to access you to the
highway?

i3] Ar Not to the best of my knowledge.

i1 @ Andyou've notheen involved in 5
negotiation of such an easement?

161 Az Ahsolhuiely not.

71 Q: So o your knowledge, has the
Debhtor (/) obtained such an easement?
w1 A Not to my kiowledge.

(e @ And T don't know if it's an issue,
but 1 o ogoing to ask you a few
C]_th"SliOﬂS at the [12} Commencement of
the lease, do vou know if there 113 wasa
median on Kansas Highway 32 in this
5100 [14) block?

115 Ar There wias.

116 Q: T will ask you, Mr. Mulinee, again,
1171 we're’in the second exhibit hook, to

- turn to 18 Exhibit Nurnber 53, if you cun
o idendity what that 19 is,

120 THE COURT: What is the exhilnt (2n
nuinber?

1221 MR. BENEDICT: Exhibit Number 53,

1z3) A That's an aerial photogruph of

Kansas 241 Avenue which depicts the
Fleming facilities at

Page 107
(11 3300, 5200 and 5150,
21 And was this from your con-
struction files 3 kept in the ordinary
conrse of your husiness?
1 Az No, sit It was provided by road 15|
SLUTVEY.
i1 @ This is dated 19947
(71 A: Fhat is coreect.
(4] Q: Low many access points are there
on the 9 Shadrall facilivy as rellected in
this photograph?
nop Az Three.
111 Q: How many acoess points are there
(21 iddentified to the Shadrall facility?
(3 A One.
[ty @: IUs 4 very poor photocopy that
I've 115 received, but is there a median
reflected in 947
pay A There is a4 median cur at the
Shadrall 7y praoperty if thar's what you
arg saying,
net G Okay, But there was a median on
Kunsas (19 Highway 327
12y Az That's correct.
(21] @: Okay. Mr. Malinee, T'll ask you o
lurny 22 1o Exhibir 50, 5-0.
1z Az 50).
(2] @ Are you there, sir?

Page 108
1] Ar I believe Tam,
12 @: Okay. Can youidentify to the Coutt
what 131 Exhibit 50) is, 5-0?

1) AT turned to 59, Thar wasn't what
you (51 were asking,
f61 Q: Mo, Exhibit 50, 5-0).

Min-U-Script®

71 A: 50, okay. Tam there.
(v| MA. BENEDICT:If it please the -
Court, may I approach and put uf
angther hlowup?

1w THE COURT: Yes.

() MR. BENEDICT: Thank you, Your (1
Honor.

1131 BY MR. BENEDICT:

(14 G Mr, Malinge, conld you identifly
this 115 exhibit for the Court?
6] A lt's a Kansas Department of (1
Transportation survey that was done oy
or about s 1996,

) @: Okay. In the middle of the pag_i‘,
and if [20) 1 may indicate on the exhib
this block right 1211 here,

12 Can Debtors’ counsel see?
123 MR, ORGEL: Yes, Thank you.
1241 MR.FRYE: Yrs,

—

PRSP I
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111 BY MR. BENEDICT:

(21 Q: Would you read to the Court thi
third 13) linc of this hox?

14t Az Ity specifically states, close ExistiI:E
151 median break, construet Concte
median.

161 Q: S0 does this reflect thay there
an (7] existing median cut at least a8 1ag
a5 19964 for ) the henefit of the Shadra
facility?

1 A: That is correct.

nop @: Is there also a proposal wit
respect to 1) the access poing, which
immedintely north of 1121 that — legn
rephrase that. As of 1996, had 131 th
already closed up the Shield curhy pathp

114] A Mot on the date of this deawiig
This 15 drawing identifies the desire
close the Shield na entrance off of K 3R,
noLtherr property.

{171 Q: Mr. Malinee, did the landlord of-
ceive |1 prior written requests from t;l'
Debitor 1o close 9] your access?
200 A Not to the best of my knuwh:clgl
(21 Q: And that was reguired by Lhg
Shiclid 122) lease, 3200, wais i nOL, 4% W
had identified in 2y Paragraph 5.4.17
(24 A: That is correct.

=

* O

rr

Paga 1:ID
(11 Q: DNd they ask your permission i
install @121 hew roof?
st A UTnder 51510,
Fip Q2 On 3150,
151 A: No, sir,
161 @: Mr. Malinee, just to put a bookengd
here 71 on the examination, it thie
Dehtorsare allowedto (g reject the lea
and return, for lack of a betrer (91 terth,
this property to you inan as-is conditiof,

1167 will Shicld have any benefictal use §f

(19) Page 105 - Pagc 11
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that 1) property?

nz2 A: Absolutely not.

3 @ And why nor?

41 A: They have no legal aceess to the
f151 fucility.

ra] Q0 And isn't il trae, also, thar Shadrall
117] has control to your building systens?
s A: That is correct,

ro) MA. BENEDICT: No further 2] gques-
ricns,

121 THE COURT: You want to cross?

1221 MR. FRYE: Good morning, Your (33
Honor,

Page 111
(11 CROSS-EXAMINATION
|21 BY MR. FRYE:
131 @ Good morning, Mr, Malinee.
1 A: Good morning, Mr, Frye,
151 Q: Mr. Malinee, whe is Hanon? Is it
Hannan & Wedlin?
171 A: Hannon D). Wedlin?
i1 @; Yes, Hannon 1D Wedlin,
191 A: Mm-hmm,
1101 Q: Whe is he, sie?
11 Ar Anindividual that died in Decem.
ber of [z 1994,

3 @ And was he at one point rhe
owner of DEC (1) Tnvesrments, LLCY

[15] Az He was nover the owner of DEC
1] Investments, LLC.

1171 Q: What was his relationship, o your
ns) knowledge, to that comypuny?

(a1 A To DEC Investnents, LLC?

rza Q: Yes, sit.

211 A: There was no relationship,

1221 @ Okay. So you have noidea ot why

Fleming 1231 would address DEC Inves |

rments care of Hannon 13, 124 Wedlin?

Haga 112
1 ArT'he original lease would have
identificd 21 Mr. Wedlin as one of the
people w correspond (31 with,
ti) @ Butin your expetience at DEC you
didn't 5 have any experience with Mr.
Wedlin; i that 16 correct?

(71 A: That is noL correct.

151 @ Okay. What was your experience
with 19 Mr, Wedlin with regard o the
DEC lovestments?

nop A You're confusing me with your
CuesTions,

N Q:I'm sorry. What was your ex-
petience with 12 regard to Mr. Wedlin

with tegard to this lease at 1) Kansas

Avetue forthe faciliey owned by DEC 14
Investine nts?

1131 You said he was a person -
& A: Ynu’ru‘s]}r:.aking of DEC nves

tments, LLC 17y in —
(15 Qi Yes, sir.

el Al don't belicve 13EC Invesirme s,
LLC 120 existed until alter his death.

121 @: Okay. When did that come inte

. existence, [22] then, to your knowledye?
1231 A: Hisdearh oecurred on December —

[24] @: No. ' sorry.

Page 113
i1 A —- 8th, 1994

21 Q@ Aned then when was DEC Inves-
rents, LLC 13 formed?

141 A: I have no knowledge of thart.

1s] Q: T'hat s now the owner of the
propetty at el 2200 amd 51050 Kansas
Avenu; is that correct?

171 Az That is correct.

1 @ All right. And do you know who
David 191 Wedlin is?

pop Al believe he'd he the son of Mr

| Wedlin,

1 Q: And whar is his relationship, to
yonr 12 knowledge, to Shield Invesun-
ent Company, LLCY

(13 Az I'm not aware of his relationship
to that n4 entiy.

1151 Q: Who owns Shield Investments?

st Az T don’t know who owns Shigld
Invesrments, (17) LLC, if that's what your
guestion is,

18] Q@: That was my question. Who do
you report [19) o when you deal with
issucs related o the Shield 1200 property,
thar is, the 51, or excuse me, 5200 12
Kansas Avenue facility?

1221 A: I report to u Doard of Directors of
123] Intermorbile Matketing,.

121] Q: And do you know who they then
TEPOLL L

Page 114
11 aL Shield Investment Company?
121 A: T ey not.
130 Q0 %o —
AT do nor kenow the ownership ol
Shield |5 Investment, LLC, the specilic
ownership,ifthat's |6y what you're asking
me.
171 @: I'm asking if you have any re-
Lationship |8 with anyone at Shield
Investment Company, LLC 91 other than
throogh the Board of Directors at your
[1of company?
111 A: I report o the Board of Directors
at 1221 Intermobile Markering, Ing,
13 Q: And you have no ides of who
represents (14 the Shield Invesument
Company, LLC, visa-vis your 15 Board of
Directors?
nal AT do mot know who thar is, the

specific 117 ownership of Shield In-

Page 111 - Page 116 (20)
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vestment, LLC, i that's the iy question
you're asking,

{191 @ No . That wasn't the gquestion was
12u] asking,

[21] Az Okay.

1221 Q: I you know who at Shield In-
vesument (23 Cotnpuany, your Board of

CTrustees

[24) A Okay.

Page 115
1 Q: — Interacts with the Bourd of
Trustee. 121 Your Board of direcrors, as |
understand i, is 13) for the management
compaty thut tategges the 4] property
alL 9200 Kansas Avenue; is thar correct?
151 Az Intermobile Marketing, Inc. Cor
rect.
[+1 G And they mmanage that property on
hehalf 71 of the owner of the property,
which is Shicld 3 Investnent; is that
correct?
[9] Az Thar is corret.
no @: And who, o your lnowledge,
does i 111 Board of Directors inreract

~with? Whao 15 the Lice n2 of Shield

[nvesiment  Compaty  vis-avis  your
Board 113 of directors, if you know?

41 Az T don't know,

1151 Q: S0 you didr't — you personally
don't s deal with anyone at Shield
Investment Company:is u71that correct?

1181 A Treport — Ireport to the Board of
[ Dhitectors of Intertnobile Markering,
Inc.

ra0] @: Let e ask the question again.
1211 MA. BENEDICT: I'm going to object
1221 hbecanse it's been asked and an-
swered.

123t THE COURT: Crverruled.

124] BY MR. FRYE:

Paga 116
M@ I'm not asking you about your

i Hoard of 12 Directors, Fmasking do you

interact with anyone 3 adfiliated with
Shicld Investment Company?

141 Ar 1 puess my answer is [ — [ interact
with (51 the Board of Directors of In-
termuabile Marketing. o) Okay.

{7) Q: Is that a no?

121 A; That Board of Directors, | assume,
par interacts with Shield Investment, LLC.

1] Q: Okay. S0 youranswer Lo my quest-
ion,[111then,isno you don'Linteract with
anvone al 112 Shield Invesiment Com-
pany visa-vis these 1131 properties, you
personally; is that correct?

141 Az I'm confused.

s Q: You say you interact with Board of
ns irectors, and 1 uonderstand your
answer, I'm 17) asking you if you per
sonally interact with anyvone (1a)at Shield
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Itivestinent Company?

[io1 A No,linteract with the Board of 120

Directors of Intermobile Marketing, Inc,

1211 Q: Exclusively?

(221 A: That's correct.

1231 Q: Visa-vis the 5200 properiy?

124 A To the best of my knowledae,

that's
Page i17

[1] Carrect.

121 Q: With whom, if anyone, at DEC

Invesunents, 3 LLC do youinleract vis-a-

visthe 5100 Kansas (4] Avenue property?

15/ A It is consistent with what 've

testified ¢ with Shield. Ireport 1o Board

of Dircctors of (7 Intermobile marketing

Ine. and that hoard may s interact with

DEC.

191 But T don't specifically interact

with DEC,

(13 Q: 50 you have no knowledge?
12t Az Tsee — T don't know who owns it.

1131 @: You have no wdes who owns DEC
[17] Invesunents, LLC?

(5] Ar Not as L sit here, sir,
né1 Q: You don't have any idea who
vwi Shield 1171 ivestment Company?

118 A: I da not,

91 @ Mow, M. Malinee, just o point of
(201 clatification, you testified on direct
that the, zipwe Il cullit the walk through
with Mr. Apadocka 22 and the other
representatives of Fleming that (23] oc
enreed in lae July, [belicve yvou testificd
was (24} July 27th, which is, in fact, a
Sunday.

Page 118
i Bid that actually ocenr ona Sunday?
121 A: No Tt would have been a Monday.
131 Q: So that would have been the 28th?
(4] Az Thar would have been accurate.

13 @z Okay. T just wanted o make sure
gt 161 that right.

7 AL —

1% Q: Okay, Now, vou went through in
your 9 exhibit books. You can turn wo
themiif you want, 110 exhibits beginning
with Exhibit 14. Excuse me, 11] Exhibit
15, and you went through a series of [12]
pictures of the property at 5100 Kansas
Avenueand (13] 5200 Kansas Avenue asit
existed on July 1st 2003 114] and on June
30Lh, 2003,

115) Am [ correct? That's what those 116
pictures represent?

1171 A: That's correct.

n# Qi However, as of July 31st, 2003,
those o items reflected in those pic-
turcs have been 00 removed, Tor ex-
ample, the forklift; is that [z correct?

August 26, 2007

1221 A: T helieve T testified 10 wthat, yes.
1231 @: Yes, And what you — thar canister
we [24] saw sitling there, that's also been
removed?

Page 119
111 A Whaat cunister?
121 @: I believe iU's on Exhibit 15,
1351 A [ helieve 15 is a picture of forklifty
14] and a trailer,
151 @: I'm sorry. One mmoment, please.
161 You are correct. It's Exhibit 16171 Do
you s¢¢ those canisters there?
s A: Those propane Lanks?
o] @ Propane tanks, is that what those
are?
(o) Az T'hat’s what they are,
fry @z Iake itas of July 31st, those have
L been removed,; is that correct?
(131 A: I believe they have.
il Q: Andd the forklift or sweeper,
whutever is 115 the lower pictute on
Exhibit 14, that has been e removed ay
will; is thut cormect?
17y A I betieve it has,
i Q: And on Exhibit 17, the two for-
klifts (o represented by the top picture,
and the forklift 2o tepresented on the
hottom picture, those have also (21 been
removed as of July 31st; 15 that cotrect?
122] Az From DEC and Shield’s propetty?
143 Q: Yes.
1241 Al Yes,

Page 120
) Q: And Exhilit 18, the top picture
seerns o 12 be o forklift, and the hottom
picture seems to be 3 some so of other
industrinl machine. As of Fuly 14 3lst, 1
tuke it those have been retmoved as well:
15 i511't that correct?
i) Az From DEC and Shield's propeny?
17) Qi Yes, sir,
13 A Yes.
1 Q: And the debris that’s identified on
the o pictures of Exhibit 19, I believe
you testified 11 thae that is fromthe DEC
property; is that ) correct?
113 A That's — this wouold have been in
the (i boilding 5100 Kansas Avenue, 5o
that would be DEC,
s Q= Right. And as of July 31st, 2003,
those 16) have been removed, [ralee it is
that correct, or 171 it's been cleancd?
s A Twould agree with that.

19 Q: These items no longer appear on
the floor 2o of the 3100 building; is that
correct?

1211 A: I would agree with that.

[22) Q: On Exhihit 20, T belicve you tes-
tified —ps) which Tilding is this, again,
with the pictures 121) on Exhibir 207

Faga 127
111 A: The top picture is Building 5150
And (21 the botlom picture is 5100,
(31 Q: %0 those are both owned by DEC
right?
141 A: They are.
51 Q: And as of July 31st, 2003, thj
forklift 16 that yon see onnthe top pictut
is 1o longer aL 71 the 5150 building, is it
161 Az It is not.
1 Q: And this debris for want of a hette
o) term that we see scattered on th
floor of the 111 5100 building as of Jun
30th, 2003 isno longer iz there as ofJul
A5, 2003, 15 that correct?
13 A:That is correct.
114 @: And nn Exhibit 21, the items thal
are 115 stacked ar — nowy, strike that.
ns| Which facility is represented in thig
117 top picture of Exhibit 217
Dal A ST — 5104,
f91 Q: And is the bottom picture alsd
31007
1200 A Tt is.
1211 Q: Ancl as of July 3 1st, 2003, the ilem
hath 1221 on the top and bottom of lh‘{
picture are no longer |23 at the 520
facility, are they?
121 A: That is correct.

Page 121
111 Q: And finally, on Exhibit 22, which 13
facility is represented in these picturcj
131 A: Top picture is 5150, The bottoy
picoure |4 is 3100,
151 Q: And as of July 31 st, the forktifts an
160 other industrial machinery that an
identified in 171 those picwares have bee
removed from those s facilities, hav
they not?
9 A; I believe that's correct

noy Q: Now, [ helieve you testified Liml
Fleming i1 puid the rent for July, 20041
that correct?

N A lbelicve theywere ordered by thd
Court 13] 1o pay thai rent, L helieve that
rent was paid on pa) July 24drh.

1% @: Now Ihelieve that yout exhibit, j
wis 16) Exhibit 58 in the new exhibi
hook, there was an (1) ihvoice there [0
chunge of locks from a Smallwood [t
Lok Company?

g THE COURT: il we  stpulate [
they'te not asking for that?

121 MR. FBYE: Y5, we did,
1221 THE COURT: Let's not waste time.
124 BY MR. FRYE:

124 Q: Qlcay, My uestion was Yoo have
ST

Page 12

(1 of keys to the locks, do you not, MY
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Malinee T believe that was your
testimony 131 i that correci?

17 Al T believe Tiestified that Joe Struem-
ph 15 on or about July 1st or 2ND
provided me asetof s keysto the facility
at 3200 ane 5100,

171 Q: 130 you sill have those keys?

1 Az In my posscssion here, no.

{1 @: Do you have them somewhere you
can access 1o them if need be o go to
the facilities?

11 Azl do,

1121 Q: Now, with regard to the ilems you
have 3] identificd in the exhibit hook in
Exhibit 58, the 114) vatious invoices that
were incurred in July, 115 Fleming work-
ed with, which had paid for July work 16)
with youto make sure, for example, that
the 17) facility was cleaned by Envir-
owiash (1a) isn't that correct?

por Ar T don’t think I understand the
queslion, (20 steve.

211 @ T believe you restificd that Mr
Struemph zz and maybe another gen-
et on July &th or 9th, (23 whenever
that involce is dared from Envirowash —
1aq) A Which invoice, Sleve?

Page 124
11 Q: I'tl point and direct you o 1.
12 MR. BENEDICT: S8M.
131 BY MR. FRYE:
141 Q: It's 58M, sir.
151 A Okay. I'm with you.

161 Q: 8o you got — Lhey ussisted En-
virowash in [7) cleaning the building, did
they nol?

18] A: They nenaged Envirowash olean-
ity Lthis 19 Facility.

oy @ They managed them?

11 A Yeuah,

121 Q: What do you mean by “managed
them”, sir?

113 A: They worked and directed them
around.

1141 Qz Yo TFleming provided no resistance

arin with |3 Envirowash if that's what
you're asking.

14] Qi Yes, sir. T'll direct your attention to
151 Exhibit %80, [ take it that you are
requesting 16; that the estate reimburse
Intermobile Marketing 17 for the costs
incurred with regard w the phone i\
service.

19t Am 1 correct in that?

1) A: These hills represent the estab-
lishment 1y of phone scervice to Lhe
facility at 5150 that [12] monitors the

, ammonia system contained in the 13

i0 1151 having the building cleaned . They -

in facy, o) they ditected and managed
the; correct?

7 A Other than the fact that they
didn’t lend 1181 their crodit to it,

ne Q: Is youransweryes to my question?
o] Arl think my answer is thut we
provided (21) credit support for Fleming
to accomplish hat i) task.

(231 G Bul my guestion was: Fleming
assisted (241 Envitowash in cleaning the
huilding. I believe

Page 175
[ you testified they managed ir; correer?
12t A They were — they worked arm in

relaining vessels.

141 @ Tunderstand that, but my question
was: {13 Intermobile hus paid this hill; is
that correct?

61 A Intermohile has been invoiced,
can'tnzitellifyouit’s been paid, Mr Frye.
(8] @ S0 it ey o may not have been
paid; e cormecr?

120] Az It iy be un open payable irem gt
this 211 point in time.

1221 @: And am I — 1o refer you to my
otiginal 231 guestion: s DEC, and/or
Shield,ard or 24 Intermobile requesting,
reimnbursement from rhe

Page 176
1] Debuors for this bill?
121 Ar That 15 correct.
131 Q: Okay, But the hill is for service, and

1) in additian to having it turned on, it's
also for 5] service into August, 15 it tot?

161 T dlirect you to Page 30,sir,71where il '

says hilling for SCC,

13 A: August. July 23rd to August 20th?
19 8 Yes.

t1o] A: Thut's what it suys under monchly
[ chirge.

(121 Q: S0 the billat least forthe phone s)
service 18 [ur July atid Aupust; isn't that
[14] cotrect?

1150 Az It would appear thal it extends
Roth 16 those periods, i thal’s what
you're asking.

171 Q: And ' direct your atention 1o
Exhibit 1a] 980 [ believe you testified
that was a vtility D19 bill that went wo DEC
Investments; isn't that (20 correct?

1211 A: That's correct.

1221 Q: And for which property is this hill?
231 Az Serviee location is identified as
5150} 124) Kansas Avenue,

Page 127
111 Q: And you — it's — il you read to the
iz right ol the page at the op service
from 7/7/03% 131 10 83/13/03; isn't thut
correct?
141 A: That uppeurs to be correct.
151 Q: S0 it was service not anly for the
first (5] 20 somcthing days of July, 24 days

or the last 24 (7 days of July, but also first
13 days of August; 181 correct?

(9] A: That's correct.

not Q: Now, | believe you tesiified thar
the (11 doors that are represented by the
West Muarerial (12 invoices, how many
doorsare there thut were 13 purchased
pursuant to that invoice?

141 As Two.

150 Q@ Amd wherne were — have those
doors been 116 installed?

1171 A: Noy, sir,

14l @ 50 they are - they were pur-

- chasedd by g which company?

201 A: T believe that they were — in-
voiced 217 Intermobile Marketing.

2z Q: And where does Intermobile Mar-
keting 123) intend o install those doors?
(241 A: Those would be insralled on the
west end

Paga 1238
111 Of the masrer links, north and south.
12t @; The master links that connect the
131 Shadrall propeny o the Shicld pro-
petty; is that 4] correct?

15 A That's correct.

1% Q1 But you testitied thal those doors
have (7] nat yel heen installed; is that

CCOTTeCt?

1% A: No.No, they're sitting on the dock,
1 @i Omn the: Shicld property?

nep A wWell, ivs in the master link . I can't
[ tell you il iUs on the east or west side
of that (121 line, imzginary line.

13 It's on the south masier link is
where they're sitting.

1151 Q: Within somewhere in the south
mster 16 link?

17 A That's correct.

18] Now, 10 yourknowledge, were the
S100 and 1191 the 5200 buildings ever
conuncnly owied?

201 Az The 3100 and the 200 buildings
commonly 1z owned? No, they weree
tot.

1221 Q: They've always been owned by
SEPURALe 123 owners, to your knowledge?
12i] Ar Entitics, correct.

Page 129

1] G: Right. To your knowledge, did 1)
Mr.Wedlin, the gentleman you identified
in 1994 131 or has passed away us of 1994,

;. did he perform the 4 services you

performed with regard 1o the 5100 and
(51 2200 Kansas Avenue facilities?

161 Az No, kit

171 @: What was his relationship, it any, o
18] those propertics, to your knowledge?
to] Az Well, prior 1o his death, he would
have (wo) been lisied as a general partner

Page 124 - Page 129 (22)
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of Shield.

[y Q: Was he ever, o your knowledge,
11z atfiliated with DECY

13t Ar Thelieve priorto his dearh, he was
the 114 general parier of DEC,

115) Q: And the general partner of Shiceld?
1161 A: That is correct.

1171 G: But as you stt here today, you can't
teil nsjuswhoowns DEC, LLC and Shield
Investiment (10 Cotupany; i that cotrect?
(zo) Az ‘T'hat is correct, That s not in-
formation ) I heed w perform tay
duries.

1221 @ Now, let’s talk a lude bit about the
x4 roof, Mt Malinee. T understand that
shorlly 124) after the bankruptcy petition
wi$ filed, that you

Page 130
i1 received a proposal from DG Taylor,
the toofing 2] cotnpany 48 to how much
itwaounld cost to complete i) the wotk on
the roof at 5150 did you not?

P A T did. Trequested u proposal, so D)
could identify the econotnic values. And
you 36 requested thae from Mr Larry
Stein at D.C 1y Taylor?

181 A: That is cormect.

12 Q: And why did you go then to D.C,
Taylor to 0] request that information?
i A Well, in my discussions with
Mr. Stegmann, he indicated -

131 Q: wWha's he, Mr, Stegmann?

115 Az Mr. Stegmann, Fleming's employ-
e, 15 indicated that the rool had been
paid for up and ne through e tem-
porty lernunaton hne.

117] %0 Dwas trying to determine how s
much roof was et to be completed
since the (19) temporary termination line
was not comemplated in 20 the con-
tract.Larry Stein provided me a proposal
121 that idicated that there was 17,000
square feet 122 left 1o be graphed, and
that that cost was (23] sormewhere in the
range of 93 o $98,00K).

1240 Q: Did you — did Mr. Stein, excuse
e,

Page 131
I Mr. Stein offered afier the arran-
gement on June 21 the 26th, 2003 w
recaulk the termination line 5] where
that had been ded off, did he no(?
11 MR. BENEDICT: T am sorry. Could (5
counsel restate the question? T missed
the first 18] part of that,
177 BY MR. FRYE:
(g G Okay. Mr. Stein of D.C. Tavlor
ollered 9 o recaulk the termitation line
at the point where it was leaking
following the rain on June 26th, ) did
he not?

121 MR. BENEDICT: And I'm going to (13|

objectto the extent counsel is providing
hearsay 114 testimony from Mr, Stein.
115 THE COURT: why isn't it hearsay?
nel MR. FRYE: Well, Your Honor, I'til [17)
oL offering o prove the truth of the
matter g asserted. I'm asking whether
hie was — that this (19 gentleman offers —
1200 THE COURT: Why is it being offered
121 then?

1221 MR. FRYE: Chir  position, Your 23
Honor, is that the roofing company, and
we can get [24] into the testimony of the
roofer it we neoed 1o,

Page 132
it Ile was asked aboui this in his
deposition. I'm 2 simply asking Mr. —
isi THE CQURT: Well, it’s still 14 hearsay.
If yau're not trying to prove the truth 5
of it, whart are yvou frying to prove?

51 MR. ORGEL: Excuse e, Your Honor,

71 It's entirely relevant to —

m MR. BENEDICT: I think ong¢ counsel s
at @ time. Mr Frye is handling this
wilness. I () don't think I should he
double teamed here,

i THE COURT: ALl right. T'll hear (2]
friom Mr. Frye.

nst MR FRYE: Weell, it's relevant, (14 Your
Honorwwhether he believed thatthere
was 115 an offer to fix the roof and what
he did int (16} response thereto.

1171 THE COURT: Well, why is his helicf
114 relevanr? You can ask him what he's
done, but [y don't think you can ask
himwhat someone else has 2o told him.
rz11 MR FRYE: Fair enongh, Your Honor.
|z2] I'll meyve on,

123) BY MR. FRYE:

1211 € T believe you testified thal you
weTe not

. F';agé 1‘33
t1at the faciliey on July 2nd, 2003 when
D . C. Taylor 12| visited the roofl at 5150; is
that cotrect?

13 Az Lwas nnaware that they visited the

roof 141 on this day, and T was not present
thiring their 151 visit.

16 Q: When did yon lgarn about that?

171 A: It wasn't unil I provided a copy of
19 Blackburn's lewer to Joe Struemph,

- And he 9 informed me that D.C.. Taylor
" had visited the jo property and re-

viewed it.

111 @: And do you recall what date that
wias, the 1121 date of the report?

113 A: The date ofthe reportorthe date |
114 provided it to Joe Strucmph?

1151 @: No.I'm asking (irst the date of the
116 report, the Blackbutn report.

117) A: 1'd have to look at the date it was
18] isswed.

- agreed i) with those conclusions?

¢ this about the Blackburn o repott?

1) @: ' Was it on or abowt July 9ih? ocy
that (20 sound correct?

1211 Az That could be closc,

r22) Q¢ Qkay And do you know when you
provided (23 that 1o Mr, Strocmph?

111 Q: Well, was it Lwo weeks later, or waj
it 121 Ltwo or three days later?
13) A: Prohahly prior to July 15th.

141 Q: And did you contact Mr, Stein al
13.C. 15 Taylor after you received thi
report from (o) Blackburn Roofing?

177 AL edid.

181 Q: And you discussed with him the 19]
conclusions of Mr. Blackburn in hi
report, did 110] you not?

i AL faxed a copy of the report
Larry 121 Stein for his review.

na Q: And did vou ask Mr, Stein if he

s AL did.

e Q: And did you then — did you T.C.l]
1171 Mt. Stein anything clse in this cot
versation that s you had with himafte

201 Az In the conversation with Stein,
asked 210 himif he had received my fa
11e said he had. ]
1221 1 asked him if he had read che (2
report. He said he had.
121 [ asked him if he agreed with the
Page 124
114 conciusion of e report.
121 Which conclusion?

131 Az The conchision that the only way
to 4] eliminate the ealks in the tetmprotary
termination |5 ling was via the cot
pletion of the root due to the 6 ir
compalibility of the mawerials that wr.ri
171 adjoining the old roof o the new ron
And he @ indicated that he absohrely
agreed.

191 Q: Andrhen what did vou sy 1o himi
(101 response to that comment from him

111 Az Tdon't think Tsaid anything to his

(121 @: Did you everell D.C Taylornot e
{ix (13 or caulk the temporary te
minauon line after the (4] rain of Jun
261h, 20037

1151 A: INO.

nap Q: Did you tell Mr Stein that i h
agreed 7 with the findings in th
Blackbum letter that he noe shoul
consult with his attorney before doin
any 119] work on the roof? Did you te
him that?

tzen A ILold himhe ought to consult wit
hisajaterney Idon'thelieve the word
hefore you do 22 any work on the roof
were 4 part of that |23 conversation,
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1zi) MR. FRYE: Your ITonor, may I

Fage 136
[ approach the witness?
121 THE COURT: Yes.
11 BY MR. FRYE:
141 @ Now, Mt Malinee, do you recall our—
141 the deposition taken in Mr Benedict's
office on 6 Toesday, Augost 1200, 20057
17e A L do.
151 Q: And you were the deponent at that
191 deposition; correct?
nop Az | believe that's correct, to my 1y
knowledge,
n21@: And I did — I'm the one whe
asked you n13) the guestions, -
(141 Az I helieve T was.
15 @: - was 1 nar?
rel Okay. 'm going to refer you 10 (17)
Page 134, Line: 23 of your deposition.
ner A b see it
1) Q: Okay, Now, if [ could, [asked you:
S0 100 it was your position alter your
discussions with 121) Mr. Stein, based on
the Bluckburn all-star review [22) that you
didn’t want the caulking to be done 1o
rz3) temporarily fix the leak; is that
coriect?
124] Andd you answered: I helieve

Page 137
1 subseguent o my discussions with
Larry Stein, (2 that if he agreed with the
findings of that 3 letter, he oughit to
consult his artorney before (4 doing uny
waork on the roof,

151 Wasn'e that your answer?

16] A: [ belicve that was my answer. Bur
that (7] answer is not in the discussion
that you were (8] asking me about here
today in court. They were 19 rwo sep-
arate discussions.

nel Q: 1s your answer different? Weould
your (1] answetr o that question be
different loday thanit 112 was on Augnst
the T2th?

1131 A: INo. That's referring to a separate
n4) discussion. I believe that's accurate,

1131 Q: All right. Now, which discussion
wete (16 youreferring ro, then, in this —
it the 171 deposition when you say you
told Mr. Stein to ns consult his attorney
hefore doing any work on the 19 rool?

1200 A: T'hat particular discussion Mr St
cin 21 called me. The discussion you —
we were talking (22 abour a4 couple
minutes ago was the discussion [z
called Mr_Steinand said had he reviewed
{241 Blackburn's letter.

" Page 138
@ Ckay.
121 A: You have rwo (Jiffe rent. ;

In Re: Fleming Companics, Inc.

I'tnn 1) sorry.

i3] A: That's okay.

16) Q: S0 in the second — do you recall
when 171 the sccond discussion was,
approximacly?

[ A: Sometime the lateer part of July,

2 Q: Now, why did you tell Mr. Stein that
if 110 he agreed with the lndings of the

Blaclburn (1 letter, he ought to consult .

his artorney for doing [12) any work on
the roof?

131 Az Beecanse he told methache wasn't —

he 4 was trying (o get a consensns
hetween Fleming and (151 us, and it
appeared that the recommendations
that ng he agreed o per Blackburn
weren't consistent with 117; Flerning.
&) And he indicated w me that he ny)
wanted the consensus of ull parties,

1z0] Q: And so you told him to consulr his
[21] atlorney?

[z21 A: That’scorrect Ifhe could norgeta
123] CONSELINLN,

(24 THE COURT: How much longer do
you

“Page 139
i1 think you'll be?

izl MA. FRYE:I don't think [ have 3
anything, Your Honor, U'm going 1o

- consult with [4) Mr, Qrgel,

5] BY MR, FRYE:

16 G Qkay. A couple fnal points orareas
of 171 questions, Mr. Malinee.

(6] Now, with regard w the curh, what 1o
wo call the curb cut that formetly would
allow (] access [rom Kansas Avenue
into the Shield 111 facilivy, thar curh cur
wias removed at what point, 2 dao you
remember?

113 A: Sometime  subsequent to the
1960, 1996 14 construction of the fac-
ey, the additions in 15 the corb,

ne @: So it was sometime post 1996, but

" it was 17 prricr to April 1st, 2003, 15 that

COITECT?
il Az IThelieve that wonld be fair to say.

nel Q: Has any work been done at that
curb cut (20 access site, [or want of a
better term, since the (21 filing of the
petition on April 1st, 2003 to your 22
knowlcdge?

123] Az Not to the hest of tuy knowledge.
1241 Q@ Now, these muster links that we've
culled

Page 140
(nthem that connect the Shadrall facility
about the [z Shield facility, those were
constructed prior to 131 April 1st, 2003,
were Lhey not?

191 A: That would be — [ would believe

i that |51 that's safe to say. That's correct.

16 Q: And there have been no work

13 Q: They're two dilferent discussions? \
Pagc 136 - Page 142 (24)
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pedormed to 7] cither erecy Or Lear
down those master ks since s the
filing of the petition on April 151, 2003,
has 191 there?

(0] Ax T believe that's correct.

1 @Q: And the same with regurd to rhe
links (121 between the DEC facility at
5200 Kansas Avenue and 1131 5150 Kun-
5as Avenue with regard o the Hnks that
4l connect those facilitics with the
Shicld 115 property. Those connecrs
were made prior o April 118 Tst, 2003,
wete they not?

171 A Help me out. You nude o right
11T €31 (18] D€,

(19 Q: Okay.

(200 A You're walking abenar?

i Q: I'msure itwas inartfully phrised T
1221 will try again.

123 I believe we saw on the site map (24]

that there are interconnects between
Lthe DEC

Page 141
] properties al 2150 Kansas Avenue and
S100 Kansas [2] Avenue o the Shield
property at 5200 Kansas 13 Avenue, are
there not?

{41 A: Yeuh. That’s correct,

151 Q: You can access 5200 through 5100
and 16 3150, correct?

17) Az That's — they're two pussage ways
called 18 corridors.

9 Q: Cortidors. Okuy.

nap A: Tihiink thut's what we're: referring

o 1o,

111 Q: Refer to them as corvidors. I am
SOITY.

L1zl And those corridors were buill prior
lis1 o Aptil Lse, 2003, were they not?

114] Az [ helieve thal's correct.

151 Q: And there hadn'c been any work
pedformed 16) visa-vis those corridors
by Fleming since the 17 bankruptey
petition on April 15, 2003, has there, na
to your knowledgc?

119 A: What do you fueun as “work"?
[z @: They haven't closed them off,
have they?

1214 A; No.

1zz1 Q: They haven't made them wider,
have they?

(23] A: No.

124] MR. ORGEL: Steve.

Page 14“2
(11 BY MR. FRYE:

121 @z Okeay, Mr, Malinee, [ believe you 13
testificd that the only way o access the
Shictd 1) property at 5200 and 5250
Kansas Avenuoe as mallers |5 presently
stangl is cither tirough the Shadrall (6

properly or through the DEC property;
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am 1 [7) comrect?

8 Azl guess, yeah, if you had a hel-

icoprer, 19 you could get there. But on
ground, you would 1oy have to cross
property that is owned by entities [:1)
other than Shicld for which Shield has
oy legal [12) righ.

13 Q: Are you aware thar the Shadrall
lease has 141 been rejected by Fleming
and approved by the ps) Conrt, and that
Fleming no longer has access to 16 the
Shadrall property?

117 MR. BENEDICT: I'm going 10 object
[1aj a% 1t calls for a legal conclusion asto
what is 19 the effect of the fejection of
the leasc,

1201 THE COURT: All tight. Sustained.

1211 MR, FRYE: I have nothing further, (22
Your Honor

lz41 THE COURT: Unless vou are going o
1241 be five minutes, I think we'te going (o
break.,

T Fage 143
i1 All right. Let’s tuke a break now. (2
We'll come buck at 2:00.

13 Okay. 4] Mr. Malinee, you shouldn't
cansull i5] with your attorngy,

161 MR. BENEDICT: Except aboul (7] [oot-
bull and basebull, Your Honor.

18 (A lunch recess was aken.)

vl THE CLERK: Please rise. 1100 You mmay
b scated,

111 THE GOURT: All right. IF the oy wit-
ness would retake the stand.

(135 ATL pight, You're still under () oath,
151 DHd the Committe e wiant o (16] Cross-
examing?

n1z7) MR, FOURNIER: Mo, Your Honor, The
(s committee has no quesiions for the
WILNESS,

1o MR, BENEDICT:If it please he |20)

Court, Your Honor, Mark Benedict for |

DEC an 1217 Shield for redirect.

|22} BY MR. BENEDICT:

1231 @ Mr. Malingc, during the (24} Qross-

examination, Mr, Frye asked you when

the
ago 144

it rent was paid in the monch of July. Do

you recall (2 that question?

131 Az Thelieve Ttold him chat it was anor

1) ahout fuly 2<th,

151 Q: When was the rent due?

151 Az July 150

171 @: Also, during  cross-examination,

there way (8 discussion as there was

during direct examnination % of the

Blackburn letter. Do you recall that

testimony?

1y A I do.

12 Q: Okay. And in patticulat, there was

4 [13juestionon crossexamination with
respect to the 114 date yon and Mr
Struemph had communications about
1151 the Blackburn letter. Do you recall
that (16 cross-examingtion question?

117) A I o

1) Q: T'megoing 10 ask you to refer to
Exhibit o Number27 inthe movant'sor
DEC and Shield's 120 exhibit hook.
A I'm with you.

(221 Q: Okay. AndI'llrepresent (o you that
the (23 first three pages, four pages of
that are an 24 affidavit from Mr. Black-
burn identifying that

Fage 145
(1] these are true and acourate copies.

- And I'llask 21 youto turnto page — what

I believe is Page 5 of (3) the document

. moving forward imo the document,

141 And it is a letter Blackburn's All s Star
Roofing, Arc you with me yer?

16) A Yes. It's duted Monday, July 7th.

71 Q: Okay, Does that refresh your s
recollection on when you wonld have
had 191 conversations with Mr, Struemph
wilth regards to oy Mr Blackbumm's
conclusions containgd in this i cor-
respondence?

1z A It would be subsequent to this
ciate. 1y Correct.

141 @ Qkay. And you say subsequent; a
murter 15 of days, o matter of weeks?
116 We're just trying to pin down, 17
approximately, when that conversation
WHS.

ns) A Well, it would have had to oc
curred on or po; before July 15th,

1201 @: S0 hetween the 7th and the 15th?
121] A That's correct.

1221 Q: And the conclysions that Mr

- Strucmph (2s) said he agreed with, were

those congclusions |20 referenced in this
correspondence that the roofs

FPage 146
(1) are: incompatible and that the only
way to fix the 12 roof is to cotuplete the
toof.
131 Are those the conclusions that v Mr.
Struemph identified as those he agreed
with?
151 MR. FRYE: Ohjection, Your Honot. 6]
That mischaracterizes his pror Lesd-
mony,
17] I believe Mr. Stein is with DO &3
Vaylor, not Mr. Struemnph.

= MR. BENEDICT: Fair cnough, Your 1w
Ionor Withdrawn.

11 BY MR. BENEDICT:

(2 Qe Mr, Malinee, Mr, Frye asked you a
number [13] of questions with regards to
the removal of (14 hazardons materials,
forklits, forklift s baterics, dmms,

| the 17 motnh of July?

Po4s,

| tograph is?

- perspective, 1121 that indicates or ideg-

propane anks, all of those. (1o And [
understand thar that occurred during

month of 19 July with the barrel od-
curring subsequett o the [ visit
Danny Apadocka and Mike Ferrish.
(211 Q: And that visit we are talking abot
is 1221 the July 28th visit?

1231 A; That's correct,

(24] @: Now, P going 1o ask you to tur
in your

Az ALl of that occurred durning 111{

E

=3

Page 1
111 exhibit notehook to Exhibit Numb

12) Ar Mm hmim.

131 Q: Would you identify 10 the Cougt
whar that |+ cxhihit is?

i51 Az Thatis a picture of equipimeni th
wits (6| on the propery wherehy Flemin
was overseeing the 7) disposal of this|'
residual equipment”. You've got ) Lw
forklifts that had been turned over, angl
they ) were draining the hydraolic fluigl
out of those ) forklifts und disposing ¢
them,

nL Q: OQkay. And whar is the date of thjs
(121 phowograph?
s Ay 7ST.

(14) G And did you take this photograpl,
115 Mr. Malinee?
16 Al ik,

7 @ Is this a wrue and aceurare dr{

—

iction of g the evenls you've no
described in rhis photograph 19y on Ju
7th of '03?

1o Al s,
1211 G Okay. And Ullask you,then, o wih
(221 the page to Exhibit Nnmber 46.
1241 A: T there,

1241 G Okay. There ate two ph()tngmpl‘r
there,

w

Pags 1
nrand Ihelieve Mr. Frye was asking yo
whether this (7] barrcl, which is the te
photograph on July 7th, 131 had be
removed. And is rhis the harrel that w
1 temoved subsequent to the Dany
Apadocka visit on (55 July 27, July 28t
) A Thart is correct.

(71 Q: Okay Focusing thenon the seco
1% picture, which is on Exhibit Numb
46, can you |9 tell me what that ph

[

1o A: It's a photograph consistent wi
the (11 Exhibit 45 Just from a close-u

tities these forklifis (131 having be
turned over and druined.

1141 Q: And again, it's very [im on ¢
capy, 115 but does that photograph ha
a date of July 7th, 116 ‘0% on it?

Min-U-Scripts
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1171 A Thar ix correct,

na QYo ivs wken the same day as
Exhibit (%7

1191 A: Within seconds of the prior pho-
worgrph

201 @ Qkay, Mow, focusing on this, this
(211 photograph, and I'll ask you to look at
the 2z left hand farkliftas you'te looking
ar the 123) pholograph.

(2] What is Lthe errain feature

Page 149

1 imnediriely o the lefr of that forklifi
between 12 that and the edge ol the
photograph?

i3] Ar'I'he pavement av this point on
property 14 slope wowers. It's 4 storm
drain.

(51 Q: S0 on this date as they were
removing (6 Lhis equipment amd un-
deriaking their obligations (7] to remove
this equipment, they were draining the
i#1 hydraunlic fluids into the siorm drain?
9] A: That's what effectively ovenrred.
(19 Q: Okay. Now, Mr. Malinee, und again
just 1] to clean up some things from
cross-cxamination, 1121 and o a certain
extent from direcl exatiination, 13|
would you turn w0 the second exhibit
hool that we 4] had provided o you to
Exhibit Number 63.

nst Az I'm on Exhibit 65,

nel @: And can you identify that doc-
ument for (171 the Court?

{191 A: This i a lerter written by 1.0,
Taylor 119 an April L<th and signed by
Latty 5tein.

1200 Q: And this was a letrer to you, sir?
21 A Thar is correct,

12z @ And during the crossexaminal-
ion, when 23 you were asked whether
Mr. Stein had provided 0 124 you a
written bid for the completion of the

Fage 150
I roofing work ar 3150, is this the
docutnent that (21 was heing referred to

1 yOur testitnony?

131 A: Yeal This is here in ity entirety,

14 That's cotrect.

(31 @ Qkay. Arel 1ll ask you o move
forward 1) in thar document to the third
age.

171 AL the top of the page, it s identifics
2. Taylor's bid. An original (o contract
atnount of $292 925 An identification af
fo) the sguare foor per contract,

1111 At then if you follow down, there's

112 4 onurnber that's identificd as the bid
to 113 complete. 1s that the bid o
complete the roaf?

n4l Az As submitted on the next page by
Larry 15] Stein, thal's cotrect.

o] @ And whart isthe amountofthe cost

L 1171 cotnplete the roof?

g A $493.616.

g @ Okay. 1 believe we had talked in
120l generalities, so 1 just wanted w make
sure we (1] idenufied that document,
1221 A: Mirhmm.

1231 MR. BENEDICT: If I may confer will
241 co-counsel, 1 rhink 1 might be done.

Paga 151
111 THE COURT: All right.
1z BY MR. BENEDICT:

13 Q: Mr. Malinee, and again just ro clean
upr 14l the record and make sure cvery-
thing is clear, you s have identified
throughoul your testinony that |6) you'
ve commuticated with Joe Struemph?

(71 A: That's correct.

w1 @ And who is Mr, Struemph?

) Az He's an employee [or Fleming,
facility (1] manager al the Kansas s
tribution Center.

@z All righr, 1s Mr. Struemph an
employee 112 of Intermobite Marketing?

1131 A: No.

1147 @ 1s Mr. Stcruemph an employee of
DEC 5] Investments?

na) Ar No,

7 Q: Is Mr. Struernph un employee of
Shield?

18| A No,
191 Q: I3o you have un agreement with

sworn on oath, was (221 examined and
testified as follows;

123 THE CLERK: You rmuy he seated.

1241 BY MR. BENEDICT:

Page 153

11 Q: Good morning, Mr. Stegmann, If

yonwould 2] please state your full name
forthe record,and if 14 youwould spellic
fur the court reporter.

1t Ar David Frederick Stegmann . D-A-VT
D9 FRED-ERTC-K, 5T E G M-A-N-N._
15 Q: And Mr. Stegmans, with whormn are
you |7 employed?

i#) A: Fleming Companies, Inc.

21 @: And how long have you been

‘ cmployed with 1:0) Fleming?

1y A; Since 1986,

(121 Q: And what is vour position with
Fleming?

1131 Az Direcwor of facility.

(1) Q@: And what are your — generally
your [1s] duties as the director of fgc-
ilitie:s?

1161 Az Today?

17) Q: Yes, us of today.

ne) A: In charge of the properties group,
which 1o 15 real estate, maintenzne,
conatructio. OF 20 course, there's not
tnuch of that heing done right (211 now.
It’s mostly bankruptey issucs a8 [ar as (x)

- terminaring leases and that sort ol thing.

[20] Mr. Suruewnph, eithet in your passing -

with DEC 21 Shield or Intermobile

Markeling, for his (20 employnent in the

turure?

(231 Ar Absalutely not.

124 G And just again, so rthe record is

clear,
Page 152

(11 has Mr Struempl, priorto today,atany
point in (2 time, been an cmployee of
Imernnobile  Madketing, 3 DEC, or
Shield, w your knowledyge?

11 A: Absolulely noL

151 MR, BENEDICT: Thank you, 1 have (6
i further ouestions,

171 MR. FRYE: No gqnestions, Your (s flon-

Or.

(9 THE COURT: All right. Thank you. noj
You may step down.

(] MR, BENEDICT: If it please the ny
Court, as our second withess, we would
call Daviad (13 Stegtann.

14 THE CLERK: Employces place your
ns; hand on the Hible and state your
nami tfor the (1o Court.

1171 THEWITNESS: David TFrederick 118
Stepmann.

139) DAVID F STEGMANN, (201 the dep-
onent herein, having first ;21 been duly

Page 149 - Page 154 (26)
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(731 @: And as of April Lst, 2003, the date:
of [21] the bankruptey, would your duartics
have heen the

Pago 154
11 sanie 48 they are woday?
121 Az MNaoL At that time, 1 wasn't in charpe
of 131 the properties group.
[+ Q: Okay.
151 A: My responsibilities then was o)
envirotnental construction, capital ¢x-
pendiwures, |/ economic development,
Those were my — those were 3 my
basic tunctions.
191 @: Was the maintenance of facilitics
parL of o) your function at chat time?

(1 A Mainteranee of? Ddidn't hearyou.

e @ Were the maintenance of facilities
part 13 of your fuactions and job duties
as of the [ling 19 of the bankruptey on
April 1st?

115] Ar Yes,

no! @: And again, starting using rthe time
frame 171 of April 1st, 2003, would the
area of yonr w) responsibility have
inchaded the real propertics ns) that we
are ralking about here today S100,315(0),
120 9200 Kansas Avenue?

121} A: For capital expenditures, ves.

1221 Q; And maintenance of facilivies?
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1241 A: Maitnenance indirectly.

121 @: Okay.But that was still within yout
job

111 funetion?

12) A: That's correct.

51 Q: Okay. And as of April 15t 2003, did
yan 4) have direct or indirect super
visory authority over |5 the [acility of
managets at the various PSC e facilities
for Fleming Wholesale Dstriburion 171
Division?

18} Az Thur's correct.

(1 Q: Okay. Now, would that have in-
cluded o) supervisory direct ar indirect
responsibility forin Joseph Survemphat
the Kansas City, Kansas (12 facilities?
s A Yes,

141 @: When I say Kansas City, Kansas
fucility, 115) you understand those o e
510K, 5200 buildings 16 that we've been
talking abour here today and n7 51507
1l Az Yes.

130] Mr. Stegmann, have you visited thesc
properties (21) personally?

1221 A: No, I have nor,

(231 Q: S0 you haven't abserved the srare
of the 24 facilides since the bankruptey
wus filed?

Fage 156

11 A: Lhave notheen tothat [acility for) 2|
three or four yeirs.

(31 Q: Okeay. Now, my understanding is,

and just (1| please ler me know il you
wetre a Fleming employee 151 at the tome
that these leases were enteted into in 6]
194937

171 A Yes.

) @: Okuy. And did you have any io-
volvemernt (9 thenin the leasing process
in 1993 when these o) leases were
commenaeed?

(1t A: I savin on the negotiations.

na @: Okay. Now, Mr, Stegmann, I'm
eoing W [13] ask you ro ook at the latpe
hook that says 14 exhibit notebook
whichis Exhibits 1 through, I ns helieve,
48.

f161 1 ask you to open that to Exhilsit (17)
Number — why don’t we stant with
Exhihit Number s 1,

e Actually my apologics, why don'lt we
(201 just go to numhber — Exhibit Number
A, which is (1) the sublease ugreetnent by
and betwecn Shicld (22 Investment Comne-
pany and Fleming Companies, Inc.

1231 Are you there, sir?
124] Az Yes.

Paga 157
(1 Q: Okay. And do you recognize 1his (2]

Faga 155 :

document?

131 A: Yes.

1) @ Okay.I'm going to ask you to turnin
151 that document w Paragraph 9.3,

163 It's on Page 144 of the lease, if 17) thar
ALSIETS you, Sin

(%1 MR, BENEDICT:If I muy approach (9
the witness, Your Honor?

(1ot THE COURT: No. He'll find it,

1) MR. BENEDICT: Olkay.

(121 THE WITNESS: T've got it.

3 BY MA. BENEDICT:

1141 Q: Allright. Now,you wire preseitat

- the s negotiation of the lease, as [
understand your 1161 testimony. Does

Fleming have any obligations with 117)
respect to the resworation of the pro-
perty ng pursuant o Scction 9.3 of the
lease as long s 19 Lhat lease is in effect?
1201 Az Yes.

(21 Q: Okay. And do those respon-
sihilives 122 include, ac the andlord's

' request, the 23 restoration of the phys-
ra) Q: Since the filing of the bankroptey,

ical access?

|24l Again, this is the Shield lease,
Fage 158
(1] restoration of access to the Shicld
facility o —

21 MR. FOURNIER: Your Ilonor, [ would
131 abjecr to the question 10 the extent
that he's (i) seeking u legal conclusion.
51 MR, BENEDICT: I'm gnly 161 under-
standing his undersianding of the 17
obligation. T believe Your Honor will
make the s ultinite determination.

to| THE COURT: Why is that cven o Look, (13 Sit.

relevant?
i1 MA. BENEDICT: Well, Your Honor, he
121 was there at rhe comeeption of the
lease. T want 13 to undersiand  the
expectlationofthe partiesat 4 the Gme,
151 But U'm happy to move on.

1161 THE COURT: Yeah,

1171 MR. BENEDICT:I'm happy to move
[1%] Q1.

(10} THE COURT: All right. Sustained.

tan) MAR. BENEDICT: That's fine.

(211 BY MR. BENEDICT:

22 @: M Swegnani, are you aware that
at the (231 present Time, there is no legdl
aceess 10 Kansas 124 Highway 32 with
respect 10 this property?

Paga 159
11 A Yes.
121 Q: What steps, if any, has Tleming
taken (31 with respect to the accessissue
since bankruptley i filing?
151 A: Nomne.

(61 G 120 you have any knowledge as to
whether 17) Fleming has heen asked by

" remoaved the 1z access on Shieldd
i Lacility?

i e an aerial photograph of the 2

the landiord ro take 1@ steps with respec
t access?

o1 A: | have no diteer conversations tha
I 1ot recall with anyhody requesting th
we do 50.

1111 Q: Okay. And do you know wh

113 ArYes,

(141 Q: And was that Fleming?

1151 A Yes.

e Q: Okay. And do you know whethe
the 171 Shadmll {acility, whether acces
has been changed (18] on the Shadm
[acility a5 well?

19 A: Yes,

120) @: And whalis yourundr.rsmndingol'
the (21 changesto access on the Shadna
facility?

(22] A: The orginal facilitythatwe lease
123 prior to adding the Metro Comple
was in the [24] center of the faciliiy. An
whait we did, because

Page 16
11 we expanded Shadrall, we p
100,000 sgquare foot, [2) approxitatel
¢xpansion on the west side of 131 Shadnd
property.
[+ W took an existing entrance dowt o
there and modified i, and made it wide
s0 that 161 we could enterall rruck traffi
down in that 17 area. 50 that the traile
didn't have to back in (s blind.
e G Okay, sir There is a second exhibg
no uotehook in front of you.
nny And Umgoing to ask you to lurnta |l
Exhibit Number3$3, Itwillbe inthe othd

Ly g

(14 Az U've: got it

151 Q: Oleuy. And can you recognize,
do you ney recognize whether that's a
aerial photogruph of n7) the facility as U
exisred in 19947

tial A Yes.

net Q: Okay. Now, Ipoking at the lar
sepuare (2] that appears to he, ut least o
mine in the middle 21 fold, woukd thdt

Shadtall facility?
(23] A: T'hat’s correct.

124) @: Okay And toving south ofthat ofy
this

Page 1
11} photograph, do you sce where L
intersection with 21 Kansas Highway 32
is?

131 Az Yo,
1@ Okay. Now, 1 see on this phorT-
graph, and 51 would you agree with mge
sir,thut there are three (6] acoess points
the Shudrall facility?

(7] Az Yes,

—+
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1) @: Okay. And you just testified that
that w1 middle access point was the
primatry enttance as af po] 1994, and thar
Fleming redirected that traffic to 1) the
far Ieft opening?

112 A: Yes.

(3 Q: And then yom expanded thar
opening?

1141 Az Yes,

s Qe Okay. What did you dao with the
middle 61 opening?

17 Ihid you close ir?

18] A: The middle opening was con-
verted t just 19) associate purking for
CHULK.

120] @: Okay. And moving to the — then
the (21 third secess point on the Shadrall
facility, what rzz) did you do with that?
tz31 A: The third one going ro the west or
cast?

(241 Q: I'm sorry. The third one going to
the

Pago 162
[1] Cast.
21 Ar That one was climinated.

13 @: Olcay, As a part of the expansion of
the 141 Shadrallaccess points, did your alsa

hiave to 151 negatiate, you being Fleming, |

have to negotiate ) with the State of
Kansas Department of (71 Transportation
for the opening ol a median cut in (5
fronr of the Shadrull property?

191 Ar Yes,

Har G Okay. I'm going to ask you to rurn
10 (11 Exhibit Number 51.

21 MS. MELNIK: Excuse e, Mark, (13
Excuse me.

N4 THE WITNESS: (0t it.

1151 MR. FRYE: Mark, what exhibit are (1]
wt (n?

(7] MR. BENEDICT:W¢'rc on 51.

1= BY MR. BENEDICT:

1 Q: o you recognize this document,
sir?

120 A Yes.

2 In fact, this is a document that
your (22) counsel produced o me on
Wednesday of this week, 125 or pardon
me, of last week —

124 Az Yes,

Page 163
1 Q: — during your depaosition.

121 A Yes,

13 Gk And this is an architecrural draw-
ing from 14 Black & Beach prepared for
Fleming Companies, (5] Inc.?

Gl AL Yes,
171 Q: And this decument was prepared
on o 8 about June 9th of 19047

niot {1 prepared for Fleming Com-
panies, Inc, It was 1111 prepaced for )15
[runn, They were —

1121 Q: Okay.

13 A: They were the design builder of
the (141 projeer,

st @: Okeay. And J.E Dunn was your (o)
CONSrUCLion contractor who was going
to implement n7 the changes requested
by Fleming?

r1g1 A: That's correer. That's correct.

g Q: Olay. And on this document, does
this 1201 reflect the existing median on
Kansas Highway 32 121y ax of 1994 hat
YOU WEIE Praposiig to apen up wil )
respect o the Shadrall property?

17331 A Yes.

124] @ Okay And [ust want to make sure
I'm

Page 164
e not confused, but on this drawing,
where you're i expanding the opening
which you had identificd as 13 the
western-most Shadrall entrance?

f41 Az Yes.

15 Q: Then the next enttunee where the

¢ proposedis mediancutis w be inserted,

which the reference 71 I see on this is
saw existing pavement cut. Is s thar the
middle access point at Shadrall, or is (9
that the eastern access poirnt?

i) A That's the middle, —

i1 @ Okay.

112 As - what we considered the mid-
dle.

13 @: Okeay, And is this u troe and accur-
ate na) depiction of the existing struc-
ture of that 115 highwavandihe enrrance
10 Shadrall on or about 16 June of '947?

1171 A: Shortly afierwards.

1 Q: Okay.

1o A This was ¢ drawing that was
showed the o) design. The constrnetion
wasn't done ontl 1200 sometime aftters
wurd.

(221 Q: Okay, If you would continne for-
witd iz your exhibit ook onge
exhibitto Exhibir Number (24 52. Do yon
recoghize thar as an acrial phowgraph

Fage 165
1y of the facility as ir is today?

12 Pardon me_As il was ar the time of 13)
the filing of the bankmiprey?

141 A Yes.

(51 Qi Okay Andagain, this reflectsthar ay
161 0f tadlay, there is no access paing into
the Shield |7; tacility; correct?

) Ar'T'hat's correct.

@ And no median ent in fron of the
Shicld 10 fucility?

oy As Canlmakea correctionhere owas | 1 A: Thar's correct.

121 Q: And that there s srill two re-
maining 13 access points in front of the
Shadrall facility?

1tip A Thai’s corredt,

nsi Q: And there are median culs at
docess 1o (1] easthound and westhound
K-32 from the Shadrall n7) property?

(181 Az That's carrect.

1t @ Naow, sir, if you'll mewve forward in
vour |20) exhibit ook to Exhibit Nutnber

|04,

21 A ot it

1221 Q- Would you wke 2 look at tha
document (231 and idenrity whether this
is the Shadrall lease 124) that we've been
talking about with respect o

Page 166
153007
121 THE COURT: Which exhibit numhber?
(31 MR. BENEDICT: Exhibit Number 4.
1+l THE COURT: &vi.
15| THE WITNESS: Yes, it is.
v1 BY MR. BENEDICT:

171 €. Okay. And, sir, I willask youto look
13 forward in that docutnent to Secton
8.02, which is 9 on Page 15 of that
docutnent.

1o Az Got 1.

11 Q: Okay. I'm going to read to you the
third 12) senience.

1131 "Nolwithstanding the foregoing, ar
114] the tne the Lease Term emnds or
othorwise 115 terminates for any reason,
the Landlord may elect (s w have the
Tenant remove any Alterations aned 17
resiore the Demised Premises to its prior
Ll condition as to any Altemtions or
demolition not ne previously approved,
orapproved with a proviso (20) reluting to
remaval by Landlord, which shall e 121
fully completed within 30 days of the
cnd or other 22 termination of the Lease
Termn."

(23] THd I read that accurately?
24 A Yes.

Page 167
it Q: Okay Ilave you restored Shadrall's
12| property since May 30th of 20037

13 Az Na.

ti) Q: But pursuant to the terms of this
lease, 151 should Shadrall ask you ro, at
least there's a (6] provision in this lease
that would require you w i do so?

w1 MR. FRYE: Objection, Your Honor, o
That calls for a legal conchsion. This
gentleman (1ol is not -

111 THE COURT: Sustained.

iz MR. BENEDICT: Fair enough, Your
(1351 Honor,

141 MR. FRYE: — qualified to muke 5]t
i16] BY MR. BENEDICT:

Page 162 - Page 167 (28)
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171 Q: o you recall the circumstances
under ns; which rhe Shictd access point
was removed?

(of Ar Thut was part of the original
complex 120 changes that were — that
wits proposed to at that (2 vme. It was
Metro,

1221 @ [}d you provide 2 written reciest
1o the (73 landlord in 1996 1o close the
Shield acoess?

1241 A: When we did the negotiations on
the lease

Page 168
114 for those complexes, at that time, Mt
Wedlin 121 designuated a Mr Patterson, a

avice president, I think for 4] the Metro
Complex,

151 Anel we had our contractor, aned we 16)
had a fulltime  construction  super-
intendent,a 7) fellow named Gary Four. L
setnpameering for g themo gooverall
the drawings with [2on (9 Patterson over
in their offices, because they were no
still operating out of that facility when
w11 started construction.

1z And so that meeting ook place
where (13 those drawings were all gone
over with them at 4 that time,

(%) Q Okay. At the commencermnetit of
the lease, s the chatyges wo the propeny
were discussed with 171 the landlornd?

s Ac It was discussed in general at the
1y compnencemnent of the lease, and
then followed up 1200 with x detailed
discussion of drawing by drawing 2
over in the Metro offices with Don
Parterson,

1221 Q: Do you know, sir, in 1996, when
the (23] Shield curh cut and access was
closed whelhier (24 Fleming subrmitied 1
request in wrting to the

Paga 168
11y Shicld landlaord secking approval of
the closing of (2) the access poing?

(3) A: It was nat dong in '96, It was dane
when [y the original drawings were
provided.

(51 Q: Okay. We're turning now o the
Shield ¢ and DEC facilities.

171 Has Fleming paid the utilities for s the
month of July?

o1 A Not w my knowledge.

(101 @: Has Fleming paid for cleaning
those 11y facilities in the month of July?

1121 A We went through and rook care of
the item 3] that was presented before
the Conet atr the last 4] hearing 1o the
best of my abitity and (15 understanding,
Asto,you know, final cleanup orio; what
had to be done, if there was any, there

(19 but 1t really wasn't hazardous mater-
ial as we (201 found ouL.
1211 50 there was some odds and ends (22
stuff done totry and clean the facility up.
1zz) BY MB. BENEDICT:

12i] @: Andl Fleming undertook to do that
only

Page 170
1] after the landlord made a request to
the Court to (2] have Fleming o that?
131 A: Well, we had — we were underthe
14] impression it was done. I mean, we
were not at (5 the facility, so to speal,

. after we had rejecied 11 the lease other

which everyone (18 thought was a

hazardous matenial that was removed,

i than DoveBid, doing the auctioning (7
fellow named Donos) Patterson who was N & &

itens and final cleanug.
1a] Q: Okay, sir. | just want to ask yvou

when (9 yon said - you said when 4z consultant of Fleming?

Fleming rejected the (o) lease, yvou
nnderstand this hearing is to consider (1)
whether the lease can be rejecred and
the timing 112 of that rejection; you
vnderstand that, don’t you, (13 sic?

141 A: Well, when I suy reject the lease, 1
nspdbon’s mean in the terms of the Court
rejecting the ns) bease It's when Fleming
sent the otherout to 07 the landlord, it's
my understanding it's not ns) ofticial at
that time.
(9] But we sent a letter oot the latter o
part of June telling the landlord that we
were (2] going to vacate the facility
cHlective June 30th 2z and tuen it bacle
over to them, That's what | mean (231 by
rejection,
vy Lunderstand it's nor official until
Page 171
1) the judge approves it.
14 @ Okeay, But understanding thatr it
wasn't |3 official until the judge
approves it, Fleming made 1y the dec
ision not o pay the udlitics for the 15
menth of July; is thar correet?
lo] Ar That's correct.
(71 Q: And until the landlord asked you
Lo, 181 Fleming had elected not 1w clean
the Lacility, 15 @ that correct, sir?
nor Az We didn't — we didn’t know that
there 1) was still siuffleft there fromthe
DoveBid 2] anction,

(13 Q: Now, we've heard testimony that
there's a i) gentleman named Joe
Strucmph and that he wasa —

(151 A: Yeah.

16 @ — direct or indirect repont 10 you
as of 71 April 1st, 20037

s AxUhat's correct.,

(e Q: Isn't it crue that Me Struemph was
still 1201 around that lacility on or about

; 7
wis a (7] drum supposedly that was lefi, July 1st

1213 A That's correct,

. than 150 rools for them?

ledge, sir, 125 as w whether Mr. Struempl
has continued to e an (24) employee o
Fleming through the month of July?

Page 174
(11 A: He is not an employee of Fleming|
121 Q: Okay, I asked you, sit, il you ha‘VtI
any [3 personal knowledge with respec
to that,

14 A: 11e’s a consultant for us,

151 @: Okay Was he on yourpayrall fr)ra:I
or 16 a poruon of July dircctly as a
employce?

171 A A partion of July.
w1 Q: Okay. Would that be through a]
least v July 11th?

ria) A: That's correct.,

re1] G And subsequent to that time, he i

i3 Az Just recently.

(1 @ Okay. When did you first becom
aware (15 that there was 4 — ler m
rephrase that.

116} Fleming had a toofing conuaciar (o

wark on the roof at 5250 at the tme th
L&) bankruprey was filed; is that correct
nor Ax That's correct,

200 B Aned whao was that original cong
tractor?

121] A: D.C.'aylor,

1221 @: To your knowledge, how long ha
D.C. 2y Taylor had a relationship with
Flemang?
1241 A Since TUB6,atleast since 've heed

Page 17
M| here.

11 Q; Sure. And they've done a lot of
raofs (31 for you, 100, haven't they, ove
the yeurs?

(4] Ar That's correcr,
51 Q:In fact, they've done over a hury
dred 1) roofs for you?

71 Ar Pyeneveradded themup, bt it’s
NUMErous.

o @: Okay. T were 1o represent ro yo
that noy Mr. Larry Stein of DO, Taylo
weatilied under 1) oath, and we'll rea
his deposition into the (12) record afte
we cotnplete your testimeony, sir, that 1
D .C. Taylor had done between 150 an
160 moofers 14) for Fletning over the 28
years, would that be 114 consistent wit
your utiderstanding of how many (1
roofs they've done?

71 A: 1 would say that that's prohahbl]
close. ‘
1te; Q: Okay. And docs Fleming recogreg
ize D.C. 1o Taylor as a roofing cxperf
having had D.C. Taylor (201 install morg

(211 MR. FRYE: Objection, Your Honof.
1221 This calls for a legal conclusion that'k
)
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asking 1231 the witness to certily an
cxpert on roofing.
124 THE COURT: Sustaitied.

Mage 174
111 BY MR. BENEDICT:

121 Q: When you huve s problem - when
you, (3] being Fleming, have had 4 pro
bletn with u roof in 14 the last 16 years
you've heen with the company, 151 who
wonld you have go investigate those
toofing 16 conditions and repaort w you
a5 to the condition 7] ol the roof?

1K) Would that be I .C_Taylor?

191 A; That wouldn't be the only conr
pany. There (0] was really four com
panies, roofing — pavonal (111 roofing
companies that we work with,

12 @ Mp-hon,

n3 Az So it would depend on where it
was, and (11 whether they werte Guniliar

with that roof whether 151 I would cull

them or not.

i161 Q: And would Fleming rely upon the
analysis 7 of .G, Taylor on those roots
that you senr ID.C. pgy laylor out o
inspect?

net MR. FRYE: Objection, Your llonor.
120 T'his is all speculation.

121 THE COURT: Overruled.

1221 MA, FRYE: There's no relevanoe oo
123 the issues at hand.

l241 THE COURT: Owverruled.

Page 175
I THE WITNESS: Yes, | would.
12/ BY MR. BENEDICT:
(31 Q: All right. And at some point afrer
Lthe 141 filing of the hankruptey, did 1,.C,

Taylor stop 151 working on the roof on
51502

16 A Yes.

71 Q: Do you remember, approximately,
whien thuat 5] was?

o1 A: T don't.

noy @: Iidd you have any cotversalion
with 10.C. 1) Taylorwith respect to thein
leaving that job site?

2] Ar Yes,

131 Q: Okay. Would that have heen in
April, (14 May, or June, if we can pin it
dowit a little —i1s1 little Tit?

(161 A: T think it was within the first two
weeks 17 after we filed for bankmupey.
ns Q: 5o that would be mid-April, then,
of 119 20037

1200 Az T'hat's correct.

120 Q: And who at D.C Taylor did you 22
cottnuoicane wirh?

|51 Az Larry Stein.

1241 @ And had you worked with Mr
Stetn before?

Page 176
(1 A: Yes.

121 Q: Had he been your primary conract
with 13 D.C. Taylor over the years?

14 A: Yes.

151 Q: What did you discuss with Mr, Stein
16 during this conversation around the
middle of 71 April about thetn leaving rhe
job site?

s A Well, he had called me and said
that.

191 MR. FRYE: Objection, Your Honor, 1)
» the extent thar this calls for hearsay.
1) MR. BENEDICT: May it please the 12

Court, I've asked genersily what they |

have 131 discussed, not what Mr Stein has
stated.

1141 THE COURT: Al right. Rephrase 13
YOUr quesLon.

115 BY MR, BENEDICT:

n7 @: Generully, what did you tall abouwt —

in 18 general terms, what topics did you
discuss with narespect ro the job site at
5150 Kansas Avenue?

1zo1 A: He called me to tell me that they
WETE [21] Stopping work.

1221 Q: IHd you tell Mr. Srein — what
statetuents 2y did yon make to Me Stein
with respect to them 24 leaving the job
site?

Fage 177
i1 A: T told them I didn’t think that was
the (21 tight thing to do,

13 Q: Didl you enterinto any agreciments

o with 191 Mr. Swein regarding payment

made on the 5150 w5 any uther
projects you had going with 1.0 Taylor?
] MR, FRYE: Objection. This ix 7 ir
relevant.

s THE COURT: Overruled. You can
ANSWCT,

(10 THE WITNESS: Payment, I don't 11
think, ever catne up.

(21 BY MR. BENEDICT:

10 The discussion of 12,0, Taylor not
being 4 paid on another job never
came 1unp during that (15 conversation,

- Mr, Stegmann?

ner Az Well he said that he had been paid
for 1171 the project for, you know, lor

cormpletion,so he napdidn't— he wasn't —

he: conldn't afford 10 lose 1w $ 100,000,

120] Qi Okay Buryou did hot muke any 21|
Stalements Or any apreements with Mr,
Stein during 22 this telephone call that
he could apply uny (24 payments on the
5150 ruoftothis orherjob site, (21) which
[ believe: is 3300, the Shadrall roof?

Page 178
Az Never agreed to that,
121 Q: Okay. I'm. going 0 ask you 10 go

hack to 3] the big exhibit book, and ask
you Lo turn ta (4 Document Number 26.
(5] A Got it.

i6] Q: Okay. Ilave you seen rhis doc
utnent. (71 ba:fore, Mr, Stegmann?

181 A; Yeu.

191 G Okay. Would von describe to the
Cournt 1o what this document is?

(1] A IUs a purchase order contract for
ID.CL ey Taylor to redo the roof at 5150
Kunsas Avenng,

113 Q: And there are some initials at the
haregm 1a) with a date of 9/16/02. Are
those your initials, 15 M Stegmann?
na) A Yes,

71 Q: Soyouauthorized the preparation
of this (18] purchuse order on hehalf of
Fleming?

9] Az My boss at the titne authorized it, 1
[20] just put my approval on this.

20 @ Higher mmunagement then  you
made the (22 decision to do it but you
impletnented it and (23 signed this doc-
urnent; iy that a fair stacement?

12(1 A: That's correct.

ffage 179
11 Q: Okay. At some point after April ar
some 2] point alter the Lse, you learned
that N.C. Taylor (3 was leaving the job
sire?

(i You've testificd ro the discussion (31
you had with Mr, Stein,

161 At some point after 1.0 Taylor left 1)
thejob site,did you become aware of any
leeales at a) the termination point of the
root where U 91 Taylor lefi the job?
1t As Yes.

001 Q: When was thar?

1121 A: Afier the last Court hearing,

1130 Q: Hated vouner heard abowt any leaks
onthe 4 roof priorro July 17th of 20052
itsl Az None to my knowledge.

nal Q: Okay.50 younever — did youever
nrrinstrnct D,.C Taylor o go and inspect
the roof on s behattof Fleming prior o
July 17th of "03?

19 A: No, 1 had — did now.

201 &: Did you have any discussion or
any 2y directints to D.C Tayloratter July
17th of 03 1221 to g0 look at the roof?
rzs1 A: Thet T recall, no.

124 @: All right, Ave you a rooling experl,

Page 120
[ §ir?
17 Do you consider yourself a rooting |3)
expert?
[ A: T would say that I'm nor an expert.
Ive 15 heen involved with roofs for 41
years, but I'm not (6 an cxpert,

71 Q: Fair cnough.

Page 174 - Page 180 (30)
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&l MR. BENEDICT:If I inay consult 19
with counsel, I may he done with this
wWiIthess.

neo] THE COURT: All right,

(11 MA. BENEDICT: I'l1 pass rlie 121 wit-
ness, Your Honor Thank you.

1131 Thank you, Mr. Stegmatin.

11411 THE WITNESS: Thank yuu.

1151 MR. FRYE: Your Ionor, I would ask

f1o] that in order tG save time, that rather
than p7t having Mr Stegmann stand

down and then us simply (18] recall him, |

that [ not only ask —

11w THE COURT: That's fine.

120) MR. FRYE: — my questions are 24
geared to cross, but also what intend to
ask the |22 witness on direct.

(3 THE COURT; That’s fine.

(zél MR. FRYE: And to that end, I'd ask

Page 181
it thatthe Court allow me to approach .1
tdo have 121 Debtors’ exhibir hoolk, and 1
den’tthink the Courtsihasacopy orthe
Wit ss,
141 BY MR. FRYE:
151 Q@ Good afiernoon, Mr. Stegtnani.
[ A: Good afternoon,
(71 G Now, I believe you testified that
you (g huve been at Fletning since 19867
i A: That’s correct.
nel @ And  what's  your  educational
background (1) prior o yonr work
cmployment anywhere?
pzp A My educational backgronnd is Py
i) completed high school and have a
bachelor degree iy in givil engineering,
angl have taken several 115 educartonal
courses since then,
161 Qi And when did you complete your
degree in n7 civil engineering?
nu Az In 1974,

o] Q: And where did vou complete your
degree, (20) sir?

1211 Az At Union College in Schenectady,
New 122) York,

123 Q: And since that time, hiave you
worked as (241 an engineer?

Page 152
11} Az Yes.
121 @: And briefly desctilee for the Cournt
your 131 wotk experience.
11 Az Lhad,asTsaid abachelors degree in
15| civil engineering, but | majored in
structures. (6] And 1 spent 15 years with a
company called James (1 McKee & Son
in construction up in the Noritheast.
1% Angd then 1 spent ten years with a 9
company called Capital Steel Cor-

121 @: And I 1think you said that was in
1986. 1131 What was your ariginal title at
Fletning?

141 A Direcwor of facilities.

sy € And is that a4 position you occupy
Today?

nai Az Thut’s correct.

(17 Q= Were vour duties from 198610 the
present 1) generally the same?

o) A: Yes.

1207 Q: Okuy. Now, if you would turn in

your -2 the Debtors’ Exhibit Book

o that 1 just handed you 22 to Exhibil

Numhber 1, please.
123 Do you have that in [ront of you, (24

. sir?

Page 183
1y A Tve got it.
12) Q: Can yon tell us what this is, sie?

31 A: This is a schematic drawing of the
Ml propused expansion that originally
was labtd out 51 for the properties.

161 @ If you look in the upper right-hand
(71 cornet, it says Oxhibit B, Was this
drawing 18 originally auached to the
leases and sublease 190 that have been at
issue this mornimse and dhis (o) after
noon?

() As T helicve it was, yes.

1z Qi Now, Mr. Benedict went through
the (151 various uses of the facilitics at the
Kunsas 141 Avenue location with Mr,
Malinee this morting, and 03 I won'task
you to repeat those. But I do have ()
sotne specific questions.

1171 You see it the fuddle of the deawing
a1 between the Shadrull facility and the
additivnol o) the Shield facility whereit
Siys rainps?

L1200 Az Yes.

(17 @ Okay, Now, at the ending point
where the 122 lines al, squigaly lines go
from ramps into what (23] looks like an
enclosed structore on this drawing, (24
what are those ending points now cal-
fed?

Fage 184

11 Would those be thie links, tie masier (2]
links hetween Shadrall and the Shield

_ facility?

poration in (o) Oklahoma City. And then

became employed with 111 Fleming.

13) A That's correct,

14 Q: Now, whart's this addition to the
Shield 51 facility where it says $2307

161 A That's an expansion that Fleming
wis (71 proposing 1o add onilo that
facility,

k) Q: S0 they were proposing o the
landlord as 191 of 199% 1o add 5250 to the
existing Shicld nop facility at 3200 Kansas
Avenuoc; is that correct?

1111 A: That's correct.

1121 Q: Andl was that ultimately done?

. [or [21] storagc?

| back to (24 rhe $150 facility w the righ

o ility front (2a) either the 150 or 510D

U Number 31 2. 1 belicve this is the san

1131 Az Yes.

1141 @ Now, if you go to the left of the
drawing 151 where it says proposct
addition to Shadrall s facility, can yo

well us what that was?
171 A That was a proposed expansion
that we 18} were going to add on at the
cnd of Shadrall e property.
1201 Q: To increase your square footagt

|z2) A: That's cotrect.
1291 Q: Now, I'll ditect vouor attt:nt.inI

to the northwest of

Page 13
(11 thatfacility. luappearsthat thereis a o)
railroad line that cormes dowin botwed
the two (31 Shield (acilities and the s
DEC facilities 5100 14 and 5150,

151 1s that still a compheted rail line, (o) sif
171 Az No.,

%) Q: What happened to that rail ling?
far A: We — it was agrecd thar we werf
going to |w) put connecting corridors 1
tie the two buildings (163 together hed-
156 this wus Lnporant w us.
1121 @: The two buildings meaning thi
1131 bunildings — r
(el A 9100 and 5200,
st @: Okay. And was 5250 also artache]!
then to 110 32007

071 A Well the corridorwasbuilt kind
in s herween the two af thetn 5o you
ne] Q: Between 31540 and 5200 or 510¢
Lo Az Well, it would kind of straddle thy
v21) midldle line there, so that you conlfl
access from (2] cither one,

1251 @: You could access the Shicld fa

location?
Paga 186
ny A: L helieve so, yes.

121 Qi Ixrect your atrention to Exhily

exhibit thatr TYEC 4 and Shicld used
their Exhihit 1, which is a 15 subleas
agreement berween DEC Investimengs
and o) Fleming companies for the 5100
Kansas Avenue (7] address; is that cof-
rect, sir?

ral A: That's correct.

19) Q: Okay. And ruther than asking yop
legal no conclusions albout what thege
various provisions of 1) the leases sa
I'm going to direet your atbeTition (12 §
Paragraph 27, Actually ir's 27.2.

(s e's on Page 22 Do you see thal, (14] sif?
1151 Az Yes.

ol Q: And where it says Norices
Landlord, 1171 DEC Investments Ine.,
P.().Bux 2346,77 South l18 James, Kans
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City, Kansas to whom is Fieming to 19
adldress notices to the landlord?

1200 A: Mr. Hannon Wedlin.

1211 Q: Do you know who he was sir?
122 A: Yes,

|25) Q: Aned who was he?

1241 A: Well, ar the titne that I met hion,
along

1*age 187
] with one of the executive vice pre-
sidenes of |71 Fleming, it was my un-
derstanding he was the 13) president of
Metro,

111 Q: And who is Morro?

151 A: They were a warchouse operation
that 6 operated 3130, 5100, and 200.
171 Q: Were they the predecessor to 1DEC
atul 18 Shield?

o) MR. BENEDICT:I'tm gaing to 0] ob-
ject. It calls for a legal conclusion,

i1 [ think we nced to establish first (121
that Mr. Siegmann has personal know-
ledge. I'd i3 object to foundation il he
has no personal (141 knowledge.

151 THE COURT: Overrled. ' alloss 16
it

171 BY MR. FRYE:

1181 @ Is it your understanding that Met-
1 wias a [ predecessor to DEC and

Shield Lor these facilities 2o at Kansas

Avenue?

1211 A: That's correcl.
12z) Q: Tlhelireer yourattentionto Page 27
of 122 the Exhibit 1, the sublease agrecm-
ent for 5150 24 Kansas Avenue, Are you
with e, sir?

Page 188
i) A Yes,
(2] Q: And who appears 1o have signed
this Iease 31 on behall of DEC Inves-
tments, Ine,?
141 A Idonald R. Patlerson.

(51 Q@ And who is Mz Patterson based on
YOUur [6] Cxperience in Lhese matters?

i71 Az Ile was the vice president of the
Mewro @) Cotnplex.

@ And he is signed here as viee
presidend pop of DEC Investnents singe
thal’s what it appears?

111 A That’s correct,

(12 Q: ' direction your atlention 1o
Exhibit 1131 3, which is the lease agrectn-
cnt at 5150 Kansas |14] Avenue between

DEC Investments and Fleming 15 Corm-

panies, Inc.

116] 1U's also DDEC Investments Exhibit 17)
Number 2. And I will direct your artent-
ion 10 13 Page 20, Parugraph 26.2.

9 Are you with me?
120] Az This is Exhibit 37

[21] Q: Yes, sir. Page 20.

[za1 Ar Yes, Right.

rzsl @: Okuy. Now, where it says 26,2
Naotices 20 o Landlord o DEC lnves-
trnents, PO. Box 23406, 77

Pagje 189
1 South James, Kansas City, Attention: 2)
Mr. Hunnon I Wedlin
(3] And that's the same person o your j4)
understanding a5 was on 3100°% sub-
lease; correct?
151 A: That'’s correct.
6l @ And then turning with me to Page
25, and 7 redl me who has signed orwho

| appears Lo have g signed this lease on

behalf DEC Investments, Inge,
1 A It's Domnald R, Parterson,
noj @: Turn to Exhibit 4, if you wontd, sir,

(111 That's the sublease agreement for

5200 Kansas (121 Avenae berween Shield
Fnvestment Cowpany and (13 Flemning,

41 Az I've gor i,

(151 Q: And if you would, turn to Para-
graph 272 g on Page 22 of that
suhlease, sit.

17 A: I've got it

18] Q: Okeay. And then does it read that
notices (9] w landlord g0 w0 Shield
Investment Company, PO, 20 Box 2346,
77 south James, Kansas city, Kansas.

(1] Attention: Mr. Ilannon . Wedlin?
1221 A: That's correct.

13 And is it your nnderstanding
hased on 2 your experience at the
negouations of these

Paga 120
11 leases thul Mr. Wedlin on behalf of
Shield was the (2 satne Mr. Hannon 13,

Wedlit that was to be given 3 notice on
lrehialf of DEC?

f41 A: That's currect.
51 @i Andifyouwonld turnto Page 27 of
this 16 exhihir. And wheo has signed the
sublease on 7 behalf of Shicld In-
vestment Cotmpany?

a1 Az Dronald R, Patterson.

19 Q: And ds this the same Donald R.
Patterson o) that would have signed on
behalf of TIEC on the (i leases in 5100
and 51502

112) A: That's correct.

1131 Q@ Now, T helieve yon testificd —
strike y14) that.

1151 Before we gel to the curh our issne,
w61 18 iL — why has Fleming, in yonr
experienice s 171 facilities manager,
elected 1o reject the leases, ns the IEC
and Shield leases?

(93 A We could no longer allord as a

company o 20 keep whe facility up and
running 1L was losing a 1) 1ot of money.

1z Q: Ilave the goods thae were housed
at those (23 facilitics been moved
other Fletming facilicies?
(24 Ar Yes,

Hago 19
11 Q: As it stands now, these facilities at
i27 Kansas Avenue, does Fleming have
any use for them (3 at all, business wise?
] A MNo.
151 @: And wirth regard to the Shadrmall
lease at 6] 5300 Kansas Avenue, doces
Fleming bave any business (7] use forthat
leise?

rey Ac None.

(9 @: And is it vour understanding thar
Fleming 1o has, in fact, rejected hat
leuwse with the Conrt's (1] approval?

12 A; That's correct.

1131 Q: Okay. Direct your artention, then,
to ) the curb cut issue.

[15] At the time the lease was negotiated
narin 1993, bascd on your experience in

thosc 1171 negoliations, wete represe-

ntatives of the g landlord, that would
e Mt Wedlinand then 1o Mr Patterson,
were they aware that Fleming s plan-
ned to close its curb ent at 5200 Kansas
(21 Avernue.

(221 MR. BENEDICT: I'm going to object
123] because it calls tor speculation us w
the minor 20 knowledge of the third
panty. But he can
ffage 192
(g ceriainly answeras 1o whether he told
Mr, Wedlin (21 or Mr. Patlerson.

13 THE COURT: Overruled. If you 4
know,

151 THEWITNESS: l'he entire project 1o

D owas gone over with Mro Wedlin and Mr

Patterson ar (7) the time, And Mr. Wedhn
had assigned Don g Patterson o vice
president, at that time, it was 2 called

. Metro Warehousing, to go averthe lines

and 1o approval,

[ Onee the design dowings were 112
complete, they knew that the drawings
that were in 3] Lhis lease fromschematic
drawings, that they [ui; weren't design
drawings.

rsp And that's the way it was left. And [14)
then —

171 BY MR. FRYE:

1181 @: Did you discuss in their presence
thie 119 retnoval of the earh ont at 5200
Kansas Avenne?

|20) Az ldon'trecallexactly ifthatexaculy
121) was discussed or not, but [ believe it
WisE,

1220 Q: Okay Were drawings submitied to
1731 Mr. Pallerson as you've testified was
yOur [24] inSttucions W approve those
drawings prior o

Pagc 187 - Page 192 (32)
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Fage 193
i1 the curb cut being removed?
(2] Az That's correct,
131 Q: Based on your experience as faco-
ilities 41 manager at Fleming, did Mr
Patterson ever raise 15 an objeclion to
the removal of the curb cut that (g
accessed the 5200 facility?

71 A Not o my knowledge.

Paga 195
(11 Q: Was it anticipated or were Mr.

© Wedlitand ;2) Mr. Patterson made aware
. that Fleming intended 1o {3 connect the

@ Q: At the time the leases were en-

teredl, did 1w you also disenss in the

presence of Mr. Patterson (1a) and Mr.

Wedlin the erection of corridors that (1)
wuuld connect the Shadrall facility with
the 121 Shield facility at 5200 Karnsas
Avenue?

i1 A Yes.
141 @ And in fuct, those corridors, for
want of [15] a hetter term, are mentoed

in the sutrender gl provision in the
lease ar Seerion 9.3, are they (17) not?

1 Az Yes.

nol & Were the drawings to that an-
nounced (0] Fleming's inlention o ¢recl
those corridors, the [(21] master links, I
think as Mr. Malinee called them, (22
were they submitted to Mr Patterson in
advance?

73} Az Yes,
124t MR. BENEDICT: Your Honor, it it

Pages 194
it please the Court, T would ask thar if
there are |3 such correspondence or
documents, that under the 3] best evid-
cnce role, that the Deblor should at 4
least present those 1w detmonstrate that
those 5] docurnents were provided to
the landlord.

16 THE COURT: Well I'loverrule 17) thar.
IIe can answer You C4Il CTOSS  Cross
examine (g} it

i BY MR. FRYE:
() Q: Justto clearthis point up, isit your

(1 nnderstanding that documents that

old bave been 12 destroyed pursuant wo

Fleming's long-standing (131 docwment

destruction policy?

1141 A: That's correct.

res1 Q: 80 i, in fuct, you still had those ns)
documents, you certainly would have

produced them (171 to counse! for DEC
and Shield; is that correct?

s Az That's correct,

g Q: Okay, 1Yid Mr, Patterson and Mr.
Wedlin (20) or anyone on behalt of DI
and Shicld cver express [21) disapproval
for rejecting the drawings for the uy
conncctions that would connect the
Shadrall (231 facility and the Shield fac-
ility?

it A Not to my — not to my know-
ledge.

DEC fucilies and the Shield 4 facilities?
151 Az Yes, they did.

161 Q: Were drawings submitted to Mr,
Patterson 71 announcing Fleming's in-
Lention o do thae?

141 A Yes.

191 Q: And based on your experiehice as
1ol facilities manager, did Mt Patterson,
Mr. Wedlin, 1111 or anyone on hehalf of
DEC or Shield ever object nz2 to thase
plans?

1131 Az Not to my knowledge,

N4 Q: Were you involved in obtaining
the (15 approval of Kansas’ Departiment
of Transponation e for moving the
cutly cut that was at 5200 Kansas 117
Avenue 1 the locaton that now acces-
ses the 191 Shadrall property?

1o A: Yes.

120] Q: And can you tell me when those
oceurred?

121] Az | don't remember exactly when

the 1221 meetings with the Depariment of

Transportation 23] ¢ccurred. But belore
there was a lot of things 124 that had to
happen in order for this complex to

Page 196
) make it happen,
121 And there was several things that 13
were critical 1o Fleming,
141 Qne, to go hack a litrle hit, is the 5
Metro Complex would have been no

Coagrecment was that 2 the modificationg
~ thar were dene — when Lsay the 13 stat

o Thar was done under LE. Dunn.

good to us 16 without the connccting

corridorsto the Shadrall ;71 property. The
facitity, it just wouldn’t have (a1 been
possible for us to use tat.

171 The expansion that we pul on 5250,
1oy as well as the connecung cortidors,
Fleming 1311 wouldn’'t have leased the
lacilities i we couldn't 14 have done

that Tmneuan, it just doesn't — ry wasn't —

Lhe facility wouldn’Lhave beenadeguate
4 W do what we needed to do.

1151 And in conjunction with that, we met
6} with the economic development
people.

1173 Q: Those with the Stae of Kansas?
rst A: Right.

1191 Q: Okuy.

120 Ar Andwe were getting alotofjobs at
that |21) time.

1221 Q: Fleming was adding jobs in Kan-
5as?

rz31 Az Right. And so —-

124 @: This was what time?

Page 197
1] Az Thiswent back in 94 Prior to us (2]
signing leascs with the — with the DEC

and (3 Shieid, as 1 refer to as Metrd,
because that's 4 whal it wasat that tim
5] &0 we mer with the economic |
development.One ofthe things that wal
critical 171 ) us wus L0 give SOny
modifications of pull off g lanes, be
ause of all the traffic that would be |
coming out of there.

o] Now, it was one big complex,

111 @: All the rmuck traffic?

12 A Al the trock traffic.

113 @ Because of the ingcreased trock
wraffic, (141 did you needa turn off lane, &
additional wrn (15] off lane added 1t
Kansas Avenue?

o) A: Yes.

n7 @ And did you work with hot
Kansas 118 Department of  Tran
portation and the Kansas ns) Econontig
Development Department o get thy
cdone j20) and funded?

j21] Ar Yes, Yes,

1221 Q: And what conractor did you usg
to get 25 that done?

1241 Az For the — well, the state aciually

Page 19§

111 contracted 10 do the work. Thi

agreed ro do the work, the curb cuts an
il climination of the curh cuts was J.4.
Dunn.

15| The State didn't really de thet 6 worlf.

171 @ And that was your contractor?

18 Az That was our contractorn T'he med
i1 was (9 done by the Siae eventhougl
JE Dunn's o designers did the dra

ings. And the ugreement was 1 that e
State would do the work and contract it
1121 it andd then Fleming would share (g
cost 3050 1y with the State.

1] Q: For the median?
1s) A: Far the median and the puli off
lane.
el Q: And who paid for the retoval of
the curly 7 cut?

s A: Fleming paid for that.

e @: And who paid for the expansiog
of the (2o curb cut in the Shadrall facilicy
thar you talked (21) abowut parsuant to My
Benedict’s gquestion?

122 A: Fleming paid for that.
123 @: When were the — when was thg
curb cut 24 completed, sit, to the best of
your recollection?

Fage 19

1) A wWelt, the Starte - you know, th
State 121 had to get their funds in order
do it 8o the (3] project I think wak
completed several months (1) before, di
you say curb cuts or median cuts?
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151 @ Curh cuus?

161 A: Oh,the curb outs, theywere done —

the (7t Shadall curh cut was done in "94,

1% Q: And what aboul the cutly cut at
Shield?

i Ar AL Shield, that was eliminared. We
had o) to, as part of the agreement,
because Metro has 11 had a going
opetationthat's 5200,5130. U hey had 12
ta build a new facility.

3 @ They could move cut and Fleming
could (14] move in?

nsl A: Yes,

ner Q: When did that happoen?

17 A: That happened in "94.

sl Q: And when was the curb cut re-
meved it the o 5200 facility?

120) Az Te would have had o have been, @
would [21] say, the lalter part of 94, early
part of "95.

(zzt @: It waus wecomplished well before
April, (23 15t 2003, 1 presumne?

124] Az That's correct,
Paga 200

1 Q: Has any work been done with
regard (o any 121 of the curb cuts since the
[ling of the 13 hankruptey peddon?

14 Az Not 1o my knowledge.

151 @: Now, how long did ir rake you to
get all 161 the necessary approvals from
the department --- the (7] Kansas Dep-
artment of Transportation and the |\
Economic Development Department 1o
get the curb |9 cuts and median issues
resolved?

ne Ar [would say probably two or three
(1] months,

(121 Q: w0 this s — it takes — it tukes
longer (5] Lhan just one phone callTased
(1 your experienoe?

4] A Yes. That's correct.

1151 @ Ler's discuss the corridors that )
connected the Shadrdl facility and the
2200 or p7) the Shicld facility, When
were those crected, to (s the best of
your recollection?

ne A well, we — even though Metro
wis in 20 operation since that back part
of 5200 orthe 1211 norherly part of 3200
wits un open feld at rhe 22) tme,

173 & And Iooking at Exhibit 1, would
that be (24 what's idemtified there s
5250 Kansas Avenue

Page 201
i where it says in addition to Shicld
facility?
121 A Yeah, 5250
131 Q: 8o that was an open field in 93 or
047
[ Az Right, And so Don Patterson al-
lmm_?_(l s 5] 10 gO ahcad an start con-

structionin there and we js) could do the
back carridar,

171 @: Which one was the back corridor?
il A: Even thongh it was still in oper-
Ation.

) THE COURT: Please don'talk over o]
him. We have a problem with the court
reporter 111 aking both of you.

117 BY MR. FRYE:

ol Q0 'msorry, My apologics. Whicl 1§
the |14 back corridor, sir, on this map?
ns) A:That would be the north, the
north tarngy 16 as 15 designated on this
drawing. wWe: call it the n7pinner link,

1181 @: S0 that was constructed when?

(ta] A: That would be consuructed the
earlier jwo) part of — this was all in
construction in 'S4 ) early part of 94,
rzz1 Q: What about the sowh corridor?

1231 A: Well, the south one we had to do
that 241 last, and hecanse Metto was still
in operation and

Page 202
111 Do Patterson didn't want to remove
the fenee, (2 0.
131 @: Where 15 the fence, sir?
[4] A Well, the fence went right pretty |5
close — you know, it's abouwt, I don't
know, oh, & maybe a corridor over
whete the propenty line 70 would be to
the eust from the Shadrall building.

s @: It run herween what's identitied as
the 19 Shadeall facility?

pop Ar Yeals, It ran right down where —
see (11 where the ramg 18, look where
the A is, property 112) line is right ubout
where the A s 10 you g0 113] north and
south,

(141 Qi Okay. And there was a fence
there?

s A; That was a fence there.
116) Q: Cleay,
1z A well, the fence actually came up

aned then ps) ticd hack to the end of the
Shicld building there (o) at the cornet,

(2 @ And so that lence had o e taken
down (211 before this south cortdor
could be erccted?

jz2) A That's correcl. And then Mewo
had to (231 gel oul ol their operations,
which they eventually (24 did, and al-
lowed us o go ahead and stan. They

Fage 203
1 moeved Lheir fence.
121 Wewere able tomove the fence down
[3] t(‘-l'ﬂ[301'§‘l-|'ily1 ang put A lClTlpol'y
funce down. And (1) Don allowed us o
goetin and siart doing the south 15 one.
161 @z And when, approximately, was thar
171 complered o the hest of youor -
collection?

In Ke: Fleming Companies, Inc.

131 Az I'd say late '04, carly 'Y5.
(2] Q: Was any work done on these two

cdoeess o) corridors, the master links on

or after (1 April Ts, 20037

1121 A No.

(131 Q: What abwnar the connects bet-
ween the DEC 4 facilitics and the
Shicld facility? You testilied 1 those
were installed.

116] Approximately, when was that done
to 171 the best of your recollection?

(131 Az That wus done probably, | would
say, o eatly part of '9%, We had o wait
until Metro got 200 out completely.,

1211 @i And was that project completed
prior to 122 April 1st, 20037

123 Az Yes.

1211 @ And hasany work been done with
regard to
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that comnection since April 1st, 200%?
2 A Well, the south connection bei-
ween the (31 buildings when we did the
19498 project had w he 1) tedone hec-

. Ause —

151 Q: Was work dome on - I'm sorry,

s Az Becanse of the 08 project, we
turned 171 3200 into a freeyer, 5o we had
to tedo the south ) corridor, because
you're going fromin the 9) project. Also,
part of 9200 became the meat [0 toom.
[errSer itwas going from 28 degrees down
(12w minas five. And so wae had to
insulate that 14 corridor sowe wouldn't
ger defamation due to the () teme
peramre,

1151 Q: Was that work completed prior wo
e Aprit 1st, 20037

1171 Az Yes.

() Qi And was any work done on these
corridors 19) alier the bunkruptey filing,
Lo your knowledge?

1201 Az Not to my knowledge.

121 @ Now, we've heard a lor of tes
tirmony here 22 ahowut the roof ar $150
Kansas Avenue. And you 23 restified on
cirect to Mr. Benedict that thar work (24
was heing petformed on that roof ar the

; titne the

Page 205

(1 bankrupiey fling in February — on
April 1st, 121 2003; 15 that correct?

15t A; Thar's correet.

1 Q: Why was Fleming replacing that
roof, sir?

151 Ar It was a big ice storm Lhat hit that 16
area. It was the latter part oL 2002,

171 And it took (uite a while 1o get (8]
negotiations with aninsurance company
toget (ot resolved whatthey would apree
1o replace, and [10] what they wouldnt
Agree o replace.

Page 200 - Page 205 (34)
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(111 Aned it took wus guite o long titne o (12)
¢t proposals, You know, when you're
deualing with (131 insurance companies,
you can't just give theim one (4 pro-
posal. They want wo look at different s
options.
L6 80 we had to provide themwith all iz
the different options until finally they
resolved (s this to what they would
approve the monies for 19 replacement.
j200 @ Direct your attention to Exhihit 5
inthe 1211 Debilors' ExhibitBook [belicve
it's the same as [22) DEC Exhibit 6,
(23] 130 you recogniae that, sir?
124 Az Yes.

fraga 206
11 G Can you tell us what that is?
12 A: That's the purchase order thar was
issued (4110 D.C Taylor fordoing the roof
on 5150
141 Q: The one that the insurance com-
pany did, 151 they agreed o pay for that?
6] A: Yes, .
171 @ And you have testified these are
your g initials at the bouom daed
9/L6/02?
ro1 Ar Right,
1101 Q: And vou said there was an ice
storm the {11 fater part of 20027
2 Az yes.
131 Q: Was, in tact, the ice srorm in
February (14 2002, sir?
51 A: I'm soery. February, yeah,
(6] @: Ijust want 1o be clear.
71 A Right.

na Q: While yon geta purchase urdt:ruf—?

119 what's thut?

1200 A I said 1 lorgot we are in the ltter

part (21} of 2005 already.
1221 Q: All right. Okay.
1231 And when did work, to the best ol [24)

vour knowledge, hegin on 51590 put-
sunt to this
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1] purchase order?
121 Ar I don't know exactly when i star
ted on (31 %150, They actually started
replacing the roof at 14 3300. And then
when they got that done, they 151 moved
over Lo 5250,
161 @: Now, wrning o, il you would, o
Txhibit (71 6. Do you recognive this, sir?
w1 A: [ don’t have an Exhibit 6, I don'’t v
think, I've got an Exhibit 3A,
no] @: Well, no, It's — Exhibit6inthe tab
11y does say Deposition Exhibit 3A on it
at the 1121 battom, but it's behind 1ab 6.
13 Az Okay.
141 @: Tm sotry. It appears to be oan
nnsigned 115 agreement berween Flenn-

ing and D.C Taylor.

1161 Was an agreement between the rwo
1171 compunies sitnilarto this ever signed,
1o the best g of your recollecton?

(o] A No.

120 Q: S0 D.C. Taylor just did the work
pursuant 21 1o the purchase order, is
that to the hest of your 122 recollection?
1230 A Well, if you read the purchuase
order 2 here, I beticve you gobacleto—
it should — 1t

Page 208

111 states that a copy of the proposal is

- arrached.

12 @: Okay, And that would have been
what you 31 understood o be the
CONLEACT, SiF?

141 A: That's carrect,

ist @7 Olcay. Fait enough.

61 Now, youesiitied on direct that ;71 you
learned that D€ Taylor had stapped
work on s the faciliy, that is, the
installation of the 9 roofat 5150 after —
shortly after the bankrupilcy (0] petition
was filed on April 1st, 2003; (1) 15 thar
correet?

(12 Az Thar's correct.

113 G And what did you understand
U.C. Taylor (14 had done at the point
where they stopped working?

s Az They, as my understanding, did a
[16) tempomary tie off.

- Avenue?

1171 Q2 At the $150 facility ar that poine

- where sl they stopped work?

oA Yes,

120 Q: And what wasyour understanding
as t how (200 they had tied this offasa
Letnpaniaty te ofl?

221 A They used caulking to tie the
membrane (2 down o the existing toof
(29 G The partics have stipulated that
the roof

Page 209

i1 leaked on oor about June 26th, 2003,
How dhied you 121 learn about this leak?

13 Az L heard ahout it through the Jast ()
hearing.

151 Q: That's right. 1 belicve you testified
10 (o that on direct.

171 A; Yeah.

) Q: And Thelieve you also testified 1hat

(9 after you learned about the t0of

leaking at the o last hearng, you
instrncted Mo Stein oo mepair 1) the leak;
is that correct?

121 A: That's correct. [ called him right
away.

13 Q: And is — 't sorry?
114 A: 1 called him right away.

1151 @Q: And based on your conversation
with him (1] and what happencd there

after, has the leak been 17 repairedat th ;I
tie off point, to the best of your [)
knowledge?

1191 Az To my knowledge, it has nor,

1201 @: Do you know why?

(2t MR. BENEDICT: I'm gaing w abjec
i22] to the extent it calls for hearsay.

123 THE COURT: Sustxined.

121 BY MA. FRYE:

Paga 21
i Q: I direct your attention to Exhibi
Numberiz 7 behind Tub 7 inthe exhibi
hook.

31 Az Pye got it

1i1 G Do you — did Fleming receive thi
letter 153 Trom DG, Taylor that's dated
June — July 3151, 6] 20037
(71 Az Yes.

ia1 @: And el us who Danny Apadockd
is?

12) Az 1Dan is — he s a Bacilities engineo
who (10] reports (o me.

1 @: Does he work directly under Ynuh
tiz) Az Yes.

ns @ And is he the one who wa
overseeing 1) pricrily the issues wit
regard o the roof of s 5150 Kansa

1l A: Yes.
117 Q: And who does this letter purpod
to he 11 signed hy?
(19 Ar Larry Stein.
(201 Q: And do | belicve you testified i]
your [2)] primary contact at [0.C. Tuylog:
correct?
12zt A: That's correct,
1231 @ And does Fleming auake iU part of
their j2i) ordinary practice to il].cludf_"i?
their files

Page 21.
1 eorrespondence they get {rom cong
panies with which 21 they do businesg
such as 1.C Taylor?
3] A Yes.
1) QA And did this lerter, in fact, comf
from 15] the files of Fleming?
161 Az Yes.
71 Q: And does Fleming keep such r:I
cords in its w1 ordinary course of it
busingss?
19 Ar Yes,
1101 Q: And if you'd read the lerter, does
m]accurately reflect, on a general hasiy,

. the titme 12 line of events, so to speal,
- hetween the leak on 3 June 23nd an

the day of the leder based on your
recallection?
(151 Az Nor o my knowledge, it wasn't,

L2
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things thar 117 are said in (his letter?

na) A No T don'e disagree wirh ir.

(191 To my knowledge, there wasn't any
12 discussion, [think your guestion wis
frior w0 121 this, regarding this loter
1221 @: Right, But when you received the
letter, 1231 did you revicw it?
[24] A: Yes.

Paga 212

i1 @ Anel are the events as outlitied in
the 121 letter similar 10 your recollection
uf how they 13 transpired after the leak
on June 26th?

14 A Yes.

15) @: Turn, if you would, to Exhihit &.

161 And the fiest page isa declaration (7)ol

[Dyan Apadocka, whom you idemified ay

an (s employee that works directly

under you: is that |9 correct?

nop A Yes,

(11 Q: Did you dispatch Mr. Apadocka,
along with 21 another Fleming cmploy-
ee, to the Kansas Avenue (13) facilities on
or about July 28th, 20037

4] Az Yes,

115; Q: And what was the purpose of thar
visit?

nal A: To go up and walk through the
facility n7) with Mr John Malinee 1o tizke
sure that there (8 wasn't anything thar
wasn't cleancd op, or that 19 there

wusn't hazardous material lell as has

bt 120 previously stated.

1211 Q: And was Mr. Apadocks o tuke
pictures or221the Fleming employees to
take pictures of he (23] Lacilities?

121 A Yes.

Page 213
11 Q: And according to Mr. Apadocka’s
20 declatarion, the pictures thal are
altuched to the 31 affidavic, —
141 MA. BENEDICT: We'll stipulate to (5
the admission of the photographs, Your
onor.
161 MA. FRYE: All right, 1t you take 714 —
thank yon, Mr, Benedict.
s BY MR. FRYE:

19 Q: 1T you take just a hrief loolk ar some
ol o the photos, do these appear, the
facilities appeat 1o he hroom clean to
you?

121 A: They're more than hroom clean-
ed.

3 MR.FRYE:And just for Court's 114
reference, the locations of each picture
and the s direclions that the camera
wias pointing are (16 identified on the
side nmap behind Exhiibic 8B,

117] BY MR. FRYE:
(15 Q: Finally, Mr, Stegmann, il you'd turn

Lo 19! Exhilyit Number 9, behind Taby 9. !

Can you tell us 1200 what thar is, sir?
i21] Az Exhilyit 9 is a disgram of the 5200,
5250,z 5100 1and 5130, racking lay out.

1251 @ No. No. No. I think yon're ar
picrure (21 Number 9.
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111 A: Yeah.
121 Q: No.Andactually I think you may be
i1 (31 the wrong hool,
111 A Qleay,
151 @: You're: in rhe Debtors —
&) Az Yeah,
171 Q: — Exhibit Book?
(%1 A: Yeah.
i @: Okuy. Behind Tab 97
1) A ODKAY,
11 G: Okay Are you with me?
112] A: Yeah.
1131 Q: Dy you recognize this letter, sie?
N4 A It's a letter of proposal (ot JE.
Dutin.
1151 @: Yes, sic. 1o you recognize i?
sl Az Yes,
117) Q: Okay Can youtell uswhy — it says
18 that you received a copy of this, Can
you tell us 1w what, if anything, vou had

asked J.E. Dunn 2v Construction Com-
paty to do?

1211 Az Well, because of all the informmar
fon that 122) [ had gathered and what was
going on with Court, 1173) had asked J.E.
Dunn o give me a proposal on 24
anything I could think of that would
CULSE OF
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nmirestore their properiy back Lo original,
anything 121 [ could think of.

13 Q: Why did you ask J.E. Dunn to do
that?

1] Ar Because T didn't know where this
thing |51 was going.
w @ THd J.E Dunn do all the con-

- struction 7] there previously?

1 A: Yes.

) Q: S0 they were familige with the
property?

not A T'hey were very familiar, had all
the ) drawings and —

2] Q: Okay. Turn i you would, to the
second 3] page ol that exhibit, where it
S4YS CONSUrUCLONn 1141 Cost, site separ-
ation and drive entrance.

11s; A: Yes.

e @: Cosr 816, 1 presume, thousand
daollars, nz7) And actvally a 116 — $2162
ng] A: Thal's correct.

119 Q: Is that forreplacing the curbatthe
120 2200 [acilicy?

1211 Az Y,

1221 Q: And are the — is the hreakdown
of this 23 estimate attached on the fpext
page aswrwhere 121 they get that ligure?

Page 216
(1] A: Thal's correct.
121 Q: And is a furiher description of the
work 3 thatthey would do onthe fonrth
1o the last page (1) where it says Project
Descrption Page [ of 3ac 5 the number
ote, period?
16 A: I guess | don't understand where
are (7] you,
18] Q: 1'm sorry. ILwould be, I said, four o
from the Dack But we'll connt over from
the 1o front,
(111 Az Oleay,
111 Q: It would be the eighth page.
fr3r As Where it says project description?
11+ Q: Yes.
1151 Ar Okay, Gol il
néi Q: And ar rhe oumber one period, is
thata (171 general description ofthe work
that J.E. Dunn 18] would propose o do ut
the site sepurutionand 1) drive cntrance
to restore Lthe curhy?
0] Az That's correct.
211 @z And referring back 16 the second
page of (271 the exhibit, where it says
separace utilities, 123 Nutnber 4,
=) Al Yes.

Page 217
(11 G — 15 J.E. Dunn's estinute, that that
12 would cost $193,30%?

(3] A: Thut's correct.

11 Q@ And what do you underscand - -
would that 15 be the erection of a fire
wall; ts that what that 6] tneuns?

171 Az Separate. What the atilities

(] Q: Yeah.

12 Ar No Separate. The utilities wounld be
o) the elecuic and gas, and thar sort of
thing.

11 Q: And that's identificd?

112] Az If you ook at Page 203, Pamageaph
4 in 3 project description,

nal Q: Okay. That's where that’s iden:
tifieed; 15) right?

16 A Right.

1171 @: O this Exhibit Number 9 where
J.E Dunn ns) has estitnated its going to
cost, approximately, o $116,000 0
testore the cuth our,

[2n) 1Tag J.E. Dutiny, tor vour knowledge, or
1211 Fletming, approached the authoritics
in Kansas to e seek approval for having

- any of this done?

123 A: T don't know whether |LE Duan

. has or 124 not, but Fleming hadn't.

Page 218
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11 @: And based on your experience the
last z1time, would thisbe — would such
approval, (3] assuming that it was grun-
tied, be a process that ) could ake
months or longer?

151 A: I wouldn't think so.

(6] Q: Ilow long would you ¢stimate that
it might |7 take?

sl AT wouldn't think it would take
anymore @ thenit took Fleming three to
four months.

nm Q: Three or four months?
(111 Az 'To put the curh cut in.

12 Q: Okay, Now, finally, did you un- .

derstand 113} that the roof repair un-
dertaken alter the February (14 2002 ¢
storm that was regpuired by rhe repair is)
provision of the leasc in 5150; is thar
COTrect?

1el A: That's correct.

1171 MR. FRYE: Nothing further, Your s
Honor.

o THE COURT: I guess, redirect or [2n]
cross, whatever you want wo call it

1211 MR. BENEDICT: I'in ot sute what [
22 want to call it, Your IIonot, but §
certainly have 1231 a few questions.

(v BY MR. BENEDICT:

Page 219
in Q: I'm suftering from binder buildup,
[ Mr, Stcgmann. WETE YOU aWare: thar &}
counsel fram DEC sent a letter to your
counsel on (4 April 9th, requesting that
Fleming take sieps to (51 reswore the
eeess at 52007 April 9th,

161 A T don't recall.

171 Q: Okay. And your testitnony is thast it
s wonld take g mutter of three w {four
manths tor 191 the access to he restored.
tof S0 if Flerning hud begun that process
11 on April 9th when requested by the
landlord, that nzr could bhe done now,
contldn't ir?

1131 Az Most likely.

1) Q: Okay LetUs lurnnow o the e xhibit
vour 15} counsel was asking yvou abour,
which is the LE, 6 Dunn, for kick of 4
better word, estimate, bid.

1171 Aned Twould like you to move forward
8y in that document three pages to
what’s identified 9 as site sepuaration
and drive ¢nrrance.

1201 Arg you there yer, sie?

(211 A: This is in the Debtors' Boole,

122 @ Yes. I'im sorty.

1251 This is Exhibit 9, Tab 9 in the (24
Debtors’ Book.

Page 220

11 A Tve got it

12t @Q: The J.E. Dunn that you were just
looking 131 at?

r4) A: Right.

(51 Q: And 'm ¢n Page 3, site separation
and (&) drive entmnce.

171 Let me know whenyou're onthe right
il g, it

ol Az Yes, 've got it

pop @ Okay. Now, as I understand your
[ testimony, this is a surmary of what it
would take (121 to open up the curhy cut?
13 A: That's correct.

(4 @z Okay. Now, Iem I, fencing, is that
[15] physically necessary (o open up the
curk cut?

ner A: Well, he had a slight scparation
and p7r diive enwtance.

119 @: Okay. Just focusing on the open-
ing up of 91 the curb cut, that's what I
walt 1o determinge is (207 this ltem 12,
fencing, necessary for opening the 2y
curhy cut?

221 As No.

(231 Q: Okay. Is the interior partition |2
necessary for opening up the curh cut?

Page 221
1 A No.
1200 Okay.  Excuvation
work?
13 Ar Yes,
i+ @: Concrete work?
151 Az Yes.

and  grading

i71 then C, the excavation, grading, and
the concrele @) work, [ aet $13,330,

i A That would be correct.

po @ Oleay. And so that's the physical
cost to 11 apen up the curb cul?

21 A: Yeah.

3] Q: Clkay. Does this include the right
with {14 the State to aceess the highway?
1151 Ar T would say that it's probahly a 116/
permitted costs that would be on top of
this.

N7 G Bat this as assumes you would get
that; |1& right?

e Az Yes.

fzo] Qr Oreay. But this doesn't address the

issuc |21 of whether Fleming, ot pardon

me, whether the (22 landlond, Shield, has

i that right today?

123) A: That's correct.
1241 Q: Okay. The Irem E, inlerior par-
titicans,

Page 222

111 is that the cost to erect the fre wall
hetween (2 the Shield facility and Shad-
rall facility?

3] A Thar's correct.

11 @: You had some testimony during
Mr.Frye's 5| examination with respect to
an insutance claim for 6 the ool at

51500

m Az Yes.

18] Q: Okay Do you remember whett you
finalized (o) that tnsurance claim?

o1 A: The tolal dollar amount?

() Q: Mo, sir. T'm asking when yon
finalized, 12) the dare and titne.

13 MR. FRYE: Objection, Your Homnod

(141 I don't think this witness actually
finalized (151 that.

el THE COURT: Overruled Ifhe can (17
ANEWET,

[18; Do you know when it was [inalized
1o THEWITNESS: I don't. I'm j20) wonj
dering whar he meuans by finalized,

1211 THE COURT: You want 1o clarify?
1221 MR. BENEDICT:If it please 1thc |23
Court, I'd like to mark a rebuttal cxhibi
and use (2] it o refresh this witnes
recollection,

Page 22':1
i1t THE COURT: Do you want to clarify .
your guestion first? e didn't answer.

i3 MR. BENEDICT: Sure_Let me 1y carif
that,

15| BY MR, RENEDICT:
(6 Q: Mr. Stegmann, do you recall whed

© YOI et [7) WO yOur inSurance Compan

the final muster proof 15 of loss agreeis

o ent executed by Fleming representing i

16 Q2 Okay, So if we just take the Itetns B, i the insnrance claim for whis faciliry?

o) Al dida't do that, Qur risk mamng
agement 11 people did.
hizi 50 I don't know,

1131 Q: You did not do that, and you havg
no (o) knowledge?

1151 A: Lhave knowledge it was done. Thy
when (16 it was done, I don't knuy
when.
1171 MA. BENEDICT:I[ it please the n
Court, I'd like ro matk a rebuttal exhibi
and porweve nuarked itas Number 08, 1f]
might hand one (20 to the Court an
deputy, and then Pl approach 21 th
witness,

1221 MR. FRYE: Your Honor, nuay I see |2
that?

1241 THE COURT: You muay.

11 MR. BENEDICT: You will,
121 BY MR. BENEDICT:

3] Q: Mr, Stegmann, is this not a lettef
dated (4 April 15th, 2003 w Crawford
regarding a master |5 proof of loss?

151 Az That's correct.

171 @: Whaose signalure is on this letter?
1% A: Ming,

o) Q: And is this the master proof ol lo
with 0} respect to the insurance clii
made for the 5150 (1)) building?
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izp Az That's correct.
1131 @ And what was the amount that
you made a 14) claim to your insurance
contpany for?

(51 A $1,194,178.

16) Q: And now, I 1 — let me see, and fell
me (171 if I've read this accurately. I'm
reading the (18 letter, which is the first
page of Exhibit 68,

19| “Enclosed please find the Master (200
Proof of Loss signed by our Mr. George
Ward. 1211 Please let me know when
Fleming can receive Lthe 12z check for
the halance.”

(23] A: Right.

1241 Q: Is that accurate?

Page 225
{1 A That's correct.
121 Q: Have you received the check now?
13 Az Yes,
11 Q: Okay. And have you remitied those
(5] proceeds o DEC or Shicld?
161 Az 1 have nol.
11 What has Fleming done with those
1 proceeds?
i Az don't know.
() Q: Okay. Do you know who the
insutance ) certificare holderison this
prarticular parcel of 12) property?
14 A: Lilon't,
i @: Would you turn o Page 2 of
Exhibit 1151 Nurnber 68, Question Num-
ber 3.
nsl THE COURT: What's the exhibit 17
numhber?
131 MR. BENEDICT: This is Exhibit 19
Number68,the ane wie just handed up o
Lhe Court.
iz0) THE COURT: Oh, okay.
121 MR. BENEDICT: Puge 2. The loose |22
one we just handed you, Mr. Stegmann,

125 THE WITNESS: Olcay.

[*ago 226

1 BY MR. BENEDICT:

(21 @ Queslion 3.

(3] Az Okay.

141 @ Title aned Interest: At the tme of the

131 loss, the interest of vour Insured in the

propenty s described above — pardon

me -— deseribed therein (77 was, aned
there's a typewritten delineation, Sole 15
Owner.

191 Is that correot, siré

nol Az That's corvect.

1 & 8o ! read Ut correctly?

Nzl A: Yes.

1131 € And this is the proof of 1oss as w
the 141 ice storm with respect w the

5130 building and [15) the 5300 building; :

COTTECE?
s Az Correct.

1171 Q: We've identified as Exhibit Nutn-
ber 1,2 s and 3theleases with DEC and
with Shicld, and oy we've identifted as
Exhibit Number 64 the lease (2o with
Shadrall,

[21] lsn't it correcy, sit, that 22 Fleming's
interest in these propertics was as (w5
lessee, not as owner?

124) Az 1 dign’t fill this oul. This was donge
by
Page 227
11 our Risk Departiment.

121 T don't know what they consider how
13) they consider.

L@ That wasn't my question, sit. My |5
question was: 1s Kleniing's interescin this
|6l PIOPEITY A8 A (CnAant, Net as the owner?
17) A: That's correct.

81 G S0 this statement to the insurance
1ot cotnpanty as reflected on this Master
Proofof Loss ot exeouted by Mr.George
Ward, which under your 1) signature
was tmansmmitted to the insurance com-

Copany nz s et aconrate in Question |
Number 37

113 Az Twaonld say, yes,
(i @ Okay,  Was
through he (19 t1il?
el A Yes, it was, I helieve, | think it was
(17 famed and mailed,

s Q: Okay,

nwt MR. FRYE: Your Honor, i doesn'e 120
have a signature of anyone. It certainly
doesn't (a1 have Mr Stegmanty’s natme, to
my knowledge, docsn't 1221 appear on
this.

123 I dot't think rthere can bhe a (24

this  transferred

| [oundation laid as to admissibility as

evidenoe.

'agae 228
111 THE COURT: Well, let's find oot 2 Is
this G9?
13 MR. BENEDICT: it will be, Your 11
Honor. Could Lapproach the wittiess?
151 THE COURT: You may.
5] MR, BENEDICT: My upalogies to the
(73 Courl. We only have one copy of the
exhibil. g1 After we ask the witness

questions, Teness we'll g ask thewitness

Lo provide you with the copy.

[10: THE CQURT: (Mcay.

iy BY MR. HAMPTON:

1z G Mr. Stegmann, Ul hand you what's
been 130 macked as Exhibit Number 69,
DEC and Shield 1141 Exhibit Number 69,
(131 TTave you ever seen that document
lsl before?

171 A: No.

i @ No. Have you ever seen doc-

! uments like 19 that?

1z0] A: Iprobably have, but that's not my —
I'm 1211 not responsible forany of this I’y

¢ done by aur 1221 Risk Depurtiment.

1231 Q: Oleay. You would agree with me,
however, (24 that that reflecrs that the
certificare holder on

Fage 2249
(11 that insurunce hinder is DEC In-
vesrment Company; [2] cotrect?
131 A: That's correct.
ti) MR. BENEDICT:1I'l! lay the (s foun-

_dation through a rebuttul withess, Your

(&1 1Tonot. Ul withdraw the witness for
the moment, (71 11 T may approach the
wilncss?

w1 THE COURT: You may.

m BY MRA. BENEDICT:

1) G Mr. Stegmann, do you have per-
sonal 110 knowledge as to whether the
roof leak, which has 12) been stipulated
Lo a§ ocourzing on June 23rd, 3] whe-

ther thar existed prior to April 1512

4] A No, [ don'L.

s Q: Okay. You have testified, Ihelieve -
|1é] strike that.

1171 Priar ta April 1st, 2003, Fletning s
leased and operated a distribution fac
ility on p9) North Atlantic Street in
Kansas, did it not?

1200 Az Yes. That's correct.

1211 Q: And what type of warehouse was
thut? Was 22 that 2 dry warchouse ur a
refrigeruted warchoyse?

1235 Az It was basically refrigerated, bur ir
had (24) 2 small part of dry.

Paga 230
111 Q: Okay. And at some point around
1999, 121 Fleming made a determimation
As part ofa 3 sutegic plan that it would
clase that facility @ and move the
reftigerted portion of that 15 ware-
house 1o Kansas Ciry, Kansas facility at
some (o Tufure thie; 1s that correct?

171 Az L don't remember i AL was '99, har
we (5] talked about it {or several years.
121 G Okay. At leust as carlier ag 20007
1o A: Yes, I'd say so.

i @ Okay, At some point prior o April
Lst 121 0f 2003, did a portion of the goods
that would 13] normally be stored at the
Atlantic Street propertly (4] getmoved o
and begin being stored al the 51, s
pardon me, the Kansas City warehouse
facilitics |16 that we've been talking
about here today, the 17 51(K), the 52007
&) A Yes.

119, Q: 51507

1200 A Yes.

121) Q: Okay. Would you describe for rhe
Court 1221 what you woved prior to April

Page 225 - Page 230 (38)
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1517
1231 A: From the Atlzntic Street?
1241 Q: Fron the Atlantic Stteet property.

Page 231
A We mewed in 1999, we moved
meat. We had (2) meat storage from there
over to 5100,
131 And then in March, we moved 2003,
we 4] moved dairy deli from Atlantic
Slreet Over, o0,

(51 @: Okay, sir. Do you have in front of
you 16 the movants’, DEC and Shield’s
exhibit book, the 7/ targer one that has
the time s 3:00 p.m,on the s cover that
says Exhibit Number Book?

19 Az Yes.

por@Q: 'm going o ask you to o to
Exhibit 1y Nuomber 10 10 that book,
which is the survey of the 12 real
property.

(13l Az T've got il

v41 Q: My apologics, If vou would turn
with me (151 to Number 11. That's the
survey of just the DEC 16 and Shield
facility.

(171 It's a little bit bigger, 130 you g] haye
that tiow in ot of you, sir?

[ Az At Exhibhit 117

|2 Q: Yes.

121 A: Yes.

121 Q: Now, thisis — and I'll represent o
you 123 Lhis is a survey of the DEC and
Shield facilicies |+ located at S0, 5150
and 5200,

Page 232
1 A: Yes,

(21 Q: T believe you've heard the esti-
mony 13} about that here today?

[+ A Yes.

15t Q: The warehouse 15 represented on
this 16 exhibit. A purtion of thein are
dedicated o (71 efrigensted warchouse
space; is that correct?

8} A That's correct,

o1 Q: Okay. And which althe warehouse
space (10| here was compatible with the
move fram Atlantic [ sieeet in 199497
13 Ar There was — 19997 There was
nothing 113] compatible.

p141 Q2 50 it was all refrigeration units at
that 1151 titne at Kansas City, Kansas to
accomndite the 16 move from Arlan-
tic: Street?

1171 Az And insulated walls,

ne @ And insulated roofs in the 5104
building?

(191 A: I dom’t remeinber now whether
we didan 2o insulated roof. Ldon 't know
if it wus necessary 121) in that area,

12y @: Okay All right.

(231 Now,in March of 2003, yvou moved (24
additional goods frotthe Atlantic Sireel

Page 233
11 warehouse to the Kansas City, Kansas
warchouses; (2] cormect?
131 Az That's correct.
(1 Q: And I believe you said meat and
deli?
(51 A: No. We just did dairy dch,
151 @ Dairy deli. And where was that in
the (7] 5100 building, the 5150 building,
the 5200 u building, or the 5250 build-
ing, do you recall?
191 Az 5100,
noy G S100, Okay,
(11 Now, there'sbeen some discussion of
1121 the roof with respect o the 5150
building, and 1:31 again in the book that
you huve opened, Iiem [11) Number 26,
which is the purchase order, Exhibit 15

' Number 26 in the same book youw're in.

116 Az Ive got it.
117; Q: Okay, Angd you'll agree with me

that this 181 is the purchase order that |

you initialed 10 Ix.C. 19 Taylor for the
installation of the roef on 51507

1201 Ac That's correct.

1211 Q: Okeay. And that's the northern pant
of 1221 the DEC facility; correot?

rz3] A Yes.

(241 Q: Which is currenty dedicated to
dry

Fage 234
111 watehouse space?
121 A: That's correct.
14 Q: Oleay,
1) Ar There's a main office there, o0,
151 Q: And the administrative offices -
thank 6 vou. I appreciate that clar
ilicaiion,
71 Now, tell me if Pve read this w
correctly in your purchase order, fur-
mished tabor @ and material per your
proposal dated February 1, po) 2001 to
remove smoke bawches. Furnish and
install () new  insulation and me-
chanically fasten Stevens EP 1z white
rool membrane system over the metal
rood (3 over future perishableand office
areas, (14 approximately, 71,500 square
feet. Copy of 1151 proposal attached.
el Did I read that accurately?
(i A: Yes.
nap @ o it's expressly  contemplaned
whenyou 19 signed this purchase order
for 12.C Taylorto |20 install this new roof
aver the future perishable (21 area;
correct?
(221 A: That’s correct.

1231 @: And because you had intended o
usc the (24] spaces as a future perishable

¢ those

area, having an

Page 2;3.[
111 insulated roof wis important o Fle
ing, wasn't 12 it?
131 A It helps.
141 Q: That would improve the ability 1
use (5 this portion of the warehouse
refrgerated ) space, would it not?
17) A Yes.
i1 Q1 And Fleming had a plan to relocatg
the o Atlantic Street merchandise wo thl
Kansas City (o] facility after it improve
the property by (1 installing this i
sulated proof; corrcct?
2] A That was the future claims.
03 Q: Do you know if Metro War
houses was the [14] PropCtTy MENAEET ¢
the owner of these facilities ns; whe
you negotiuted the leases in 19932

ner Ar As 1 oreeall, M Wedlin was g
Owinger,

171 G Okay. NMow, it's trme, that Flemit
s signed these beases with the owner

that — 9] owners identified in cach ¢
the respective leases (200 as to 5100 anfl
5150 us DEC; correct?

(217 A: That's correct,

1221 @ And as to 5200 as Shield; correcy
125 A: Cotrect.

124t @: But ac the ume you negotiatefl

i

=4

=y

Page 2
111 ledses, you were negoliating with a
entiry called |2 Metro Warehouses;isth
correct?

131 A Thal's correct.

T4 Q: o you have any personal Icnn\]
ledae as 10 (5] the relationship betweg
those companics?

160 A T wis told that.

71 G Tinnot asking what you werg mld\l
wus (8 asking if you had personal kno
ledee?

=

i1 A: I don’t have personal knowledgd
(o) MA. BENEDICT: Let me confer with
(1) your counscl. I may be wrapped ug.
(2 (Following a discussion held off ol
3] record:)

{141 MR. BENEDICT: 1 will pass the m
witness, Your Honor. Thank yon, My
Stegmann.

e BY MR. FRYE:
(171 Q: Mr,Stegmann, has Fleming atready
paid par for the $150 roof in full to D4,
Taylor?
(1 A Yes.
rzo1 MR. FRYE: I have nothing further, i)
Your Honor.

122 T'm sotty.

23] MR. BENEDICT: Moy redirect.
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1211 MR. FRYE: I forgol wo confer with

Page 237
[ counsel T apologize.
121 MR. BENEDICT: I apologize.
131 BY MR. FRYE:

(4@ And 1y 1t your understanding that
the (5 entre amount that, or at least a
portionofthe g amount that's been paid
for the 5150 toof was then 171 applicd by
D.CTaylor to an ourstanding invoice ()
off set, in other words, for an unpaid
invoice on oy the 5300 roof ar Kansas
Avenue?

por A; Yes. Okay.

1 MRA. FRYE: Nothing further,

112 THE COURT: Anything?

113 MR. BENEDICT:I have nothing (4
further wirth this witness, subject (o
recall onn p9 rebuttal, if something
should arisc.

6] THE COURT: Thank you. Youmay (171
step down,

3l THEWITNESS: Do 1 leave this 19
here?

120 THE COURT: Leave  cverything (2]
there. Yes.

122) 1’hank you,

1231 MR, BENEDICT:If it please the (24
Coutl, Your Houor Thave the deposition

Page 238
i tratiseript of Latry Stein, There are
purtions of 12 which I wish o read into
the recond us my thind 13 witness,
[41The withessresides in Cedar Rapids, 151
lowa, which is oulside the subpoena
powerefthe ) Courts. And Thelieve thad
Mr. Frye and thave at (71 least stipulated
that he is unavailable tor the (8] putpose
of that.
19 To make sure that Mr. Frye's client |
isadequately protecled, I will pause ulter
i reading each of the questions to
prrovide an i oppartunity to object, and
thetn I will read the 113 answer.
(141 THE COURT: Okay.
1151 MR, BENEDICT: And for the Conrt to
161 follow along, we have also inclinded

i1 our exhibit (171 books, that would be
Exhihit Numher G3.

11#1 MR, BENEDICT: If the parties wonld
19 like, we could talke a hathroom break
before we 2o begin reading that. I'm
willing to proceed, but 1217ifanyonc else
necds to taloe a breaks,

1220 MR. FRYE:I prefer 1o keep going.
1231 THE COURT: Go ahead.

121 MR. BENEDICT: VW'l just go right

Pagea 239
111 ahead.
121 THE COURT: All right,

3 MR, BENEDICT:II' it please the
Court, Your Henor, I'm going to begin
reading on |5 Page 5, Line 20.

6] (Beginning of transcript read-in of 7
Larry Stein)

(4 Q: Sir,would you please siate your full
@ pame for the record.

Ly A Larry Stein,

1 MR. BENEDICT: I'm now going to | 12]
refer to Page 6, heginning on Line 6
through 17.

1131 Q: Are you currently erployed?

114 A Yes, T am.

1151 @: Where?

1ol As D.C Taylor Company.

117) Q: What's your title with 1.C. Taylor
[t8) Company?

9] A lam avice president and technical
f20] diteclor.

211 Q: How long have you beena VP and
techinical iz ditector at D.C. Taylor?

(231 A: About Len years.

(241 Q: [Tow long have you been employ
ed by D.C.

Paga 240
1 Taylor Company?
(21 A: 22 and a hall years.
(31 MR. BENEDICT: I a1 now going, to (4

Lurin to Page 10, beginning on Line 1
through 21.

(51 Q: Do you have any specialized train-
ing in [g] roofing?

(71 A: Miscellaneous Senumars.

18 Q: Have you ever ranght roofing to
anyone?

91 A We deliver roofing Seninars w ()
perspective clients.

1111 G Have you ever given those scmi-
nars?

112 A Yes,

131 @ And have youtrained othersinthe

© hield 4 other than those seminars?

(151 A: Yeah. T've tried un help some of
our new (14 people as they come on

i board.

s MR. BENERICT:T'm now turning fo
g Page 9, beginning with Ling 1
through 23,

nol @: As a VI and rechnical direcror,
whut are |2 your responsibilitics?

1211 A: My primary responsibilities are 22
generaung business, sales, and work-
men's suppaart (221 of other salespeople.

1241 Q: As a part ol those responsibilities,
do

Page 241
11 you have any dealings with Fleming?
121 Az Yes.
131 Q: What type of dealings did you

have?

i1 A: T prerty much our company's
accoutit s managet. I have responsibility
for the: Fleming (6] account, all aspects.
17) Q: If T heard right, you testilied eatlier
18 that you, I oguess, you have heen
waorking for 1D.C. |9) Taylor for, approx-
irrately, 20 years?

o) Az 22 yeats, yes.

111 Q: During those 22 ycars, how many
raofing 2 jobs did you have with
Fletning?

113 Az Between 150 and 160.

114 @ Specifically, did you work with

¢ Fleming 115 on projects covering 5150

D Kansas Avenue amd 5300 6 Kansas

Avenuoc?

71 A Yes, 1 dicd,
l1a MR. BENEDICT: Continuing on, on
e Page 11, Tines 5 through 7.

1201 Q: How long have you been working
with |21 Fleming in the roofing industry?
t22) Az My fitst project with Fleming was
1993,

r23) MR. BENEDICT: [ will now tuen to [24]
the deposition — in the deposition to
Page 18,

Page 242
111 Line 25,
121 Q: 50 is the roof over %300 Kansas
Avenue (3] different than the rool over
3150 Kansas Avenue?

I41 Az The assembly design is different.

151 MAR. BENEDICT: Partlon me. 16 {on-
Litiuitgs o to Page 19,

171 Q: Can you explain some of the if-

 lerenoes?

i#1 A: They both utilize the same wate-
rproofing (v membrane. They are both
attzched o the structare pop mechan-
ically, bt they have ditferent thickness
it and amounts of insulatan.

1121 Q: What's Lthe thickness of insulation
tor (13 1the 3300 Kansas Avenue?

n4] A Omne layer of one and a bl inch.
151 Q: What about the thickness of in-
sulation s for 51507

171 A IU's a quarter inch insuletion, und
one (14 ich. And then a second layer,
inch and a half.

19 Q: Could you explain the signif-
icance of the (2o differences in insulat-
ion?

(21] Az The 5150 would have a higher R
value with 122 thermal resistance value,
then would the dry 231 warehouse.

j29) The 3100 —

Page 243

N Q: Could you explain what the R
value means?

Page 237 - Page 243% (40)
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(2] A: That's the materials assigned in R

value (3} thar relates ro the resisrance o
the flow of heat [+ through itself, So the
higherthe Rvalue, the |5 more thetmally
cfficient the material would be,

61 @: The harder it i5 for heat o go
through (7) it?

ta] A: Correct.

21 MR. BENEDICT: Continuing on Page
f1oy 200

1111 Q: Which maof hus 2 higher R value?
12) A: The 5150.

na) MR. BENEDICT: Ling 15.

114] Q: Could hoth roofs be used fora s
refrigerated warchouse?

61 A: They buth could if you wianted 10
pay an 17} exorbitantly high energy cost
tw cool thern

iy Q: Which one is beteer suited fora o)
refrigerated warchouse?

1z0] A: That would be 5130,

1211 MR. BENEDICT: We 'l now turn tey |22
Page 57 of the deposition,

123 Tt sorry, Puge 56. Lines 1 through ju4)
15.

Page 244
1 Q: The roof that was being installed
an (215150, 1 belicve you testificd carlier
was (3} sighificandy betier insukated, the
new ol would (4 have heen than the
old roof; correct?

151 Az Corredt.

161 Q: Would thut insulation or could that
171 additional insulation serve a refrige-
rated /) warchouse or the new roof, I'm
sotrry?

(%) A: AL his request, we can.

o) Q: s mesining?

(A Dave Stegmann,

2 @ Okay.

(sl A: We installed an amouwm of in-

sulation that 1y he believed would be
appropriate for a s refrigerated space
in the AG-degree Lemperature.

16l MR. BENEDICT: I'llreturn usback 17
uow 1o Page 20 of the depasilion.

(18] Moving forward 1o Page 22, Lines 11
it thtough 25.

izo1 @: How did D.C. Taylor conclude or
wind up 1211 the work on the toof ovet
5150 Kansas Avenue?

1221 A We hasically finished out of the
work 1o 23 make a straight tic off line
running north and |24 south through the
building. Then we used 2

Page 245

111 different additional material o create
a seal as 2 best we could, given the
profile of the existing 3] roof along that
line:.

11 Q: You mentioned a tie off. Can you 3]

. scalant, o)
| rinination bar o create a (11 gaskct-type

describe the te ofl?

161 Az Basically we wete — we werc
wsing a (7] flexible roof memhbrane to
consteuct the roof. And 181 when wthen
used that membrane, brought it down 9
over the insulation, creared a seal with
membrane, and  dete-

seal betwe en the membrane and the 2
existing metal punel roof.

113 MR. BENEDICT: Continiuing, on Page
111 23, Lines 13 to 25,

j121 Q: Can we describe the roofthat was
st originally there as the old moof?

171 Az Yes.

081 G And can we describe the roof thae
waus 19 repliced between February
2003 and April 1 Lth, 120 2003 as the new
tool?

21 A Yes.

122 @ CGonld you  describe  the  dif-
ferences [13) between those two roofs?
124 Az Uhe old roof is a sealed olip metal
pangl

Page 246
(1 reof. The panel functions as both the
DEC, as 120 well as the watet proofing.
(3] The new roof utilized those metal 4y
panelsasasubsirace 1o hold additional s
insulation und the roof membrune.
wi MR. BENEDICT: Beginning  and 17
continuing on Page 24,
i Q1 8o whar are rhe signiticant dif-
ferences (0 berween the two roofs?
11 A: The new roof is, obviously, more

Cheavily (o insulated. Tt's waterproof

coveringa -15-mil 12 flexible metbrane.
113 The old roof is a 24-gavge metal (14
panel.

s, MR, BENEDICT: Contitiging an Linies
e 11 through 25,

171 Q: Are the tevo roots the same heig-
ht?

151 Az N

12u] A: The new rool would be thicker,
1211 G [ you know how much thicker?
1221 A: From the hottom of the panel to
the top 123 of the new roof would be
about four, four ang (24) three quarters
froom the bottom of the panel, From

Page 247
N the topofthe rib, wonld be twi und s
half (2 inghes,

31 Q: S0 {rom the wop of the old roof w0
the (41 wop of the new roof, what's the
difference?

st Az Okay. From the metal panel in
which 61 there's standing ribs from the
metal panel, it 7 would he fourand three

i QG Which roofl is taller than the the ling?

v other?

©off searn (5 last?

guarters inches higher s than the meraj
panel surfaces.

t2) MR. BENEDICT: Page 26, Lines 12 [1d
through 15.

1y G Is the tic offt covered by the 14
manufacturer’s watrranty?

113 THE COURT: What page are you on
(14 MA. BENEDICT: Ifage 26, Lines 12 14
through 15.

116: THE COURT: Thank you.
1171 MR. BENEDICT: 1t's like reading a (19
script back in high school for one-ag
plays. L o apologize, Your Honor

1201 Page 26, Line 12.

1211 Qe 15 the rie off covered by the (29
manufacturer's warranty?
(23] Az As of right now, there is no (24
manufacturer's warrmnty.

Page 24
(11 MR, BENEDICT: Moving to Page 29,1
lines 24 and 25, continuing over on th
nexu il page.

141 Q: If this were your rool over 515
Kunsus 151 Avenne, would you be happ
that this remporary tie |6 off existson th
top of the root?

71 MR. FRYE: Ohjection. That was a |
guestion thae called for speculation.

@ And as to whether what this o
gentleman would have been happy o
not with regard (11} to that roof, §think §
itrelevant Lot this (12 proceeding,

1151 THE COURT: Overruled. I'll allow 14
the unswer bused on his qualifications,
115 MR, BENEDICT: We appreciate thay,
&l Your Honor.
1171 ANSWER: No.
[ & Why not?

o) A Well, first of all, the roof s not (g
complere. A [ may, looking au it, b
concerngdd 2 onhow long it would sua
watertighr at thar 22 line.

173 @: Why would you be coucerned o
how long it 124 would stay wuteniight

Page 249
(1 A It doesn't look Llike it's compleled
121 Q: Ilow long will this temporary tig

M1 Az T don’t know for sure.

(51 @ Do you have an idea?

16) A W constructed i in early Apri.l.&
had |7) functioned nntil the stonm it .
Jate May., 1 151 belicve,
1 I don't know how it's performed g
since Lhal dme.

(111 Q: Okay.

(12) A: The seal relies on caulking.

(131 @: Okay.

141 Az And another storm, simi!ur e
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cumstances 15 would likely resultin the
leak again.

16 MR. BENEDICT: Continuing

farward, (17] Your Honor. I'm now on 32,
breginning on Line 10,

s Q: After D.C.Taylor instulled this g
temporary tic-off scam, did D.C. Taylor
rewwrn o 200 the roof over 5130 Kansas
Avemu:?

121) Ar Yes,

1zz1 MR, BENEDICT: Comtinwing on Line
123 19,

1241 Az Fletning asked us ro respond to 4
reported

I'aga 250
1 leak along the tic-oft line.
121 Q: Okay.
(31 A: That date could be —
141 @ What did Fleming tell you about
the 51 reported leak on the tic-off line?
161 A We were told thar along the tic-ofr
litie, 171 there were five locations where
the water was 8] entering the building.
191 I've got the corrected dara when we
ror respotuded. It was July 2nd.
1 MR.BENEDICT: I'm now continuitig
[12] on Page 35, Your Honor, Lines 15 to
5.
1151 @ You testified earhier that the tem-
porary (14 tie-off seatn is not a per.
manent fix;is that (151 correct?
nol Az Correct.
171 Q: Could you exptain why?
nis ArI's a — we dow’t believe it's 19
permancnt, because we'te trying to seul
allexible 1201 tnembrane toa profile ona
standing seam on a yn) roof. And it just
doesn’t lend itself well to do 22 thart,
123] Trying to seal and configure up the
[24] rips, down, up, down the rib, up,
down,

Page 251

1 Q: What is the use of life of that |

temporary 2] ie-off seam?

31 Az It would be hard to say. We've
already, (4 in twuo months, had one
incident.

151 MR. BENEDICT: Continuing on Page
i 36, Lines 16 through 235

171 Q: Is canlking an appropriate fis of
the st leaking over the temporary de-oll
Kedam?

0] Ar Given the way we constructed the
jeing e with caulk, that would be how
we would prepare it

111 G How long would rhat repair tase?
2l As It would be hard to say it we had
another n3 storm or similar circomst-
ances, another event 114 could happen
sirilar tor what did happen.

115) Q: Would caulking the repairs cqual-

ity the el ool for a4 munufacrurer's
WALTHIILY?

171 MR. BENEDICT: Continuing to  the
118 TEXT PAge.

el A Mo,

(201 G: Would leaving the temporary tic-
off SEAM (1] quality THE roof fot tan-
ulaciurer’s warttatity?

1221 Az 1 don't belicve so.

iz+1 MR. BENEDICT: Line 5,

1211 Q: What type of repair to the five
leaks in

Page 252
1 the lemporaty te-off seam wonld
cualifythe roof (21 forthe manufacturer's
wartanty?

13 Az 1 dom't know what that would be
short of 11 completing the job.

(5] MR. BENEDICT: Line 15.

16 Q: How much would 12.C Taylorchar
ge to 7t complete the roof?

s A: [think Tmade a proposal to John o)
Malinee. I don't have a copy of it with
me,

() T don't remember the exactl funmber,
11 but it was in the vicinity of 95 or
$U8,001).

1z Q: S in your opinion, o fix the roof,

~to iy make the roof perfor in its est
©ocapacity, and to 4 qualify the rool for

tanufacturer’s warranty, what (151 must
he done rao the roofat the temporary tie-
off 116 seam?

n7i Az To meet all those requiremnents,
you'd pig) have to complete the project
accordingto theway 1191 we subrnitted it
(2z0) MR. BENEDICT: I'tn maoving to Page
1211 21, Your Honor Tam sorry. It hegins
on Page 221 50, Line 23 and continues.
125 Q: Would it e your view, based on
what you rs1) know ahout the leaks —
this apparently happened
Page 253
1) i fune of 2004 a five — the 3150
facility —pz) that they were caused hy
inadvertent work manship 131 or failure of
the membrane?

A Itwould he — it would have to bea
141 nan-approved detail.

6] @: What do you mean by that?

71 Az Im other words, the way we had wo
tie &) OFf,

(o) @: “Weo, meaning D.C. Taylor?

ol A: I'm sorry, in —

11 Q: “We™ meaning [3.C. Taylor?

112 Ar Yes, [In otherwords, 1o do the best
wi: 13 could do to sccure the roof from
leaking and at an 4] unexpected tie-off
point, we vtilized basically 151 canlking
and a bar seal, the membrane o the 116
pancl. And that's not an approved detail

In Re: Fleming Companies, Ing.

forthe [17] manufscturer’s warranty,

sl MA.BENEDICT: ['m now returning
to 119 Page 40, Line 20,

1201 Q: A vou indicate that — that on
July 2Znd (21 your crew mel with Joe
atruemph on site to revicw (221 the
situatian The situation, I presume, mean-

| ing |23 the repair of the roof after the

heavy rain in 24 June?
Page 254
1 THE COURT: Whart page are you on 2
nows

131 MR. BENEDICT: I'm on Page <10, Line
141 20 through 23,

151 THE GOURT: Okay.

(6| MR.BENEDICT:I wtied w group |7
concepls wgether, Your Honer, That's
why 1I'm 2] jumping around.

v THE COURT: That's al} right.

nay Q: And you indicate that on July 2nd,

! your ) crew met with Joe Struemph on

site o review the 1z sirpation. The

 sitwation, | presume, meandng the 113)

tepair of the roof after the heavy rain in
June.

(4] That D€ Taylors people were 15
prepared o redo the canlking seal atthe
proper ns) location, but mr. Struemph
would nolallow youto 7 doanything at
the facility. Correet?

1161 s that correct?

e Az Yes,

1201 Q: 8o it was your understancding that
[21] Mz Struemph was a Fleming emplay-
ce?

tzz1 A: That was my ungerstanding,

1231 Q: And how did you arrive ac thae 24
understanding?
Paga 255
1 A: He was my inftial contacy, und he
wils my |2} on-site contact through the
course of the job.

31 Q: Then Mr, Stegmann was in Texas,
whereas [4) Mr, Strocmph was in Kansas?
151 Az Yes.

11 Q: So an day-to-day marters related o
these 171 facilities, you dealt wirth Mr,
Struemph as opposed 18 to M. Sreg.
manan?

191 A: Through the course of the job, yes.

f He i) was our on-site contact.

1t MR. BENEDICT: Mow, maoving
through 1z the document to Page 63,

o Your Honer, Ling 8 13) through 17,

4] Q: Did you indicate in your - did
you (13 indicaie, too, in your con-
versalions thal you ¢ referred to with
Mr. Stegtiann tat you were doing 17)
the temporury tie off on rthe S150
property that s we've been discussing?

111 A Yus.

Page 250 - Pagc 255 (42)
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1z01 Q: Did he indicate — what was his
response, 1211 to the best of your re-
collection?

1221 Ar He thought it was appropriate thal
we do (23] leave the facility prior to
completing it, 1 told (24) him that we'd do
the best we could o — best we

Paga 256
(11 cenldd in sealing to the exisung o0l
where we 21 tied it off.

i3] MR. BENEDICT: May it please the (4
Court, that’s all of the deposition that |
have |5 designated,

16t MR. FRYE:I do have a couple of (71 the

cxhibit pages to refer the Court to, Your |

181 Honor.

[ Heginning on Page 20, Ling 22,

pop Q: When gid 1D,.C, Taylor start worlke-
g on the (11 ool over 51507

2 Al You mean actually start con-
siruction?

14 Q: Right.

141 MR. FRYE: Continuing onto the next
1151 page.

ol A: Mid-February, late February,

17 & 20057

a1 Az 2003, Possibly — possibly end of
11y March,

iz0] G: Okay. When did D.C. Taylor stop
working 211 on the roof over 3250
Kansas Avenue?

1221 Az Thelieve out last reported date on
the 123 site was April 11, 2003,

124 MR.FRYE: 1'll refer the Court to
7 Pagezs7
(1] Page A3, beginning at Line 5.

121 @: How did Fleming talking — this —
i3 there's discussion about rhe reponing
to the |y facility on fuly 2nd afier the
leak.

151 How did Fleming tell you to fix the 6
leaks at the five locations on the wwm-
porary 171 tie-nEf line?

® A They didn't tell us how to fix i,
They 19 asked vs o go obscrve the
situation and make (o appropriare ne-
pairs,

] Qe Okay Did D.C Taylor observe the
[12] situation?

s A Yes, we did.

141 @: What were those observations?
1151 Az It appeared to us that addidonal
na cawlking or scalant would be re-
quired —

171 @ Okay.

nsl Ar — from the report, from what tny
service () person said.

o0 Q@: Oleay, Did [.C, Taylor caulk those
leaks?

1211 A: No, we did not.

1221 MR. FRYE: Referring to Page 36, (23
Line 16.
1241 Q: 1s canlking an appropriate ixol'a

Page 258
i leaking over the temporary tic-off
seam?
121 A: Giventhe way we constmcted the
joint 13 with caulking, that would be
howy wie would repair 4 ir,
15] @ How long wonld that repair Last?
16t A Ttwould be hard to say. 1fwe had 7

anuther storm of similar Circuimstances,
another 3 event could happen sitnilar 1o

© what did happen.

o MAR. FRYE: I'm referring to Page no)
55. I'm sorry, at Page 54, beginning at
Line 4.

[ Ckay.

4 Q: Now, did you have discussions
with anyone (13 at Fleming regarding
why they needed this oof on 14 5150
done — redone?

ns A ltwasthe roof. Toa certain exeent,
I n16) betieve their decision was relative to
a storm 17| that happened in February,
ice storm that happened 1) in Febtuary
of 2002,

[ Q: Who told you this or —

1200 Az T wus asked w go review, per
sonally 121) review the roofs alter that
storm,

1221 Q: And what — when did that ocour?

1z A BExcuse me. [ belicyve that was late
(24] February 2002

Page 259
111 @: Who made that request of you?

i21 Az Thar would have been Dave heg-
nuinn,

181 @ Angd did you then review the toof?
141 Az Yes, I did.

151 @ What was the situation at the tme
an the o) roof?

(7] A: There wuas — there ways leakage
that had w resulted dutng that ice
storm, primarily in my 91 opinion,
through the horizontal lapse of the 1o
panels.

N Q:Did you then make o reconr
mendation how o 1121 ensure that this
didn't happen again?

3] A: 1 didn't recommend anything as
far as (14| repair. Ile asked me for —

ns @: Ile meaning?

Uis helow the (17] toof on 5150 in wi
©tertime?

ns Ax Dave Stegmann asked me for a

proposal to 7] put the new roof on.
ng) G 1d Mr Stegmann indicate that the
ool 119) necded to be used fora purpose
other than for 201 office space or dry
warehouse space?

(21} Az Yes He told me thatthe possibility
122} existed that they would question.

(z31 Q: "They" meaning?

121 A: Fleming would asscrt, or excusd
me, wionld

Pagea 261
111 possibly convert portions of thi
space into |2 refrigerated use area,
151 Q: Wasit yourunderstanding that thal
1il decision had not yet been made base
on your |5 conversation with Mr, Ste
maonn?
161 A: Based on my conversation, it was
171 possibility.
1w MR. FRYE: Referring 1o Page 56, |
Line 13 Actually that would be Line 1.
1o Q: The moof that was being installed
on 115150, believe you testified carlic
was (12) significantly better insulated
The new roof 13 would have been thad
the old roof; corret?

i141 Az Correct.
s @ Would that insulaton or c.(}ui‘j

that g ackditional insulation serve
refrigerared 7 warehouse or the ne
roof? 1'm sorry.
na) Ar At his tequest we —
g Q; "FHs" mcaning?
1201 Az Dave Stegmann's.
121 Q: Orkay.
221 Ar We installed an amount of i
sulation that |23 he helieved would bl
appropriatc for refrigerated (24 space i
the A6-degrec tcmpoerature.

FPage 26
1 Q: Would it aiso be appropriate for
space 12) with what we'lt cafl :lmhitr:.
temperatute, you (3 know, 70 degree
approximately?
L4 Az Sure. Thar would he appropriate,
5@ Woulkd it save energy Costs wim
that much 6] insulation, in your oppinio

171 A IF it was air-conditoned, it woulg].
In 8 Kansas City as far as heating, mm{

2

prople don't (9) heat warehouses mnc
tnore than 60 degrees. There (o) would
bhe sorme saving.

1111 MR, FRYE: Onio the noxt page.

112) @: And it gets very hot, 1 presume, i
the i3 summer at Kansas City at timey;
carrect?

(i) Az Correct. Yes.

s @: Would it also serve to keep hear i
the 6y warehouse, oroffice,orwhateyv

s A Tt wonldd do beuwer, yes.

112 MR. FRYE: That's all I have.

1201 MR. BENEDICT: I'm wearing a pa
(211 in the carpet back to the podiurg,
Your Honor. I't (221 now on Page (v ¢
the deposition, Lines 15 to 25,

23] Q= You testificd earlier that arGuns
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[24] February 2003, Dave Stegmann
called and said, Iey,

Page 262
1] we have a leak in the roof at 5150
Kansas Avenue. 12 Is rhat correce?
13 ArThat would have been 2002.
la1 Q: 2002, Did you go out there and
observe (51 that leak?
61 A: A couple daystaterafierche ice had
1/ grotten 0Off the roof,
14 @: And | think you testified in your
opinion (s that leakage resulied from a
horizontal lapse of o) the panels; is that
COrreoet?
11t MR. BENEDICT: Continuing 1o the
[12] NEXT PAgC.
ri3] A: Yes.
(141 Q: Okay. And then later in July,
around 151 July 2nd, 2003, DO Taylor
Company at the request (s of Fleming
wentant to inspect the rool with the (17
temporary tic-off scam; is thal coreect?
18] Ar Yes,
ny Q: Andyou were old 1o — in respect
tothe 2oy roof at the tic-ollseat, because
the tic-off scam jz1) was leuking in five
spats; right?
(221 A: Thar's what we were wold, yes.
1231 : Those five spots were diflerent
thanrhe 21 leak thatwas reported o yon
February 2003;

Hagao 263
1 eorreet - or 2002, correct?
121 A: Twouled expect that 1o be the casc.
13} MR. BENEDICT: Thank you, Your 4
Honaor,
(51 THE COURT: All right. Anything 6
more by DEC or Shield?
17t MR. BENEDICT: Your Honar, il it |z
please the Cournt, L wonld lke to call Mr.
Malinee 19t as a rehortal witness just 1o
duthenticate the o) Exhibit Number G9.
(111 THE COURT: Yo may, (12] You're still
utidet outh.
113 MR. BENEDICT:If it please the i)
Court, I'd like to approach the wilness
with 1151 Exhibit Number 69,
& THE COURT: Yes,
1171 BY MR, BENEDICT:

na) Q: Mr. Malinee, Lhave hunded to you

what is 119 marked as Exhibit Number |

64 Can you identify () thar document,
please?

1211 A T ean. It's evidence and certilicale
of 1221 insurance identifying the certif-
icare holderas |23 DEC Investuments, LLC.
241 @ Andwhat lime period does that —

Page 264
111 A: Fora —
21 @ — Cemificate cover?

I3l A Fora period of August 1st, 2001 1o
14 Auguse 15t 2002,

151 @ And would that cerificare of in-

surance ¢ havebecenineffect during the

ice storm in 71 February of 20027
¥ Ar It would have.

@ Q: Olkay. And have you seen rhat
document o hefore, sir?

1 A Yes, I have.
nz Q: 1s that contained in your fles?
s A T s,

14 @: And where did you ger thar dog-
e nr?

151 A: Fron our files at Intermobile.
ra] @ And whete did Intermohile re-

o yuire that n7 docnment? THd Flenung

provide that to thern as ns evidenee of
oo om the building to Inteemobile?

19 Az The docament cam: from Marsh,

11.5.A_, who 20 1s the broker for Fleming,

And it identifies 121 Fleming Companies
as the insured.

1221 @: Ang under that document, DEC is

the (231 cortificale holder?
12l Az That is correct as required by the

|‘age 264
1] leasee,
12t @: Has [ntermobile Marketing, on
behalf of 13 DEC Tnvesunents, received
any proceeds of (4] insurance from the
claim filed by the Debrors?
151 Az Not tor the best of my knowledge.
i1 MR. BENEDICT: Thunk you, Your (7]
IIonat. No uther (uestions.
s THE COURT: Any cross?
w1 MR. FRYE: Na, Your 1Tonor,
(1o THE COURT: Thank you. You may |11
step down,
1121 MR. BENEDICT:I believe Your Hon-

ot s indicuted you wanted to wait until
the end for 4] adtnissibility of exhibits,

1151 THE COURT: Well, until the ond of

[16] YOUT Case.

1171 MR. BENEDICT: I'tn goying to move to
fig) admit all of the cxhibits 1 have
identified, and 191 we can go down the
exhibits.

120, THE COURT: Well, are there any 21
objections to your —

zz) MR. FRYE: Yes, Your Honor We 12y
would object w the Blackburn reporr
that has been |za identified by Mr
Benedict. There's heen no

11} foundation laid as 1o the adinissibility
of that 7 report.

13) And certainly, Mr. Blackburn is not 14)
here to authentcale it

i3] Additionally, with regard w the (6
Exhibit Nunlber 69, while no doubt irisa

record /) tnaintained by Intermaobile in
the ordinary course (s of business, the
statemeints thacare made inthe 9 record
by the insurance company, Me. Malinee
has o) no personal knowledge of.

e We wounldd ask that at least for those
iz purposcs,that the Court not consider
thatexhibit 15 forthe trith ofthe matter
served here, the (14 statements con-
tained in that exhibit,

1151 THE COURT: As to who is the )
cerficute holderand who is rhe insurer?
1171 MR. FRYE: No, that Ithink that we (s
can — we will — we have no problem
with thar,

191 THE COURT: I don't know what ¢lse
12 is in Exhibit G&.

1211 MR, FRYE:Qlay. T'hat's it 1221 That's
fine.

123 THE COURT: It's a certilicate of jz4)
insurance, as G as I know.

Page 267

1l MR. BENEDICT: And Your Honor, 12
that’s the only putpose for which we're
affering 4 the exhibit.

141 THE COURT: All righr,

15t MR.BENEDICT: And  Your IIonor
with 4] respectto the Blackburn Exhibir,
we are nol 71 offering it for the trurh of
the matter. It is & being offercd for
notice purposes.

9] It was presented o a Tleming o)
cmployees, who the knowledge of the
conclysions (1] wetre consistent with
Fleming's conclusion with [12] respect to
the roof,

3 MR.FRYE:T don't believe that was

(4] the testimony at all, Your Honor. The
testimany [15) was — it wus presented if

CAny — o anyone, to g Mr Stein ag D0

Taylor. I don’t believe the n7) tesrimony,
that Fleming concurred with any of 118
thosc conclusions.

(1o MA. BENEDICT:If it please the (]
Court, Mr. Malinee restified that he
presented a2 copy to M Strueniph as
wellas o Mt Stein. 22 That he provided
A copy w Mt Struetnph between (23] July
9ih and July 15th. The exact dare could
not 124 be ascettained rhrough the
Lestitik iy, though.

Page 268
111 And that Mr. Strueinph indicated rhat
121 Lthese are the exact same conclusions
that 13 Flemming's expert —

14 THE COURT: Well, Stein came up, |5)
bul noL —

161 MR. BENEDICT: Stein had —

17t THE COURT: Well forthal purpose, s
I'll admit it. But not —

91 MR. BENEDICT: And for no other (1o
putpese. That's all we're asking it be
adntted 1y for for notice pUIrposes,

Page 262 - Page 2068 (44)
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[121Andifit please the Court, Thave 13 no
objection to the exhibits of Fleming as
(14 comained in their exhibit binder,

115 MR. FRYE: Yes, we move them.

ns] MR.BENEDICT: We'll supulate w17
the adimissibility of all those exhibits as
well.

1181 THE COURT: Then Il admit all the
1191 exhibits identified today,

201 MR. BENEDICT: T'hank you, Your 1zn
Honor, And DEC and Shicld now rest.
(22) THE COURT: Does the Debilor have
[23) ANY WItNCSSEs?

1241 MH. FRYE: We've ulready pit on our
e ngg .
1 case through Mr, Stegmann, Your
Honot,

12 THE COURT: All right, 13 Could Iscca
cupy of 69¢ Did the 14 witness leave itup
here?

151 MR. BENEDICT: It's been left on (o) the
counter, Your Honot.

(7l THE COURT: Well let me hear from 4
the Deblorregarding the insurunce issue
that’s o been mised by DEC.

o MR. ORGEL: Your Honor, we were
1] prepared to discuss the motion o
reject. We have 12 notalked with our —
we hive nat— this wasn'vis nuised until
texclay in Court,

n4i Thers aren't people we've called w
s asle, We have Mr, Stegmann here.

116 As he indicated, while he may have
i passed this on, he didn't prepare i
There's ¢ sy group that docs chat.

o1 Al we can say is there's mistakes 12o;
in that docnmenr, We'll have to discussit
211 internally and decide whether we
have to call the: 122) insurance company,
whether we owe them money (23] back.
1241 We just don’t see that as 4 matter

Page 270
11 tor today.
1zt THE COURT: Well, tell me whether |

141 have 1o refer it to the LS Attorneys’ | e 10) owner and shouldn't have, and

Qifice.

1] MR, ORGEL: Your Honor, 1 don't |5
know mwore than I've heard today, We're
201ty to 16 try to find out internally.
171Was there o mistake made? Andif (s so,
we'll contact the insurange company
and o correct it I don’t even know ifit
chunges 1o anything, [ do belicve that
we ditl spend the 1) money.

[12] Mast of the toof was repaired on 3
all — on 3300, Ithink there is testimony
Irefore 1141 youthat the roofer decided wo
apply some of the nsymoneyapplicd o —
paid on this oof to the 16 unpaid
halance on 5300,

L1 But as faras we knew, we paid tully 11a)
for this roof. 5o to the extent, there was

neHnsuranee, one way orancuher, ic's for —

I don’t (o) know if it's for exactly the
amount we paid for, (20 98,000 or what.
We don't have that before us 122) today.
125 Because it catne ufr so late with 24
insurdance, we don’t have all the facrs.
Page 271
tiy MR. BENEDICT: Your Honor, if T may
12t respond.
i3t THE COURT: Well, what can you shad
[ On this?

(5] MR, BENEDICT:The only ilem [ (g
wanted o point ot 10 Your Honor wias
that the (71 issue of insnrance was raised
by the Debtoras s their defense thar this
wias 4 preexisting issuc (0] that was
covercd by insurance and was not an
1Nsiee (100 that arase postpetition.
i1y And so they are the ones that (17
produced these documents o me a8 a
part of 113) their — it was a prepetition
evetit covered by 4] insurance.
1151 50 to the extent that that's what g
they've heen arguing ro this Courr sinee
at least (71 July 17th, [ don't think it's a
new issoc. And s quite frankly, simply
put, I don't have a full ne roof on my
facility, Amdd of it was covercd by 2
insurance, ! should have received those
insurance 121 procecdsro cnsure that my
roof was completed.
1221 If it was an insurable event, which (23
I'think rhat this particularis postpetition,
But (2i] one way or another, we think the
Dehtor is

Pape 272
(11 responsible for paying for the com-
pletion of the 1) cool.
3] MR. ORGEL: Your Honor, I don't see
1i; how that's really responsive. T mean,
yes, iU was (5 covered by insurance.
151 Yes. We put inan insurance clatm, 7)1
dan't think rhere's any question about
that.
i1 I thought the guestion Your Honor (o)
wiis asking me what albout this fact,icsaid

whatabout the fact () that we may have
gotten the money postpetition, 1121 and

- what happened to it?

151 And those are things that came up )
today, and I don’t - and Mr, Stegmann
indicated 1131 he dicdn't know what hap-
pened to the money, I 6] can’t explain
whether it was dollar for dollar,

M7 And Tdon't know that that was 10 1)
the extent we were raising it fhat this isa
9 prepetition event, L think everything
that we've 1200 heard today is consistent
with thar, thar the (21 repair began
prepetition, that we put in an (221 in-
surance claim.

1231 [rhenght we were going Lo the issuc
|2) that there's some notion of whal
happencd with the

Cansutwnee company, tell them we g
Coaren’t the sole owner.

- ference s in how much they reimburs

¢ ification, the atnount there, the on

Paga 27
[ insurance proceeds. And all we'ne
notingisasto (2 what happencd with thy
proceeds.
131 1 just don't have the right people g
before you in court today to ask th
question of.
15t THE COURT: Well, my question was 4
addressed in both what happencd to th
proceeds, 7 und whut about the possibly
crror in the insuranee 8 submission?
o MR, ORGEL: I'm nor sure, Your n
Ionor, whether that makes a difference
ar not, (1] That's the other guestion
have to ask,
{121 We may have to tell the insurance 14
compatny. I'm not sure whether it charg
a0s,
i1 If we — to the extent we paid [or (14
the repair, 1 ehink it was,
e THE CQGURT: I don't know if it 11
changes this, that | have an obligation ¢
a ¢rime 181 that has been committed ©
refer it to the UG 199 Attorney, or
somebody suggests that a crime has (2
been comumnilted.
(211 MR. ORGEL: Yes.
(z2) THE COURT: I'm obligated. 'm nog
[23) the one that investigates or makes
decision on (23 thar issue,

Page 27
(1 MR, ORGEL: Yes, Your Ilonor As (4
T've indicated, as soon as I heard this,
noted 13 we have o go back and as
whiat 15 this? And we 14 have to call th

p61 T just dot’t know the ungpract Of (7) thay.
I doa't know whether it nukes a di

ud ot now, il these @ wete monics
conttucted to pay for the toof o) repai

1111 MR. FRYE: For one point in 12 cla

mllion s 109 or however much icwy
for the damage to both g the 5150 o)
and rhe 5300 roof combined, that's i
the rotal wmount of the two purchas
arders nsl combined.

17 THE COURT: Well, I nate there
wasn't an attachment, so I'm not s
whatihe no)breakdown ofthe insurang
claim was,

1zn] MA. ORGEL: Your llonor, it I may,
(217 think that it may be time to go to th
argument of (221 what these Facts mean IF
you don't have a (23 preference, Iknow
£OL AT OPpUTTUity to start (24 with thi

FPage 271
1 THE COURT: Well, et me ask when 13
our next Fleming hearing is,

3] MR. BENEDICT: Seprember 4th.
14 THE COURT: Next Thursday.
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15 MA. ORGEL: Your Honor, if it 16 helps,
my argument will be about 1en minutes,
17 mayhe 12,

i# MR. BENEDICT: Actually | wanted to
[2] ask a procedural quesiion with re-
grards wo o claitns for attorneys fees,
Your Honor,

HII THE GOURT: Yes.

12 MR. BENEDICT: And 1 don't want Lo
131 paut the cart hefore the horse, bt it
scemsto me (14 thatitT prevail, that these

$114.672.94, for « totul requested under
the 171 lease al this time of $164,400.65,
plus whatever (8] cost and cxpense
we've incurted preparitg for and o)
artending for this hearing,

pm THE COURT: All vight. T adiie 1n

- LExhibits 47 10 49.

are Obligations ns uhder the  leass, |

which we put on cvidence of the 6]
lease, and we're entitled ro the atrorneys
fees. (177 Then the witness, obviously,
can't testify o the s validity of those
fces.

(19 Then we have included in the hinder
l201 ul attorney fees statements, which
were incurred 211 by my law firm. Aod
again, I did not know how 22 Your
Honor wanted o proceed with regards
Lo Lthat.

1z31 THE COURT: Well, is there — what
124] are the exhibit numbers for that? |
EUCES,

Page 276

111 there's no ohjection to those being
made 4 part of 121 the recornd.

131 MR. BENEDICT: o, Your Honor, We
1] are redacting any confidential attor
ney client s irems of those prior to
submissiontothe Court in (s connection
with our procecding.

(7] The invoices for the attorney fees (|
are Exhibit Number 47 and 48 in the first
bhool. 99 And Exhibit Number 49 in the
second book,

t1of And o just quantify those for Your )
Honor, Ithink this might be of assistance
tov all nzpof us, 've gone back to Exhibit
38 and rabulated ) all of the items that
wi have eguestod we be pag reimbursed
for, 5o we can quantify that so we s
understand what it is that DEC and
Shicld are s asking for

1171 With respect to those itenms that s
we've identified on Exhibit 58, which
are those o itemns we believe were the
Debtors’ ohligations wo (20 perform dur-
ing Lthe month of July through the 12
tejection of the lease, whenever that
date 15, 1221 those expenses totaled
54972771

(23] Those do not include, and [ have (241
excluded any of the claims for the
locksmith in
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1y that wotal. The atlorney fees included
in those (21 various exhibits I've now
identified o you 31 through July 15th,
not including preparation for ) this

hearing attendance here today, inehd-
ing wmy |5 local counsel's fees, up

through, I  helieve, June (6 was

Page 270 - Page 281 (40)

(12 MR. BENEDICT: Thank you.,
113 THE COURT: Ler me hear the 14

Dehtors’ argument.

1] MR, ORGEL: YourIlonor,asto the g
factIthink we — as farasthe ebtors are
(17 concerned as 1w both the access
issue, and the s corridors issne, the
cirh site issue and the ny comidor, the
fubs show that any requirement (2o
deconstmot connecting corridors are to
provide 121 access, arise only under the
prepetition lease as 22 part of the
surrender obligation clauses.

1231 DEC aned Shield have argoed in their
1241 papeers that surrender 15 4 cotddition
of

i rejection. Porsuant  to Section
36500

121 The Debiors' position is that 13 they're
wrong. The statute didn’t make it 4
condition.

151 T'he statute savs under 365¢d)4 which
wl really isn't what's at issue here,
hecavse that's ;7rthe automatic rejeclion
section,

ra] The only place it's mentioned is o that
the trustee shall imtnediately surtender,
and oy the trustee shall immediarely
surrender, 50 the 11 lease 15 redeemed
tejected, and the trustee should 12y be
innmediately sutretidered.

113 As U've indicared both the Kansas (14
District couwrt case, the Puckwall case
looked at (151 that and found that that
wasn't a candition of (6] rejection. The
only conditions w rejection (171 dis-
cusscd in the case law, or if Lhe Debwor
asks (1@ that the rejecion be made

retrcactive and their (9] conditons w

retroactivity imposed asan | equilable

. imposition by the Court Lo obiain that 2y

retroacuvity. And that's discussed in the
At [22] Home case submitted in our case.
(23 THE COURT: Well, you were secking,
[24] retroactivity, were you not, by your
maotion?
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i1 MR, ORGEL: Yes, Your IIonor You 1z
said lake that into account as to the
amount of a 3 retecaclvity. But as I
understand it, we passed 4] the point.

isi The Debtors were prepared to pro
ceed gt Tuly 31 You might think that
retroacrively, 171 considering thar we're
today, but we're 8 considering on 2
hearing from July 17th, Having iy had the

motion filed July 2nd and a hearing on
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(0] July 17th, we don’t think the equities
are such (111 that we should be, as the
Court indicated in At p2) Home, and did
tiotin At Home reguire that py) surrenegder
proceed rejection.

1141 We don't thiuk iU's appropriate thut
nsi for our July 31 rejection that we be
required 1o (10 have done more than we
have, which is then vacated 71 by that
date and not have w surrender under
state 18] law. And in fact, Your Honor, Lthe
case law on (19 when surrender under
state law is relevand is when rzo Debtors
have said, We surrender,

121} S0 cven though we haven't rejected,
221 we shouldn't pay rent and Courrs
have then looked 123 and said, Well, wait.
You really haven't 24 surrencdered, so
365 applics,
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111 And by the way, Your Honor, Lis was
12 the Slim Life Weight Loss Centers case
at 182 BR % 701.

11 THE COURT: Read that cite again.
15) MR. ORGEL:182, BR 701. That's a 141

- IMstrict Couwrt of New Jersey.

171 ' sorry, Bankriptey Conrt of New (s
Jersey.

191 And there, the: Debtor had rricd to o
51y, hecause it had vacated before re-
jecting, that iy the administrative ol
ligation ended carly, and the pzp Court
said inthat case, ook atwhetheryou 13
surrendered under state law. And under
state law, (14 surrender includes an
acceplance of the prefuses (1s) by the
landlord, and you're vacaling doesn’t
coual (i that

117030 administrative rent got charged 18
ontotal rejection Some of what hasbeen
asked ) for is, in effect, spoecific por-
formanee of thiese (2o surrender ob-
ligations, specific performanoees|21) com-
plerely contrary to what 363 is about,
which is 221 enabling the Debtars w
escape the burden of (23 burdensome
EXCCUTOTY CORTTACTS,

[24] Precisely on that basis, the Court
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1) im In Res Fleishman scated when faced
with 3 (2] similar sitvation, and 1 helieve
it's an option [3] scteing, nor will Jacobs
be able to cnforce this (1) conueact right
with the remedy of specific 51 per
formance. Specitic performance should
not be ) permitied where the remedy
would have, in eflect, (71 done what 365
meant o avoid.
(8] T'hat is,impose burdensome contracts
%1 on the Deblor. And that's at 138 BR
Gl
o] That's a Bankruptcy Court in (1]
Massachuosctts. IUs a similar cffect with a
1121 Southern District of New York, In Re:
Kradlces.
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Aungust 26, 200]

st And In Re;Brudlees,  adimnistrative
[14] renL was again sought. And the Court
found (151 Westbury is not endded 10 an
administrative [16] claim against the Deb-
tars by virtue of the (17) Deblors’ alleged
breach of a prepetition 18] contract.

1191 Again, where a specific performance
(201 was asserted making surrender ob-
ligations (211 administrative  expetses,
which is what's heitig 122 asked, 18 not
supported by the Bankniptey Code or
1231 by case law, And making thess
administrative 1241 expenses here, hased
on the facrs you've heard
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r1 will saddie this estate with an ob-
ligation to jxxy 2] tetir on the Shield
propenty until it can grant 13 wocess.

14| There's o assurance a5 10 when that
151 can happen. The testitnony was thit
last titne it (6 took two w three to four
months.

titonies as well () that there's two ways
O EEL ACCESS.

[y One way is to go o the cityand tey )
and cut a new curb, U'he other was that
the Shieid 1121 property isnext o the DEC
property,and they 113 showed that there
was possible — possibly u way 114 to get
Lhis through the DEC property.

1151 But there were o — thet was the 6|
testimony that said bt there's no docks
there. 17t And how they then - and the

DEC o7 Shield 12o0) other than appeating
in Court, and that they @y (21 have
some, though, we don't know what
those are 1221 cxactly,

1231 My only point being, Your Honor, 124
wi'd be saddled with thatobtigation, and
there's
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(1l no evidence thal we have a better
ability to deal |2 with this problem than
the landlord. And we 13 certainly think
there’s no real obligation w deal (4] with
ir.

i51 And [will reiterate something L g said
before, Yiur Honor, which is if you
itupose 17 this on the Debtors as a matter

of law, asopposed ia1oasa marteral sort .

of what’s equitable in the v context of
this rejection, really there’s no no dis-
tinction between this Debtor and a

i Chapter 7 |nj trustee,
71 We don’t know whether it will hap-
pen ) this titne. There were two tes-

floor wouldn't be the nyy right light. Bat

there was o patking lot they e were
talkitg ubout they could come through.
1200 THE COURT: That's not Shield’s (2
property,

1221 MR. ORGEL: That's not Shicld's 3
property. The question would be wli's
in a (24 better — i Shield is suggesting
that one of the

Prge 233
111things, Your Honor, should loole ar and

Iz} If the lease — if on April 1st, 113 this

1251 MR. ORGEL: We alrcady told the |z
other side some we will pay. They py|
one on the
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i) record,
12) MR. FRYE: Enviro.
51 MA, ORGEL: The Enviro claim,

141 THE GOURT: Yeah, They put it onsi
didn’t hear from you.

15 MR. ORGEL: They put on the rccor:l
17) that wi'd pay it. We stipulated 16 tha)
carlier () in this proceeding.

9 MR. FRYE:I don't think we [10] stip
ulated, but we informed [DDEC's counsd
that we 11would pay forthe cleaning of
the floors. That 121 was Friday.
1131 THE COURT: wWell, what part of 14
Exhibit 58 are you willing to pay?

115 MR.QRGEL: The Envirais 55,0001

And I mean, Your Honor, if I can fook

lease, wre have a partally complered roof

1141 with access problerns, 1 say these

~ propertics with (15 those problems, if ;
. the trustee, Chapter 7 trustee 6] gotout, |

came with anecmergency motionand (17
rejected, the same argoments can be
madc that are 18 being made today,
saying he should spend the money najto
comply with surrender obligations.
120] To the extent that it's the Debtors' (21
continued pccupancy and conduct of
the auction, (22 those were taken care of
in the agcton motion, 23] And in facr,
they came inand we stipulated, and a2
lot's been done,
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1 S despite some of the 27 charae-
terizations that the Debtor's attitude —
131 the Debuwoe, 1 think the facts have
shown, put v somebody onthe premisc,
hired somehody in Kansas 5 as a con-

- sultant, Mr. Swuemph, alter his (o
. employmentended onJuly 11thto make

I believe 121 they did chis in their papers, -

that the Debtor is 141 in a better position
to hegotiare with the (1 neighboring, -

15 THE COURT: The drill

o] MR, ORGEL: — vhe landlord on the )
other side.

s THE COURT: Right.

sure Lthis (7] property got turned over
properly.
1% Andl there's been discussion and o

: agreement that the Debtor would pay
certain of the 1) expenses, Your Honor,

19l MR. ORGEL: Certainly the Debtor's

1to] not there., We'd point ot thatthere's
another 1) opportunity, which is to
negotiate with the nz) Debior

131 And the only evidence betore the (g
Court on that is that DEC shared a
general partner (15 with Shield. That
DEC had the same person who 16 was —
who signed the Shield and the DEC (17)
CONLracts.

18] Mcaning the only cvidence before
you [19] is that we have no contacts with

we acknowledge that the oo repair and
maintenance on this —

1121 THE COURT: Look The paytrients (i3]
haven't been made.

1141 MR. ORGEL: But there’s heen 15 dis-

¢ eussion leading up to this, Your Honeor
© This s is — wewere inCourt onlyafew
- weeks afrer some 117) of these expenses

were incurred, You're talking (s) abont
some of the expenses, We are talking
about poywhat were incurred in mid ang
late July because —

1201 THE COURT: I didn't hear you in (21
any of your papers say that you were

Exhibit 117) 98,1 mean, coming to the en
oliL, Your Tlonor, 18] meaning what we
we — wi proposed utilitics ng prorate
o the 31st, W pay all uritities |2
prorated through the 3lse

1211 think we saw some of theny werit (23
into Avgust, Some of the utilities we
for some [23) of the bills they :suhmirtc:il
which went past July zi) 3lst Wi
protraed o July 3ist and paid,
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(1 I believe — I'm just going down —)4
the legal fees —
31 THE COURT: W hy wasn't this done |4
before you got ta court?

1s1 MR. ORGEL: Yoour Honor, but that
can he asked. You're tight.

(71 THE COURT: T meun, why do I wasu
|8 iy time listening to you, the dired
examination 9) and cross-examination ﬂl
to cach and cvery one of no these billy
Why am | doing that?

(1 MR, ORGEL: Your Hongr, 1'm not 114
disagreeing. Part of the reason why th
cutly (3] issue, the access issue, and th
corridor issue 114 for us was 4 muc
bigger issue, iU's much bipger ns) nu
hers than all of these Ifthese were wha
we 116 were tlking about, we beleve
we could comme 1o a 117 ready settlemen
(18] But that's not what we've bheen n
talking about. Which is why [ wanted ¢
first z0] deal with the curb, and th
access, and curb [z issue, and th
corridor issue, because those [(22) issue
which fundamentally, you know, tripl
the (23 cost to the estale or quadruple o
and lewve it 144 wide open with ongoing
rent obligations is 1 much

Page 26
1 mote different, difficull problem. We
couldn’t 12 reach agreemnent because of
that,
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(3 Because the Debtor didn't helicve )
that it should not be paying rent going

forward, 5] while access is sought,

should not have to change 1o the curh.

(7 lagrecthar many of the rest ol s these —

I'tn not disagreeing, Your Honor, | don’t
191 think thau a lot of this was marerial.
f101 The doors —

(1 THE COURT: What aubout the — tell
nzi e abont the roof, What's your
position on the (13 rool?

14t MR. ORGEL: Youknow, the roofis|is)
tougher, Your Honor, But we understand
there’s 1161 $98,000 sitting in an gscrow
after the last 17) hearing,.

18] Your Hongs, our position is having: (19|
ot reached a serttement on these other
issucs, (20 our position had 1o be that this

waus something 21 stated prepetition,

We've tricd to accommodate.

122] We were willing to - -

123t THE COURT: Well, given Mr, Siein's
1241 testimony, do you still belicve that
this is an
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(1 issue that started prepetition?
121 MR. ORGEL: Oh, absohitely, Your |3
Honor T understand where Your Honor
is going,
141 The fact thar there were leaks in (5 che
caulking does not mean that that was a
finish 161 jol. Your Honot, if we didn't
caulk it 1f we 17 didn't canlk it atall, ifon
Aptil 150 when he g indicated that they
startedat latestat late 19 March, so if April
Ist he just walked off the job, pojand we
rejecied the lease April 1st, the first day
i that we walked in, they would have
just had a hig 1z gaping hole,
1131 How our diability gocs vwp by 14
canlking that gaping hole scems o me —
1151 MR.BENEDICT: I'm going to {16 ob-
ject. There was no testimony as to a
gaping 171 hole in the roof, It seems —
sounds to me like na he's argning from
facts that are not in the 9] record,
120 MBR.ORGEL:1 believe you admitied
(zijallthe pictures. There'sa picwure as of
April (221 18t that shows it
|23 THE COURT: The roof?
rz4) MA. FRYE: No.
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11t MR. BENEDICT: There's no picture |2)
Of 4 hole i the roof, Your Honor,

14 MR. ORGEL:1t's a hole,
1] MR.FRYE:It's a tile.

5] MR. ORGEL: (ne  second. 1o Your
Honor, it is correcl. There's 141 no evid-
cnce a8 o what it would look like
without (8 the te off. Dut, Your Honor,
what’s being asked 1) is to postulare thar
Lhey'd be betteroff without 1o the tie off
thiun with it. That's what the (n) argum-

In Re: Fleming Companics, Inc.

. entis that we shooald be worse off having

112 done the tie off, suggesting they'd be
hetter off (13 without it.

1141 It's inconceivable to me, Your [15)
Honor ' T'he reason [think Mr. Steinin his
naltestimony didn’t — he indicated that
before he 1/ left, theyagreed totie it off,
I dan't think pg) they did that to make
things worse.

(e T think s redsonable from the ()
evidence submitted o assume the re-
asonthey dida zo te ol is because it was
WOLSE TOT Ky Tie it (227 Off,

131 Sty Iy pevint is —

124 THE COQURT: Waell, noy. Thy:

Page 221
11 evidence, though, is that the leak
aocutted 21 postpetition at the tic off,
13 MR. ORGEL: Yeah Yes, Your(d lHonor
151 But our obligation is to repair the g)
toof, ot a particular leak. 50 if we had

j taken 7 off the moof, if we'drermnoved the

roGfl 1o pul 4 14 new Gne on on March
3181, we removed the ooof, 5o 2 we had
an obligaton to repluce, would that
becotne ) un administrative ohligation
o April [st? What no I'm trying to
understund, Your Honor, -—

nz THE COURT: No, but you were in 13
posscssionof the premisesafter April Lst
4] MR. ORGEL: Yes.

1151 THE COURT: — for a petiod of 15
Lime.

71 MR. ORGEL: Yes.

1 THE COURT: And if on April 15 119
there was no roaf, but no rain occurred
until 20) April 7th, [think your obligation
o put on a new (1) ool would have

occurred April 7th, wouldn't it?

2z MR. ORGEL: No, Your [Tonor. My |24
obligation to put an a new toof took Lthe
monient we |24 took it off.
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1) THE COURT: But was continuing —

21 MR. ORGEL: Now, that's — now, I 3
undersiand what Your Honor is saying.
Your IHonot, (4 the only thing thar
changed was there was main.

15 Cleaning up the rain may be a (6
postpetition — the damage caused by
the rain may 71 be the postpetition
obligation. Bul il Your ITonor 4 iy going
to follow Montgomery Ward, Mon-
tgomery o Ward which wem through
and rejected protuting and o) said, We
Iave 10 look lierally at 3650d)3.

it THE COURT: Well, if we do that, (12
the leak occurred June 26th,

3 MR. ORGEL: But what arc — are we
i) fixing the 1cak ar the raof?

1151 THE COURT: Well, you didn’t do g
vither.

n71 MR. ORGEL: Well, but Your Ilonor,
116 we are prepared — we're still pre-
pared 1o have no the leak -— the holein
the: cavlking —

;200 THE COURT: But that's not what (21
your withess testified 1o, Me Stein tes-
tilied e 2z wis told not o caulk it —
(22 MR. QRGEL: Right. Wait.

124 THE COURT: — by Mr.5trugmph, the
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1] Iebtor.
121 MR. ORGEL: And the reason I'm (3
Ltyitg to be cureful, Yomr Honor, is we're
still 1 prepared o caulk it Our un-
derstaneding was — |5 ourunderstanding

©owas, and that’s why there was (6 les

titnony from Mr.Malingee that we tried 1o
et |71 out that he had a conversaton.

i8] MR. BENEDICT: That they tried to |9)
gel oul There was no testimony .-

(101 THE COURT: Pleuse don't interrnpt,

1111 MR. ORGEL: All 1 am going 1o say [12)
15 what he saidd was he had a con-
versation with 13 Mr, 5tein, and that he
told Mr. Steinto congult (14) his attorney
hefiore he went forward.

(191 That'salbhe would say. My 1) point —

117 THE COURT: Butr Mr. Stein said, Mo
L1e] Struemph wld me not to fx it He
dida’c tell me (o) W fix it

120 MR. ORGEL: Mr_Malinee’s testitnony
121) was Mr, Stein said he wanted =z
consensis, Having (23 not oblained a
CONsSENsYs —

rz3 THE COURT: Yeah. The Dehior told
241 him not to fix ir. That's what he
wlentified in
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1rthe deposition is telling him not 1o fix
it,

21 MR, ORGEL: Your ITonor, that was 13
read in from Mr. Stein’s testimony. And
our 4 problemis we don't hiave reluttal
for that 51 statement.

1é1 Bur there’s inconsistent statements [7)
in rhe record today, The inconsisterl
starement (8] 15 that when Mr. Malinee
had a conversation with (o) M. —

1ol MR. BENEDICT: Are we going
have 110 counsel testify ugain?

1121 THE COURT: Please don't intermupt.

1131 MR, BENEDICT: My apalogics, Your
114 Honor.

15l MR. QRGEL: 1'd be: happy to have nial
Mr. Malinee's testimony regarding the
testimony of 17) Mr. Stein read back. I
helicve that what it would (15 show is
that there were nany citorts 0 get oul
119 what was said, and that all thay came
out was that (2o] Mr. 5tein did ask il there
was 4 conversation, (211 what was going

© 10 take place with respect w122 re-
opaiting the moof at this point.
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